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ABOUT SEM
AR RE

We are a renowned and established electrical and mechanical (‘E&M”)
engineering works contractor in Macau and Hong Kong with our
focus on providing electrical-related E&M engineering works.

OUR PROFILE

Ready System Engineering Limited (“Ready System (Macau)”) was
founded in 2006. Upon group reorganisation in 2015, Ready System
(Macau) become a wholly owned subsidiary of SEM Holdings Limited
(the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”).

During the year ended 31 December 2024 (“Year 2024” or the “Year”),
the Group has continued its strategy of diversifying its market risks
and uncertainties by continuing to engage projects with scope of our
E&M engineering works in Hong Kong segment through its wholly
owned subsidiary, SEM Resources Limited (“SEM Resources”).

The scope of our E&M engineering works mainly consisted of supply,
installation and maintenance of electrical system, for new and existing
buildings in the projects of commercial and residential development,
hotel development, casino development, hotel renovation and sports
venue in Macau and Hong Kong and trading of electrical cable.
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ABOUTSEM
Eﬁ)‘j\ l’:

OUR DEVELOPMENT AND ACHIEVEMENT R B FR

Year ££{3 Event Eff

*4

2006 Ready System (Macau) was incorporated in Macau on 15 May 2006. *‘” *

SETNE REAMRF) R-BEAERA+EAERPIEMMIL v
Ready System (Macau) was awarded its first casino project with a total contract sum of n

approximately MOP22.2 million. I"\'

ERG RPY) BRE—ERLHED BENSBENA2 258 RMT A\

2007 Ready System (Macau) provided electrical engineering works in a mixed use development (hotel

“ZEZFELHF and service apartments) project with a total contract sum of approximately MOP118.6 million.
REZRG ORF) M—ELGEERARNER (BERRBALE) BEEREKETIR 8640
RN A118.6E B RTT

Ready System (Macau) was awarded its first residential apartment project with a total contract
sum of approximately MOP34.8 million.

REZRR (RFY) BERE—AETTABEERE  BENEHEND348EERM T

2008 The annual revenue of our Group achieved approximately MOP70.0 million.
“EENF FAEEERFEWR@mART0.0BERM T
2015 Ready System (Macau) duly registered with The Land, Public Works and Transport Bureau of

“ZE—HRHTF Macau as a registered contractor for execution of construction works.
SEZRM (R MR TR ERR ERE LA ETERIENEMAERS-

Ready System (Macau) was awarded a project to install and supply electrical system in a
residential and commercial development project at Taipa, Macau with the initial contract sum of
approximately MOP138.7 million.

RERG CRP) BRE—EEBEE  NWRMPKFNEEAEEEREERERBEER R
TEENEENA138.7TEEREMT

2016 Ready System (Macau) was awarded a project to provide maintenance, supply and installation
“E 7% of fitting out, electrical, mechanical ventilation and air conditioning and plumbing works in
a hotel renovation project at Avenida da Amizade, Macau with the initial contract sum of
approximately MOP120.6 million.
2ERG (R BE—EEE > HRFKEXNER—EBEMHEEREEE - ER HK
BREAKRERAUAREBIENGFRE HEKZE TR ENEENR120688RM T

2017 The annual revenue of our Group first achieved over MOP200.0 million.
—tF FNEEFRBRFEWRHE200.08 8 RMIT
2019 Ready System (Macau) was awarded a project to supply and install electrical system in a hotel

MOP168.8 million (included provisional sum of approximately MOP13.6 million).
DERG (RF) BER—EEE AN RMEEN—EESEREEREERARVERR
ZE VR EHNEERNR168.8BERPIT (8 %EWE%%%E%’NS.G BEER®EPT)

T —NE development project at Lago Nam Van, Macau with the initial contract sum of approximately é@

Annual Report SR & 2024
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ABOUT SEM
BRSBIE

OUR DEVELOPMENT AND ACHIEVEMENT BRETL

(Continued)

Year {7 Event HfF
2020 The Company was listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)

ZZTZF on 14 February 2020. %
AABINZZE_Z2F_B+HBREBHERZFABERARE (THAr) Lo

2021 Ready System (Macau) was awarded a project to supply and install electrical system in a hospital

ZZ T —% development project at Cotai with the initial contract sum of approximately MOP123.0 million.

2EZRG (RF]) BER—EEE  SREBF-—EABREREBRUERAANVEBRZE
IR ENETRANR123.08 BRIt

SEM Resources was awarded projects to supply and install electrical system in a data centre
development project at Kwai Chung and in sport park development project at Kai Tak with the
initial contract sums of approximately HK$42.0 million (equivalent to approximately MOP43.4
million) and of approximately HK$358.6 million (equivalent to approximately MOP369.9 million),
respectively.

SEM Resources E#RIEE > ANER—EEEHLEREEARNBENBE ABEMEER
RUBRAGNEERZE VRSN EDFINR42.088E T TE4434882PIT)
F2358.6E & Bt (HT549369.98 & RFIIT) °

2022 Ready System (Macau) was awarded a project to supply and install electrical system in a
“ZEFE T4 casino resort development project in Cotai, Macau with the initial contract sum of approximately
MOP27.8 million.

EEZRG (RF) BR—EEB > AIORFIKGF—ARESEREBEBREERAMRIHER
28 PIR BTN B27 BE R BT

SEM Resources was awarded projects to provide installation of mechanical ventilation and air
conditioning for chained catering restaurants, with the contract sum of approximately HK$3.7
million.

SEM Resources EIRIEE > #EHBHEIEHENAR R TRARE  SOSBENRITEEE
TE o

2023 SEM Resources was awarded projects to install electrical system to convert an industrial

“Z " =% building to a commercial building.
SEM Resources BiRIEE AZEBRAFUF — R ILEBFAREASEHEEF

2024 SEM Resources started the trading business of electrical cables.
ZE U4  SEM Resources BIIAEEE 5 275 o

OUR BUSINESS STRATEGIES I EFE R

Strengthening
our financial

Operating an

E&M maintenance Trading position to undertake
electrical cables more sizeable E&M
department EEEE engineering projects
EEHEREIM oo

Y8 56 B 5 K U DA R
BRAKRBENKET
2IER

6 SEM Holdings Limited SR R/AE



OUR BUSINESS MODEL

Quotation/tender submission and acceptance (3 months)

—  Receive the invitation to submit quotation/tender from our
customers

—  Submit quotation/tender, negotiate with our customers on the
prices and terms, interview with customers and/or dealing
with customers’ enquiries

—  Accept the offer from our customer if a written letter of intent
is issued by our customer or quotation with our customer is
signed

A 4
Project implementation (2 weeks to 3 months)

- Form a project team which normally comprise a project
manager, site supervisor and engineer

—  Prepare and submit, among others, working drawing and
detailed work programme

—  Engage imported workers and subcontractor

—  Procure electrical parts and components and renting
machines and equipment

—  Satisfy performance bond requirements

v

Installation, testing and commissioning (12 to 24 months)

—  Carry out installation and other ancillary works as scheduled
in the detailed work programme

—  Submit application to our customers for progress payment
and certification monthly

—  Carry out site acceptance test on the electrical system
installed to ensure conformity to contractual specifications

— Negotiate with our customers for re-measurement and
variation orders from the contract

b 4
Defect liability period (12 to 24 months)

— Make good any defects at our own cost within the defect
liability period

— Collect the residue of the retention money and the
performance bond upon the end of defect liability period

ABOUT SEM
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
EERS

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of Directors (the “Directors”), | am
pleased to present the annual report of the Group for the Year 2024,

The Group has marked a major milestone the year of 2020 with its
listing on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 14 February
2020 (the “Listing”), undoubtedly providing an effective platform for
the Group’s further development in the market. The additional capital
raised and a broader capital base as a result of the Listing reinforce
our determination to the future growth in the E&M engineering
works in Macau and Hong Kong and promote our Group as a well-
organised enterprise to the public.

The Group has recorded a net profit for the Year 2024 and a decrease
in revenue for the Year 2024. This is mainly due to a combination of
the factors including (i) the reversal of impairment loss under expected
credit loss model; (i) the increase in gross profit margins of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2024 as compared to the year
ended 31 December 2023.

Our Group maintains its dedication to excellence despite current
global economic challenges. Operating in the Macau and Hong Kong
markets, we hold a positive outlook for the E&M engineering sector’s
future amid ongoing Northern Metropolis development and the
increase in the HKSAR government’s budget on construction, housing
and infrastructure. Strategic initiatives implemented during this period
include the entry into the cable trading market. These diversification
efforts have strengthened our revenue streams and enhanced our
long-term market position. In the Macau region, we continue to
distinguish ourselves through specialized electrical E&M service
offerings. Our technical expertise allows us to consistently deliver
high-quality solutions to our client base. The Group remains focused
on identifying and pursuing new opportunities within our established
market segment. We value the collaborative relationships we have
cultivated with our customers, suppliers, and subcontractors. These
partnerships represent a significant competitive advantage and
contribute to our operational efficiency.

SEM Holdings Limited JEZERERAE]
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EREHRS

As representatives of the Board, | extend our heartfelt gratitude to our A AZERREF T  ROKHMEERBH - F
esteemed business partners, professional associates, and dedicated ¥ A+ RBERHAEBMAR T ANEERSF -
shareholders for their unwavering trust and support that have been A ARSI EE BB RFTA B TS ERS
instrumental in our journey. | also commend our management team BB W KR ARSI AT - MENERE LS
and employees for their unwavering commitment, professionalism, T FFIMIH-EME 2 NEBBEBEERFT T
and remarkable achievements. Their collective efforts drive our 1 HBREEEE > BREFHREARLR-
success. In conclusion, the Group will remain persistent and

determined to ensure long-term development and greater returns for

our shareholders.

Wan Man Keung FRE
Chairman FE

Hong Kong, 27 March 2025 S8 “E-AF=-HA-++tH
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIEEwm R

BUSINESS REVIEW AND MARKET PROSPECT

Ready System (Macau) was founded in 2006. We are a renowned
and well-established E&M engineering works contractor in Macau
with our focus on providing electrical-related E&M engineering
works. The scope of our E&M engineering works mainly consisted
of supply, installation and maintenance of electrical system, for new
and existing buildings in the projects of commercial and residential
property development, public property development, hotel and casino
development and renovation in Macau. The Group has diversified
its market risks and uncertainties by continuing to engage projects
with scope of our E&M engineering works in Hong Kong segment
through its wholly owned subsidiary, SEM Resources Limited (“SEM
Resources”).

The HKSAR government’s budget reflects a strategic approach to
addressing infrastructure development, with a projected construction
sector growth. The E&M engineering market, and by extension the
cable trading business, is poised for growth, driven by increased
demand from these initiatives. Looking ahead, the Group will explore
the opportunities within the electrical cable trading market to diversify
our business model and create new income streams. This venture
will allow us to leverage our existing expertise and market knowledge
to tap into a growing demand for high-quality cable products.
Group’s entry into cable trading is well-timed, leveraging the robust
market opportunities presented by Hong Kong's construction and
infrastructure sectors. Our focus will be on establishing strong
supplier relationships and delivering exceptional service to our
customers, ensuring that we meet their evolving needs.

During the Year 2024, the Group recorded total revenue of
approximately HK$91.7 million, which decreased by approximately
HK$167.2 million or 64.6% from approximately HK$258.9 million for
the Year 2023. The decrease was mainly attributable to the decrease
in revenue from Hong Kong segment as the existing projects are at
their completion stage. Also, the Group faced operational challenges,
including project delays and the decline of construction activities
in Hong Kong in the Year 2024, which contributed to the revenue
decline.

SEM Holdings Limited JEZERERAE]

EBEIEKR TSR =

REZRG CBF) RSB RERIT - HMZ
BEEZEERENALEN RSN TEAER &
ARIRMEREMMISE T - FM%ETREN
ERHBETENRMCERERETYERE
NEMERE  BIE KRS EHEFNIBE R
MERRBEEBFNERRANHEE - ZERRF
BEoAEEFEBESENEBEARSEM Resources
Limited (F'SEM Resources ) 48 & ZE Bk
M#ETRELEERNNEE  UoBHIBRBE RN
BARRME o

BEARARNTHEBRNM RAEREREERR
MERZEREELSH ERNESR BEXEER
TAHIRRME - R BB BUERIEB PR E £ BRI
R BETIRETSNERZBEESXHAEBH
REN - BREXRK FAEERKRBEZEZ NS
Bi%E  BRANEFRAES TERAIEH T
AR - A EFR < HZPIEAFBRFARENE
ENH AT HNHE LUneHeEEBBERT
ETIZRMNBR - AEABRESEEE HEE
EERDIBETRZERERTEMERZE
RIHISHS  HMNERSERILBANMHEERS
iR BEPIRM SRS BEHKFmER
FREBERFTER-

RIEZNEE AEERSARENN.7TES
B RIEZ -FENN258.98 B TRED
#9167 2B BB IT64.6%  WWHB/D T E R BREH
REBRBNK R R BARBEEERET
IR I AEBEBEES IS 21F8
BEERSEN _S_NEENERETHE L
BRI E FREe



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW AND MARKET PROSPECT
(Continued)

The Group remains committed to its strategy of securing new E&M
engineering service projects in Macau and Hong Kong. We continue
to seek opportunities in Hong Kong’s existing buildings, where
upgrades to meet modern standards are frequently required, as
demonstrated by our successful electrical system renovation project
at a prominent recreational and sports venue.

Recognizing the evolving economic landscapes of Macau and Hong
Kong, the Group has focused on optimizing its operational efficiency.
The restructuring of our project management team and the digitization
of workflows, initiated in 2023, have yielded tangible benefits,
including a reduction in workforce-related costs. This improved
efficiency has not only strengthened our financial position but also
enhanced our capacity to undertake larger and more complex
projects.

Our streamlined operations, coupled with a highly skilled team, enable
us to deliver superior project management and supervision. We are
confident in our ability to consistently deliver projects on time, within
budget, and to the complete satisfaction of our clients, thereby driving
sustainable growth and value creation for our clients, thereby driving
sustainable growth and value creation for our stakeholders.

Hence, the management is cautiously optimistic about the E&M
markets in Macau and Hong Kong and will continue to strive for
capturing the new market in the changing industry dynamics for E&M
engineering services.

BEEwmROHh
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group’s revenue decreased by 64.6% from approximately
HK$258.9 million for the Year 2023 to approximately HK$91.7 million
for the Year 2024. Such decrease was mainly due to a combination
of factors as disclosed in “BUSINESS REVIEW AND MARKET
PROSPECT” above.

R4 %5 1 ER
35

AEENKEHRH S - =FEMLY258.98EH
T4 % E_E_NEEMNIN.7TEE S
T BRI ETERN EX TESLBEATIES
FIS I FANESERER G HEEMRR-

2024 2023
—E-ME TEBT=HF
HK$ million % HK$ million %
BE#ET BEET
Hotels and Casinos JEE B iR 4432 15.8 17.3% 14.5 5.6%
Residential properties FEY= 7.6 8.3% 2.0 0.8%
Commercial properties EEYE 4.4 4.7% 4.1 1.6%
Public properties Ny ES 63.9 69.7% 238.3 92.0%
91.7 258.9
Cost of sales SHE R4S

The Group’s cost of sales amounted to approximately HK$68.2
million for the Year 2024, representing an decrease of 71.5% from
approximately HK$239.4 million for the Year 2023. Cost of sales
mainly comprised of labour costs and subcontracting costs, which
accounted for approximately 22.5% and 55.2% respectively of the
Group’s total cost of sales for the Year 2024 (2023: 49.6% and 40.7%
respectively). The decrease in cost of sales for the Year 2024 was
mainly due to decrease in revenue for the Year 2024.

SEM Holdings Limited JRZ#=E A EA S

AREEBR ST _NEEMNHEER AN A68.28
BAT BT =—FEMNH239.4588ETH
D715% HEMAETESDIEANTHRA KD E K
T DRMEARERR S _NEEMNHERS
MREEM4922.5%R%55.2% (CE =4 DBk
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Gross Profit/Gross Profit Margin

The Group’s overall gross profit for the provision of E&M engineering
works increased to approximately HK$23.5 million for the Year 2024
from approximately HK$19.5 million for the Year 2023. The gross
profit margin increased from approximately 7.5% for the Year 2023 to
approximately 25.6% for the Year 2024.

The increase in gross profit margin was mainly attributable to (i) cost
saving measurements implemented in Macau and Hong Kong; (i)
revaluation of budget project cost.

Despite the increase in gross profit margin of the Group in the Year
2024, the Directors consider that the gross profit margin is still
affected by market and economic environment. Hence, the Group
is striving for bidding potential projects with higher margin and
implementing cost saving strategy to maintain higher gross profit
margin of the Group.

Other income

Other income mainly included interest income from banks, disposal of
scrap materials and sundry income. For the Year 2024, the Group’s
other income amounted to approximately HK$1.8 million (Year 2023:
approximately HK$1.2 million). Such increase was mainly attributable
to the bank interest income and the gain on disposal of scrap
materials.

Other losses

The Group’s other losses amounted to approximately HK$2.8 million
in Year 2023 (Year 2024: Nil). The losses were attributable to the
impairment of property, plant and equipment.

BEEwmROHh

HA#%[ElBE @
EFEFFE

AEBFRERENKETREERENR_T _=
FENMNI9SEEATEMNE_SE_NEENY
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EAEZZE T MNFEERH25.6% -

ENRN EADETEZAR)RPIREBERAAE
EAFENE  R()REIRE A EM-

BEXAEENR T _MEFEEMNEFNREA EE
ERR BNRMEDHSREBRELE EIL
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HA

HBAFZEGRERITHEWA EBER XM
BRA - RE-NEE > AEBNEMEKALY
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HthE518

FEERR T -FEMNHMEBRNR288E8
BT (CEINEE D) o BREINEERRYE
B 5 B2 5% s BB E ©

Annual Report SR & 2024

13



14

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEmRA

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continueq)

Reversal of/(Impairment losses) under expected credit
loss (“ECL”) model, net of reversal

The prolonged COVID-19 epidemic adversely affected business
operations of a group of project employer (the “Project Employer
Group”) of the Group’s sizable E&M engineering project of a hotel
development (the “Project”) in 2020, of which the outstanding trade
receivables with gross balances amounted to HK$50.5 million, were
outstanding as at 31 December 2024. The Project Employer Group
suspended the development of the Project in the third quarter of
2020. The ultimate holding company of the Project Employer Group
is a listed company in the Stock Exchange, who announced the
disposal of interest in the Project Employer Group to a third party (the
“Purchaser”) for generating more cash to finance its operation under
the COVID-19 pandemic environment.

Despite the Group’s direct customers of the Project (the “Direct
Customers”) are not the Project Employer Group itself as mentioned
above, this increases the credit risks of the trade receivables and
contract assets of the Project. At 31 December 2024, the Group
has recognised cumulative credit loss allowance on contract assets
and trade receivables of approximately HK$17.7 million and HK$8.8
million (31 December 2023: approximately HK$23.5 million and
HK$5.1 million), respectively, of which credit loss allowance of
approximately HK$6.1 million (31 December 2023: approximately
HK$2.2 million) are related to trade receivables of the Project.

Management of the Group has actively communicated with the
Direct Customers and understand that the Direct Customers took
legal actions via arbitration against the main-contractor of the
Project. During the Year 2024, the Direct customer had settled with
the main-contractor. After that, the Group has received repayments
of a substantial part of the outstanding contract assets and trade
receivables from the Direct Customer in the first quarter of 2025.
We believe that we can recover the remaining amount due from the
Direct Customers because () good and long-term on-going business
relationships between the Group and the Direct Customers for more
than ten years with no default in history. Furthermore, there were
continuing settlements of the Project during the Year 2024; and (ji) the
Group obtained a repayment commitment from the Direct Customers
to fully repay the outstanding trade receivables by the end of 2025.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Reversal of/(Impairment losses) under expected credit
loss (“ECL”) model, net of reversal (Continued)

Impairment losses under ECL model derived from trade receivables
and contract assets of the Group. The change in impairment loss
under ECL model from impairment loss of HK$3.7 million in the Year
2023 to reversal of impairment loss of approximately HK$2.1 million
in the Year 2024 was mainly due to overall decrease in credit risks on
certain project customers and taken into accounts for the following
factors including (i) continuing settlements of completed works for
billing to the Project in the Year 2024; and (iij decrease in gross
balances of the Group’s contract assets at 31 December 2024.

Management of the Group has taken actions to recover outstanding
balances of the Project and consider that those balances will be
recovered eventually. ECL has been provided on these balances in
accordance with the requirements set out in Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standard 9.

Administrative expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses increased from approximately
HK$22.1 million for the Year 2023 to approximately HK$23.3 million
for the Year 2024. Such increase was mainly due to increase of staff
costs.

Income tax credit

The decrease in the Group’s income tax credit from approximately
HK$0.2 million for the Year 2023 to approximately HK$21.0 thousand
for the Year 2024 was attributed by decrease in the provision of
deferred tax credit.

Net Profit (Loss)

The Group reported net profit for the Year 2024 of approximately
HK$3.8 million, as compared with net loss of approximately HK$8.0
million suffered for the Year 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEmRA

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continueq)
Final Dividend

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
Year 2024 (Year 2023: Nil).

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group has financed its operations primarily through cash inflows
from operating activities, as well as proceeds received from the
Listing. As at 31 December 2024, the Group had cash and cash
equivalents of approximately HK$56.1 million (31 December 2023:
approximately HK$35.9 million) and remains steady in its financial
position in meeting its future financial obligations.

As at 31 December 2024, the working capital (current assets less
current liabilities) and total equity attributable to owners of the
Group were approximately HK$188.3 milion (31 December 2023:
approximately HK$183.4 million) and approximately HK$213.0 million
(31 December 2023: approximately HK$209.1 million), respectively.

Gearing ratio (total debt including amounts due to Directors/total
equity) as at 31 December 2024 was approximately 21.0% (31
December 2023: approximately 24.3%). The gearing ratio was stable
comparing to the year ended 31 December 2023.

TREASURY POLICY

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policy. The Board closely monitors the Group’s
liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity structure of the Group’s
assets, liabilities, and other commitments can meet its funding
requirements all the time.

CURRENCY RISK

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk as most
of its business transactions and assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in MOP or HK$ of the relevant group entities and the
exchange rate between the functional currencies and HK$ is relatively
stable. As such, the Group currently does not have any foreign
currency hedging policy in respect of foreign currency transactions
and assets and liabilities as the Group’s risk in foreign exchange is
insignificant. However, the Group will continue to monitor closely its
exposure to currency movement and take proactive measures.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk through the impact of rate
changes on interest bearing financial assets and liabilities, mainly
interest-bearing bank balances and a bank borrowing. The interest
rates of these bank deposits are determined by reference to the
respective bank offer rate and interest rate on the bank borrowing is
based on the contracted interest rate at prime rate less 2.55% per
annum. The Group currently does not have any interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management of the Group will consider hedging
significant interest rate risk should the need arise.

PRINCIPAL RISK AND UNCERTAINTY

The Group’s business operations are conducted in Macau and Hong
Kong providing the electrical-related E&M engineering works and
our engagements with customers were on a project basis and non-
recurring in nature that we did not enter into any long-term agreement
or master service agreement with them. We have to undergo the
competitive bidding process for every new project. In the event that
we are unable to attract new customers or secure new projects
from our existing customers, there may be a significant decrease in
our revenue. Our operations and financial results would hence be
adversely affected.

The Group’s liquidity position may be adversely affected if the
progress payment or the retention money is not paid or released
to the Group on time or in full; or the construction project cash
flows are fluctuated. To monitor the pressure of financial liquidity,
the Group reviews aging analysis on regular basis and closely
communicates with management of the customers so as to get a
better understanding of their solvency status.

Other principal risks include fluctuations in estimated project
costs versus the actual project cost incurred due to unexpected
circumstances and imported labour quota allocated to our projects,
both of which would adversely affect the Group’s operations and
financial performance.

The Group is also exposed to certain market risks such as currency
risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, etc.

The Group believes that risk management is the responsibility of
everyone within the Group and has implemented a risk management
system to mitigate the risks in daily operations. Risk management
is led by the Directors at the top, who take both macro and micro
economic conditions into account before making business decisions,
and also aims to develop risk awareness and control responsibility as
the Group’s culture and the foundation of the Group’s internal controls
system.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEmRA

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have any
significant investments, nor material acquisitions or disposals of
subsidiaries, associated companies for the Year 2024.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2024, a property in Macau with carrying amount
of approximately HK$15.1 million (31 December 2023: approximately
HK$15.2 million) was pledged to a bank located in Macau for
obtaining a mortgage loan to finance the relevant acquisition.

Pledged bank deposits as at 31 December 2023 are pledged to
secure the performance bonds granted to the Group (2024: Nil). The
Group had no other material pledge of assets as at 31 December
2023 and 31 December 2024.

FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENT
AND CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed above and in the Prospectus, the Group does not
have other plans for material investments and capital assets as at 31
December 2024 and up to the date of this report.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group had no material capital commitments as at 31 December
2024 (2023: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2024 (2023: Nil).

SEM Holdings Limited JEZERERAE]

. T

EARE -ERWBNLE

PRARESAREEIN R_B_NFE > AEER
i’ﬂﬂfﬁ%jﬁxﬁ CEBANBRLEREBA
B R EE AR

BERH

RIBEZME+ B =+—H > BFIN—ERE
BN IEEET(CE_ZF+ ﬁ —i— B:
#15.2B BB T N EER ML — SR &M
RITUESRIBER ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%?ﬂﬁﬁi"

N_E-=ZF+"A=+—H  ERFRTER
EATERERNBANRREERNER C=
TEE) R E_=ZF+_-_RA=+—HKZ

ETWNES+ A=+ —H AERUEAEMELK
BEEIRF

g%ik&ﬁ&ﬁ$ﬁém$mﬁ
=

B EXRBRERARBEN RS- NE
oA+ RREEARE QM AEELE
EWNEARERAREENEMEE

BRKIE

RIE_WE+_BA=+—H > AEBETESE X
BAEE (CE_=F . HF) -

HABE

RIE_WNE+_BA=+—H xEFETEEAKX
HAEBBE(CEZ=F &) o



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PROSPECTS AND STRATEGIES

The Group’s principal business objective is to further strengthen its
position as an integrated construction contractor.

While the Group’s principal business objective remains to strengthen
its position as an integrated construction contractor, we acknowledge
the current challenges within the construction sector. To navigate
these challenges and enhance long-term stability, we are actively
pursuing diversification strategies, with a particular focus on
expanding our presence in the electrical cable trading market.

Regarding E&M engineering services, the Group continues to pursue
its business objective by strategically expanding its operations.
We are actively seeking opportunities to undertake additional E&M
engineering services-related projects in both Macau and Hong Kong,
targeting both existing and potential new customers. This expansion
builds upon our present scale of operations and current projects.

The business outlook for the year ahead remains cautiously optimistic.
We believe that strategic diversification, particularly the growth
potential within the electrical cable trading sector, coupled with our
low debt levels and robust liquidity, provides the Group with the
strength and flexibility to navigate the current environment, take on
selective new projects, and invest in the future of the business. The
Hong Kong SAR Government’s announced infrastructure projects
continue to present opportunities for E&M construction services,
which we will selectively pursue.

Our expansion into electrical cable trading has begun to yield
promising results, as indicated by an increase in requested quotations
and growing interest from potential customers in this sector. We
remain optimistic about its growth potential as we continue to
explore this opportunity. We are actively building relationships with
key suppliers and customers, and we are exploring opportunities
to expand our product offerings and geographic reach within the
cable trading market. This initiative aims to create additional revenue
streams and enhance the Group’s long-term financial stability,
reducing our reliance on the construction market.

Consistently, the Group prioritizes fundamental principles to overcome
challenges and build resilience. We implement best practices,
proactively manage risks, and address logistical and material price
fluctuations. In preparation for future growth, the Group reorganized
operating units, appointed new leaders, and established procedures
to enhance governance and business development in emerging
technology and market segments. Our unwavering commitment is to
meet our customers’ expectations through the delivery of high-quality,
timely, and cost-efficient services and products.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEmRA

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed in elsewhere of this report, there have been no
other material events occurring after the Year 2024 and up to the date
of this report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

During the Year 2024, as far as the Board and management are
aware, there was no material breach of or non-compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has material impact
on the business and operation of the Group.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group had 50 full-time employees including non-executive
directors and executive directors as at 31 December 2024 (31
December 2023: 72), among which 18 and 32 (31 December 2023:
16 and 56) were stationed in Macau and Hong Kong, respectively.
The total staff costs (including fees, salaries and other allowance,
and retirement benefit scheme contributions) for the Year 2024
were approximately HK$25.5 million (Year 2023: approximately
HK$31.3 million). The remuneration policy and package of the
Group’s employees were periodically reviewed by management of
the Company. Apart from retirement benefit scheme contributions
and salaries increment, discretionary bonuses may be awarded
to employees according to the assessment of individual and the
Group’s performance. The remuneration policy in place as at 31
December 2024 was in line with the current legislation in the relevant
jurisdictions, market conditions and performance of the staff and the
Group.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Our Board consists of seven Directors, including three executive
Directors, one non-executive Director and three independent non-
executive Directors. The biographies of the Directors and senior
management of the Company are set forth below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wan Man Keung (FER38) (‘Mr. MK Wan”), aged 63, founded
our Group (through Ready Engineering) on 15 May 2006. He is one
of our controlling shareholders, our chairman and executive Director,
and member of our nomination committee. He was appointed as
our Director on 6 November 2015 and was re-designated as our
executive Director on 29 March 2016. On 1 August 2018, he was
re-designated as non-executive Director. On 26 January 2024, he
was re-designated as an executive Director and appointed as the
chief executive officer. He is also a director/administrator of each
of the members of our Group. He is currently responsible for the
overall strategic planning and management of our Group’s business
development.

Mr. MK Wan currently holds the certificate of registration of electrical
worker issued by the Electrical and Mechanical Services Department
in Hong Kong and is a Grade B electrical worker. He has more
than 30 years of experience in the E&M engineering industry. Prior
to founding our Group, Mr. MK Wan, together with other business
partners, through Ready Engineering, established, among others,
Ready System (Macau) providing various E&M engineering services in
Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). Mr. MK
Wan is currently an executive director of REM Group (Holdings)
Limited (stock code: 1750), the issued shares of which are listed on
the Stock Exchange.

Mr. MK Wan completed form three education in 1978. He was
awarded a craft certificate in electrical fittings and installations by
the Morrison Hill Technical Institute (currently known as the Hong
Kong Institute of Vocational Education (Morrison Hill)) in Hong Kong
in July 1981. He is the elder brother of Mr. CW Wun and a cousin of
Mrs. Kan Wan Wai Yee Mavis.

For Mr. MK Wan’s interest in the Shares within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO, please refer to the section headed “Directors’ Report” in
this annual report.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREERERE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continueq)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Wun Chi Wai (FE®&) (“‘Mr. CW Wun”), aged 55, joined Ready
System (Macau) as a contracts manager on 1 May 1993. Mr. CW
Wun joined our Group as a shareholder of Ready Engineering Limited
(“Ready Engineering”) upon the incorporation of Ready System
(Macau), a company incorporated in Macau, on 15 May 2006. He is
one of our controlling Shareholders and our executive Director. He is
also a director of each of the members of our Group except for Ready
System (Macau). He was appointed as our Director on 6 November
2015 and was re-designated as our non-executive Director on
29 March 2016. On 1 August 2018, he was re-designated as our
executive Director. He is currently responsible for providing strategic
advice to our Group’s business development.

Mr. CW Wun was awarded the higher certificate in building studies
by Hong Kong Polytechnic (currently known as The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University) in November 1991. He obtained a master
degree of business administration from Asia International Open
University (Macau) (currently known as City University of Macau) in
January 1999. He is the younger brother of Mr. MK Wan and the
cousin of Mrs. Kan Wan Wai Yee Mavis. He has more than 25 years of
experience in the E&M engineering industry.

For Mr. CW Wun'’s interest in the Shares within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO, please refer to the section headed “Directors’ Report” in
this annual report.

Mr. Yu Chi Kwan (§iE E) (‘Mr. Yu"), aged 55, joined Ready System
(Macau) on 1 April 1994 as an engineer. Mr. Yu joined our Group as a
shareholder of Ready Engineering on 28 December 2010 and started
to work for our Group in around April 2013. He was appointed as our
senior project manager on 16 April 2016 and our executive Director
on 1 August 2018 and is one of our controlling Shareholders. Mr. Yu
is currently responsible for overseeing our projects management,
execution of daily management and operation.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continueq)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Yu completed a three-year part-time evening technician
programme at Morrison Hill Technical Institute (currently known as
the Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education (Morrison Hill)) in
Hong Kong and was awarded a certificate in electrical engineering
in September 1992. Mr. Yu has more than 25 years of experience
in the E&M engineering industry. He currently holds the certificate
of registration of electrical worker issued by the Electrical and
Mechanical Services Department in Hong Kong and is a Grade B
electrical worker.

For Mr. YU’s interest in the Shares within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO, please refer to the section headed “Directors’ Report” in this
annual report.

Non-executive Director

Mrs. Kan Wan Wai Yee Mavis (f§FE5), aged 68, is our
non-executive Director and member of our audit committee and
remuneration committee. She was appointed as our non-executive
Director on 29 March 2016. She is currently responsible for providing
strategic advice to our Group’s internal control and corporate
governance. Mrs. Kan is currently a certified public accountant
(practising) of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
a chartered tax adviser of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and a
fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

Between June 1977 and December 1980, Mrs. Kan worked for The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation (currently known as
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited). She was
employed by John B.P. Byrne & Co. between December 1980 and
April 1985 with her last position as tax senior. She was a founding
partner of a local firm of certified public accountants from April 1997
to October 2010. She later founded KAN-WAN Certified Tax Advisors,
a tax consultancy firm, in December 2010 and BOYA CPA & Co., a
certified public accountant (practising) firm, in October 2012.

Mrs. Kan is currently a non-executive director of REM Group
(Holdings) Limited (stock code: 1750), the issued shares of which
are listed on the Stock Exchange. She completed the programme of
diploma in management studies organised jointly by the Hong Kong
Management Association and Hong Kong Polytechnic (currently
known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic University) in June 1988.
Mrs. Kan is a cousin of Mr. MK Wan and Mr. CW Wun.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREERERE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continueq)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Lau Ping Cheung Kaizer (8|{fZ) GBS, SBS, JP, aged 73,
is our independent non-executive Director and chairman of our
nomination committee and member of our remuneration committee.
He was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 22
January 2020. He is currently responsible for providing independent
judgement to bear on issues of strategy, policy, performance,
accountability, resources and standard of conduct. He is also a fellow
of The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and was the president from
1996 to 1997.

Mr. Lau has substantial experience and involvement in construction,
real estate and infrastructure projects. Mr. Lau was a member
of the Legislative Council of Hong Kong from 2000 to 2004.
He was a former chairman of the Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors (HK Branch). He was a non-executive director of the
Urban Renewal Authority, a member of the council of the City
University of Hong Kong, a member of the Council of The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University, a member of the HKSAR Economic
Development Commission, a member of the Basic Law Promotion
Steering Committee, a member of the Lantau Development Advisory
Committee, a committee member of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference of Shanghai and a member of the National
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference.
Mr. Lau was also an independent non-executive director of Kingboard
Laminates Holdings Limited (stock code: 1888) from August 2015
to January 2022 and an independent non-executive director of MTR
Corporation Limited (stock code: 66) from August 2015 to May 2019,
both of which are listed on the Stock Exchange. Also, Mr. Lau has
been an independent non-executive director of China Resources
Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited (stock code: 1209) since November
2020 and of SOCAM Development Limited (stock code: 983) since
June 2023 both of which are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lau is
currently the managing director of Biel Asset Management Company
Limited.

Mr. Lau was awarded a higher diploma in quantity surveying from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic (currently known as The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University) in 1974 and a master degree in construction
project management from The University of Hong Kong in 1990.

Mr. Lau is one of the founders and currently the chairman of Hong
Kong Coalition of Professional Services.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continueq)

Independent non-executive Directors (Continued)

Ir Dr. Wong Wai Man, Raymond, aged 74, was our independent
non-executive Director, the chairman of the remuneration committee
and member of the audit committee. He is a fellow member of The
Hong Kong Institution of Engineers and the Hong Kong Computer
Society. Ir Dr. Wong obtained a supervisory management certificate
with distinction from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 1979, a
diploma in Business Administration from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in 1982, a Master of Business Administration from The
University of Hull, UK in 1992, a Master of Science in Information
Systems with credit from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
1995, a Master of Science in Management with credit from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University, a LLB degree with honours from The
University of Wolverhampton, UK and a Bachelor in Laws from The
Peking University, PRC in 1996, a Master in Laws with credit from
The City University of Hong Kong in 1999, a Master in Laws from
The Renmin University in Beijing, PRC in 2000, a Doctor of Business
Administration from The University of Newcastle, Australia in 2007
and an Australian Graduate Certificate in Immigration Law from The
Australian National University in 2009.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEhEREEERE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent non-executive Directors (Continued)

Ir Dr. Wong has extensive experience in information system
development and corporate management. He joined the Immigration
Department of the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region in 1972 and had been the Assistant Director in
charge of information system since 2002 until his retirement in 2007.
After retirement, Ir Dr. Wong has become a world-known independent
expert consultant in identity and border management. Ir Dr. Wong has
served the community in various aspects. He had been consultant
for the Disciplinary Force Diploma Course of The Chinese University
of Hong Kong, Adjunct Professor of the Department of Computer
Science of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and part-time
professor of the Biometrics Technology Centre of The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University.

Ms. Chen Tak Yee Dickdy, aged 46, was our independent non-
executive Director, the chairlady of the audit committee and member
of the nomination committee. She graduated from The University
of Hong Kong with a degree of bachelor of Accounting in 2006.
Ms. Chen has over twenty years of experience in accounting and
corporate management. She is a member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants since January 2011. She is
currently the Chief Operating Officer of a private company engaged in
manufacturing of electronic products.

SEM Holdings Limited JEZERERAE]

EETw
BIUIEHITEE @

BERXBLIRMANASRRRAERATEE
HEEBSEER - KN —ALtZEMAEES
AITHEARRE I8 —TT " FEEENELR
B TERBRRK BEERN_ZZELFRAK-R
K& BERXIBLIRANAS N RiBREES
B RN BNBIERER EHXELTRE
MEEREREATRIEHRT KB AEER
XARBHAERIBBXEREBRE FEBEI KRS
SERARBEREBETARSEYH M
oD FREB AR o

BRIEMR L 4658 RBIUIFRITESUKRES
ZEEIRMRERZEEME N _TTRFE
ENBEBRB BEFHE2EL B -RLEINE
SARABEEFHERE_TEKR -KRE-F
——F—RERBTEBGHMAGRE - RFE—
ENFEFERRENMARTNEREZEE



BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Yim Ka Wing (83 58), aged 37, was our company secretary.
She was appointed as our company secretary on 7 December 2022.
She resigned as our company secretary on 13 February 2025.

Ms. Yim obtained the degree of bachelor of accountancy from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2012. Ms. Yim has
approximately 10 years of working experiences in accounting,
financial management and auditing. Ms. Yim has been a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since
September 2015.

Mr. Wan Ying Pang GBFEME), aged 28, is our financial controller.
He joined SEM Resources on 1 December 2022 and started to
work for our Group as financial controller. He was appointed as our
company secretary on 13 February 2025. He is currently responsible
for managing and overseeing the financial operation, and corporate
governance and company secretarial matters of our Group.

Mr. Wan obtained the degree of bachelor of accountancy from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2019. Mr. Wan has over
5 years of working experiences in financial management, auditing
and financial due diligence. Mr. Wan served in two of the big four
international accounting firms in Hong Kong. Mr. Wan has been a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
since March 2023.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXERERS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company is committed in achieving a high standard of corporate
governance standard. The Board believes that good corporate
governance standards are essential in providing a framework for
the Company to safeguard the interests of shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”), enhance corporate value, formulate its
business strategies and policies, and enhance its transparency and
accountability.

The Company has adopted the principles, the mandatory disclosure
requirements and the applicable code provisions as set out in the
section headed “Part 2 — Principles of good corporate governance,
code provisions and recommended best practices” of the CG Code
contained in Appendix C1 to Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). To the best of the
knowledge of the Board, except the deviation from code provision
C.2.1 of the CG Code, the Company has complied with the CG
Code during the Year 2024 and up to the date of this annual report.
The Directors will periodically review on the Company’s corporate
governance policies and will propose any amendment, if necessary, to
ensure compliance with the code provisions from time to time.

Pursuant to code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. Upon the resignation of Mr.
Woo Chu Fai (chief executive officer) during the year, Mr. Wan Man
Keung, the chairman of Board, temporarily takes up the function of
chief executive officer. The Company is in the course of nominating
suitable candidates for the vacancy of chief executive officer.

As Mr. Wan Man Keung currently takes up the function of the chief
executive officer, such measure deviates from code provision C.2.1
of the CG Code. The Board believes that the current measure is
interim in nature. Therefore, the Board considers that the deviation
from code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code is appropriate in this
circumstance. In addition, under the supervision of the Board which
comprises three executive Directors, one non-executive Director and
three independent non-executive Directors, the Board is appropriately
structured with balance of power to provide sufficient checks to
protect the interests of the Company and the shareholders as a
whole.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules as a code of conduct of the
Company regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having made
specific enquiries of the Directors, all the Directors have confirmed
that they have complied with the requirements of the Model Code
throughout the Year 2024 and up to the date of this annual report.

CORPORATE CULTURE AND STRATEGY
Corporate Culture

The Board and management of the Group play a pivotal role in
shaping the corporate culture. Their leadership extends to defining
the Group’s purpose, values, and strategic direction. The desired
culture is one that fosters long-term sustainability, benefiting not only
customers, suppliers, and investors but also employees. Consistency
in reflecting these values is evident across the Group’s business
operations, workplace policies, and interactions with shareholders
and other stakeholders.

The organizational culture cultivated by the Board and management
emphasizes robust corporate governance. This includes mechanisms
such as workforce engagement, employee retention, and
comprehensive training. Additionally, the Group maintains stringent
practices related to financial reporting, whistleblowing, data privacy,
and anti-corruption policies. Legal and regulatory compliance is a
cornerstone. Considering the broader context, the Board considers
that the Group’s culture, purpose, values, and strategy are aligned.

Corporate Strategy

To fulffill its core mission of enhancing long-term value for shareholders
and other stakeholders, the Group is committed to achieving
sustainable growth across multiple dimensions. This includes not only
financial performance but also environmental, social, and governance
(“ESG”) considerations. Further details on the discussions and
analyses of the Group’s performance and ESG initiatives are set out
in the sections headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” and
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2024” respectively of
this annual report.

The Group’s strategic approach involves disciplined management of
revenue, profitability, margins, costs, capital allocation, investment
returns, and other financing activities. By integrating sustainability
into its business practices, the Group aims to create lasting positive
impact while maintaining financial resilience.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Board Composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board consists of seven
Directors including Mr. Wan Man Keung (Chairman and Chief
executive officer), Mr. Wun Chi Wai and Mr. Yu Chi Kwan as
the executive Directors, and Mrs. Kan Wan Wai Yee Mavis as
the non-executive Director, and Mr. Lau Ping Cheung Kaizer,
Ir Dr. Wong Wai Man Raymond and Ms. Chen Tak Yee Dickdy as the
independent non-executive Directors.

There is a balance of skills and experience for the Board, which is
appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company.
Biographical details are set out in the section headed “Biographies of
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 21 to 27 of this annual
report.

Save that Mr. CW Wun is the younger brother of Mr. MK Wan, and
two of them are cousin of Mrs. Kan Wan Wai Yee Mavis, there are
no financial, business, family or other material relationship among
members of the Board.

The Board meets regularly to discuss and formulate the overall
strategy as well as operation and financial performance of the Group.
The company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”)
assists the chairman in drawing the agenda of each meeting and
each Director may request inclusion of matters in the agenda. Al
Directors have access to the Company Secretary who is responsible
for ensuring that Board procedures are complied with and all
applicable rules and regulations are followed.

Pursuant to code provision C.5.1 of the CG Code, the Board should
meet regularly and regular board meetings should be held at least
four times per year. Additional meetings would be arranged if and
when required. Directors may participate either in person or through
electronic means of communications.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continueq)
Board Composition (Continued)

The attendance record of each Director at the Board committee
meetings held during the Year 2024 is set out in the table below:
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Attendance/Number of Meetings

BELRER/ XY
Audit Nomination ~ Remuneration
Name of Director Board AGM Committee Committee Committee
54 EXg KRRBEFEAE BRZEE R&ZEE HMZEEE
Mr. Woo Chu Fai HREESE (RZ2ZWE
(resigned on 26 January 2024) —AZ+RBED NA REH N/A RiEH NARER NA RER NARER
Mr. Wun Chi Wai FEEEE 6/6 11 N/A RER N/A RER NA RER
Mr. Yu Chi Kwan NEELE 6/6 11 N/A R B N/A R B NAREBH
Mr. Wan Man Keung FRELE RI2ZNE
(re-designated on 26 January 2024) —B Z+7x BT 6/6 11 NA FER 1 N/AREBH
Mrs. Kan Wan Wai Yee Mavis BREREA 6/6 11 4/4 NATER 2/2
Mr. Lau Ping Cheung Kaizer ey 6/6 1/1 N/A R B 1/1 2/2
Ir Dr. Wong Wai Man Raymond BB TR 6/6 1/1 4/4 NA B 2/2
Ms. Chen Tak Yee Dickdy BElait 6/6 1/1 4/4 111 N/A R

During the Year 2024, the Board has at all times met the
requirements of rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors with at least one independent non-executive Director
possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting
or related financial management expertise. The Company has three
independent non-executive Directors and all of the three independent
non-executive Directors have appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Board Composition (Continued)

The three independent non-executive Directors represent more than
one-third of the Board, the proportion of which can satisfy what is
required by rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules whereby independent non-
executive Directors of a listed issuer must represent at least one third
of the board. No equity-based remuneration with performance-related
elements will be granted to independent non-executive Directors as
this may lead to bias in their decision-making and compromise their
objectivity and independence. The Board believes there is sufficient
independence element in the Board to safeguard the interest of
Shareholders.

Each of the executive and non-executive Directors has signed an
appointment contract with the Company for a period of three years
and is subject to termination provisions therein and provisions on
retirement by rotation and re-election of Directors as set out in
the second amended and restated memorandum and articles of
association of the Company (the “Second Amended M&A”) and the
code provision B.2.2 of the CG Code.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed a
letter of appointment with the Company for a period of three years
and is subject to termination provisions therein and provisions on
retirement by rotation and re-election of Directors as set out in the
Second Amended M&A and the code provision B.2.2 of the CG
Code. Pursuant to the code provision B.2.3 of the CG Code, any
further appointment of an independent non-executive Director, who
has served the Board for more than nine years, shall be subject to
a separate resolution to be approved by shareholders at general
meeting. All Directors are appointed for a specific term.

The Nomination Committee strictly adheres to the nomination policy
with regard to the nomination and appointment of independent
non-executive Directors, and is mandated to assess annually the
independence of independent non-executive Directors to ensure that
they can continually exercise independent judgement. The Company
has received written confirmation from each of the independent non-
executive Directors in respect of his independence in accordance
with the independence guidelines set out in rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent non-executive
Directors are independent.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Responsibilities of the Directors

The Board takes the responsibility collectively to oversee all major
matters of the Company, including the formulation and approval
of all policy matters, overall strategies, internal control and risk
management systems, and monitor the performance of the senior
executives. The Directors have to make decisions objectively in
the interests of the Company. To oversee particular aspects of
the Company’s affairs, the Board has established three Board
committees, including the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”),
the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) and the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) (together,
the “Board Committees”).

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning. The Board has also established mechanisms to ensure
independent views are available to the Board.

Independent advices are obtained from external professional advisers
to the Board. These advisers bring a fresh perspective to the Board’s
decision-making process and help to ensure that the Board receives
unbiased and objective advice. The Board shall review such practices
annually to ensure the implementation and effectiveness of such
practices.

A Director, including independent non-executive Director, who has a
material interest in a contract, transaction or arrangement shall not
vote or be counted in the quorum on any Board resolution approving
the same.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Responsibilities of the Directors (Continued)

The independent non-executive Directors are responsible for ensuring
a high standard of regulatory reporting of the Company and providing
a balance in the Board for bringing effective independent judgement
on corporate actions and operations, and are invited to serve on the
Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee.

The Board has delegated to the management, consisting of executive
Directors along with other senior executives, with the responsibilities
for implementing the strategy and direction adopted by the Board
from time to time and conducting the day-to-day management and
operations of the Group.

The Board has delegated to the Board Committees responsibilities
as set out in their respective terms of references. Further details
of the Board Committees are set out in the sections headed
“Audit Committee”, “Nomination Committee” and “Remuneration
Committee” below.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) on 22 January 2020 which sets out the approach to
achieve and maintain diversity on the Board in order to enhance the
effectiveness of the Board.

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development,
the Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development.

The Nomination Committee reviews and assesses the Board
composition on behalf of the Board and recommends the
appointment of new Directors, taking into account a number of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge, industry and regional experience, and length of service.
All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY (continueq)

The Board will consider setting measurable objectives to implement
the Board Diversity Policy and review such objectives from time to
time to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress made
towards achieving those objectives.

During the Year 2024, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the
implementation and the effectiveness of the board diversity policy and
the policy’s considered to have been effectively implemented. The
Nomination Committee has reviewed and considered that the Board
is characterised by sufficient diversity, in terms of the abovementioned
perspectives.

The Nomination Committee will review the implementation of the
Board Diversity Policy at least annually to ensure its continued
effectiveness.

The Company’s diversity philosophy including the gender diversity
was generally followed in the workforce throughout the Group. As of
the date of this report, 28.6% of Directors and 25% of total workforce
were female. The Company’s target as regards Board gender diversity
has been achieved within the expected timeline. The Company will
continue to promote diversity, including but without limitation, gender,
age, skills, background, experience diversity, at workforce levels.
The Company’s aim is to increase the representation of female in our
workforce to 30%, in the coming years.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”)
on 22 January 2020 which sets out the criteria and process in the
nomination and appointment of Directors, aims to ensure that the
Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the Company and to ensure the Board's continuity
and appropriate leadership. The Nomination Committee shall
identify candidates who are qualified/suitable to become a member
of the Board and to make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of candidates nominated for directorships. The selection of
candidates will be based on a range of selection criteria as set out
in the Nomination Palicy, including but not limited to, character and
integrity, qualification, potential contributions the candidate can bring
to the Board in terms of qualifications, skill, experience, independence
and gender diversity, the candidate’s willingness and ability to devote
adequate time to discharge duties as a member of the Board.
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NOMINATION POLICY (Continued)

For the appointment of Directors, the Nomination Committee will first
identify individual(s) suitably qualified to become Board members
and assesses the independence of the proposed independent non-
executive Director(s). Then, the Nomination Committee will make
recommendation to the Board for consideration, having regard to
the Board Diversity Policy and the Nomination Policy. The Board will
confirm the appointment of the suitable candidate or recommend the
candidate to stand for election at a general meeting of the Company.
The candidate(s) who is/are appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the Board will be subject to re-election
by Shareholders at the next annual general meeting after initial
appointment in accordance with the Second Amended M&A.

For the re-appointment of Directors, the Nomination Committee will
also consider the retiring Directors based on the Board Diversity
Policy and the Nomination Policy, and assess their independence
before the Nomination Committee makes recommendation to the
Board to consider. After the Board considers each retiring Directors,
the Board will recommend the suitable retiring Directors(s) to stand
for re-election at the annual general meeting in accordance with the
Second Amended M&A. The Shareholders will approve the re-election
of Directors at the annual general meeting.

The Nomination Committee shall review the structure, size,
composition (including skills, knowledge, experience and length
of service) of the Board on a regular basis at least annually and
diversity of the Board to ensure that it has a balance of expertise,
skills and experience and diversity of perspective appropriate to the
requirements for the business of the Company.

SEM Holdings Limited JEZERERAE]

RBER @

MEFEEMS  RAZECEARYEESN
REFEMEMARE UTHERBIIENTE
ENBUM -HE RREEGEAREFTEN
EZNTHRAIRLEREOESTERHER
BEUMHESEETE -EFTREIRSBEREA
NEEREREEALFEARARBDRRIAG M
BER-NEFEGLELUERBERNTRIUERAES
TR AL B B RIE AR IR IR 55 = TUEHE ST KM
RARMRD S ZERETERRBEFARE LA
REREEE

REMZETEEMS  REEZEETTREREE
FEHESTIEHRRERHREREREES
THREREEENEFERUEREZZUME
EZRATEREETNBUM - REFEERS
BREESF®R EFFRREE - REEFT KK
MARERCENREEETERRBERGTLE
BET - RRRBIERRBEAG LM ESEEE
EiEeo

REZEGAEVEFEHRAIEFTIHRE
RS EEN (BERE - NH - ERRRBE
) REFERES T LERREST TS
BHEVEERBEBIBNEENE KKK
B K% bR o



DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has set up a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) on
22 January 2020 with an aim to strike a balance between maintaining
sufficient capital to develop and operate the business of the Group
and rewarding the Shareholders. According to the Dividend Policy,
in deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining the
dividend amount, the Board shall take into account the following
factors:

(@) the Company’s operating results, actual and expected financial
performance;

(b) retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and
each of the members of the Group;

(c) the level of the Group’s debts to equity ratio, return on equity
and the relevant financial covenants;

(d) any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed
by the Group’s lenders;

(e) the Group’s expected working capital requirements, capital
expenditure requirements and future expansion plans;

()  the Group’s liquidity position;

(@ general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s
business and other internal and external factors that may have
an impact on the business or financial performance and position
of the Company; and

(h)y any other factors that the Board may deem appropriate and
relevant.

The declaration and payment of dividend by the Company is also
subject to any restrictions under the Companies Laws of the Cayman
Islands, any applicable laws, rules and regulations and the Second
Amended M&A. The declaration and payment of future dividend
under the Dividend Policy are subject to the Board’s determination
that the same would be in the best interests of the Group and the
Shareholders as a whole. The Board will review the Dividend Policy
from time to time and may exercise at its sole and absolute discretion
to update, amend and/or modify the Dividend Policy at any time as it
deems fit and necessary.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes
in order to effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
Every newly appointed Director has received formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment
to ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operations
of the Company and full awareness of Director’s responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements.

Directors have participated in the following trainings during the Year
2024:

EFNFEERERE

EEREYVBREELERAKEBLEUAMETH
BE TRERESRTEAGEEENMIEGHE
NERTHEEGEHEM SHEEEENE
AERZAERDEREEN - 2ARSAERY
AR LRERESFIEEERETLRNES R
EERN W2 NBEFR EHRRKAERE
RREETHNEERER -

A — T

\TECNFE - BERE2HELITE

Type of Training\“®

Name of Directors HENA 1R EE R =
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Woo Chu Fai (resigned on 26 January 2024) IR AE (RS 2 0F

—BZ+/<H#HD B
Mr. Wun Chi Wai FHERBRE B
Mr. Yu Chi Kwan ASERE B

Mr. Wan Man Keung (re-designated on 26 January 2024)

Non-executive Director
Mrs. Kan Wan Wai Yee Mavis

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lau Ping Cheung Kaizer

Ir Dr. Wong Wai Man Raymond

Ms. Chen Tak Yee Dickdy

Note:
Types of Training:

A:  Attending training sessions, including but not limited to, expert briefings,
seminars, conferences and workshops

B: Reading relevant newspaper, journals, magazines and relevant
publications
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BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 22 January 2020
with written terms of reference in compliance with rules 3.21 to 3.23
of the Listing Rules and the CG Code. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are to, among other things, (i) maintain relationship with
the Company’s external auditor by including but not limited to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of external auditors, (i) review of financial information of
the Company; and (i) oversight of the Company'’s financial reporting
system and internal control procedures.

The Audit Committee consists of Ms. Chen Tak Yee Dickdy and Ir
Dr. Wong Wai Man Raymond as the independent non-executive
Directors, and Mrs. Kan Wan Wai Yee Mavis as the non-executive
Director. Ms. Chen Tak Yee Dickdy currently serves as the chairlady of
the Audit Committee.

During the Year 2024, the Audit Committee has held four meetings
and performed the following works:

(a8) reviewed the Group’s annual audited consolidated financial
statements for the Year 2023 and interim unaudited consolidated
financial statements for the period ended 30 June 2024;

(b) reviewed the changes in accounting standards and assessed
their potential impacts on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements;

(c) reviewed the Group’s internal control system and related
matters; and

(d) considered and made recommendations on the change of the
external auditors of the Group, and the terms of engagement.

The Company’s annual results for the Year 2024 have been reviewed
by the Audit Committee.

There had been no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on
22 January 2020 with written terms of reference in compliance
with rules 3.25 to 3.27 of the Listing Rules and the CG Code. The
primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to, among other
things, (i) make recommendation to the Board on the policy and
structure for all directors and senior management’s remuneration
and remuneration policy; (i) review and approve the management’s
remuneration proposal with reference to the Board’s corporate
goals and objectives; (i) make recommendation to the Board on the
remuneration of all Directors and senior management; (iv) review and
make recommendations to our Board on other remuneration-related
matters, including benefits-in-kinds and their compensation payable
to our Directors and senior management; (v) consider salaries paid
by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities and
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group; and (vi) review and/
or approve matter relating to share schemes under Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules.

The Remuneration Committee consists of Mr. Lau Ping Cheung
Kaizer and Ir Dr. Wong Wai Man Raymond as the independent non-
executive Directors, and Mrs. Kan Wan Wai Yee Mavis as the non-
executive Director. Ir Dr. Wong Wai Man Raymond serves as the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The remuneration of the Directors and senior management are
determined with reference to the responsibilities, workload, the time
devoted and the performance of the Group. The Remuneration
Committee also ensures that no individual will be involved in
determining his/her own remuneration.

During the Year 2024, the Remuneration Committee has held two
meetings for reviewing the remuneration packages of the Directors
and the performance of them and making recommendations to the
Board.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continueqd)

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, details of the
remuneration of the senior management (other than Directors) by
bands for the Year 2024 are as follows:
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Number of
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Not exceeding HK$1,000,000 838 1,000,000/ 7T 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 75 22,000,000 7T 1

Further details of the remuneration of the Directors and the 5 highest
paid employees is set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements in this annual report.

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 22 January
2020 with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG
Code. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to,
among other things, () review the structure, size, composition and
diversity of our Board on a regular basis; (i) identify individual suitably
qualified to become Board members; (i) assess the independence
of independent non-executive Directors; (iv) make recommendations
to our Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors; and
(v) make recommendations to our Board regarding candidates to fill
vacancies on our Board and/or senior management.

The Nomination Committee consists of Mr. Lau Ping Cheung Kaizer
and Ms. Chen Tak Yee Dickdy as the independent non-executive
Directors and Mr. Wan Man Keung as the executive Director. Mr.
Lau Ping Cheung Kaizer currently serves as the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Nomination Committee (Continueq)

During the Year 2024, the Nomination Committee has held one
meeting for reviewing the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors, considering the qualifications of the retiring
Directors standing for election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company, reviewing the structure, size, and
composition of the Board and reviewing the Board Diversity Policy
and the Nomination Policy.

The Nomination Committee considered that the independent non-
executive Directors are independent and the aforesaid policies have
been maintained up to the date of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in code
provision A.2 of the CG Code.

During the Year 2024, the Board has reviewed the Company’s
corporate governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management, the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance with the Model Code, and
the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
corporate governance report.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’
RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year 2024 in
accordance with statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainty
that may cost significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern.

The statements of the independent auditor of the Group about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group are set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages
93 to 183 of this annual report.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2024 were audited by CL Partners CPA Limited (“CL
Partners”), who were appointed as the Company’s auditor on 15
November 2024 to fill the casual vacancy following the resignation
of Moore CPA Limited. Save as disclosed above, there has been no
other change of auditor for the preceding three years.

For the Year 2024, the remunerations paid or payable to the external
auditor, CL Partners, in respect of its services being the annual audit
fee for the Year 2024 was approximately HK$0.76 million.

For the year ended 31 December 2024 and up to the date of this
report, CL Partners provided non-audit services on reporting in
relation to the Group’s continuing connected transactions amounting
to HK$20,000. These non-audit services are engaged only as they are
more effective or economical than those available from other service
providers and will not constitute adverse impact on the independence
of the external auditor. The nature and ratio of annual fees to external
auditor for non-audit services and for audit services in 2024 have
been scrutinised by the Audit Committee.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has the responsibility to maintain effective risk
management and internal control systems in order to safeguard the
Group’s assets and investments and the Shareholders’ interest and
conducts a review on an ongoing basis. The Board acknowledges
that such risk management and internal control systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. The Board
conducted review of the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Company in aspects of the Group’s
financial, operational, compliance controls and risk management
functions through the effort of the Audit Committee.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (Continued)

The Group currently has no internal audit function and the Board
reviewed that it is more cost effective to engage an external
independent consultant instead of recruiting a team of internal
audit staff to perform such annual review function. During the Year
2024, LIF Consultants Limited (the “Consultant”) was engaged to
review the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
system. The Consultant worked closely with the Group to identify risk
components and risk owners in different aspects through interviews
with and workshops provided to the Group’s management. Also,
the Consultant assisted the Group to evaluate the adequacy of the
existing mitigation plans. In addition, an independent review was
conducted by the Consultant under the Committee of Sponsoring
Organisation of the Treadway Commission’s 2013 framework
(“COSO” to identify weaknesses and enhance the effectiveness and
efficiency of the internal control system of the Group. Last but not
least, findings and recommendations resulting from the review were
reported to and discussed with the Audit Committee and the Board,
and the Consultant concluded that no significant area of concern
that may affect the financial, operational, compliance control and risk
management of the Group has been identified.

The Board has the overall responsibility to maintain the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programs
and budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function and the Board had reached the conclusion that the Group’s
risk managements and internal control systems were in place and
effective.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s environmental,
social and governance strategy and reporting. The Board is
responsible for the Group’s ESG risk management and internal control
systems to ensure that the ESG strategies and reporting requirements
are met. Detailed information on the environmental, social and
governance practices adopted by the Group is set out in the section
headed “Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2024” of this
annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Yim Ka Wing and Mr. Wan Ying Pang have confirmed that for
the Year 2024, they have taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training. The biography of Ms. Yim and Mr. Wan set out
in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report.
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INSIDE INFORMATION POLICY

The Group has adopted a policy on disclosure of insider information
with the aim to ensure the insiders are abiding by the confidentiality
requirement and are fulfilling the disclosure obligation of the inside
information.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders and potential investors is essential for enhancing
investor relations and understanding of the Group’s business,
performance and strategies. The Company has adopted the
shareholders’ communication policy with the objective of ensuring
that the Shareholders and potential investors are provided with ready,
equal and timely access to balanced and understandable information
about the Company (including the financial performance, strategic
goals and plans, material development, governance and risk profile).
The Company also recognises the importance of timely and non-
selective disclosure of information, which will enable Shareholders
and potential investors to make the informed investment decisions.
The Company review the effectiveness of the shareholders’
communication policy annually.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains
the website of www.semhld.com; where up-to-date information
on the Company’s business operations and developments,
financial information, corporate governance practices and other
information are available for public access. Latest information of
the Group including annual and interim reports, report and other
corporate communications which will be sent to Shareholders and/
or published are updated on the websites of the Stock Exchange
(www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company’s website in a timely fashion.
Details of the arrangements for (i) dissemination of corporate
communications; and (ii) requesting printed copy of corporate
communications are published under the section “Investor Relation” in
the Company’s website.

The forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company will be held
on Friday, 13 June 2025. The notice of the annual general meeting,
setting out details of each proposed resolutions, voting procedures
and other relevant information, will be sent to the Shareholders at
least 21 days before the annual general meeting.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to article 58 of the Second Amended M&A, an extraordinary
general meeting shall be convened on the requisition of one or more
Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not
less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company having the
right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made
in writing to the Board or the Company Secretary for the purpose of
requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
Such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

There are no provisions in the Second Amended M&A or the Cayman
Islands Company Law for Shareholders to move new resolution at
general meetings. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may
request the Company to convene a general meeting in accordance
with the procedures set out in the preceding paragraph. As regards
proposing a person for election as a Director, please refer to the
“Procedure for Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election as a
Director” of the Company which is posted on the Company’s website.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests to the Board
through the Company'’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at
Unit 1, 4/F, Chai Wan Industrial City Phase II, 70 Wing Tai Road, Chai
Wan, Hong Kong (email: general@semhid.com).

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change to the Company’s constitutional documents
during the Year 2024 and up to the date of this report. The Second
Amended M&A is available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group are providing electrical-related E&M engineering
works mainly consisted of supply, installation and maintenance of
electrical system, for new and existing buildings in the projects of
commercial and residential development, hotel development, casino
development, public properties and hotel renovation in Macau and
Hong Kong and trading of electrical cables. The principal activities of
the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review on the Group’s business for the Year 2024 is set out under
the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this
annual report.

INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

The Listing was completed on 14 February 2020 and net proceeds
from the placing and public offer was approximately HK$71.0 million
(after deducting all listing related expenses), which had been fully
utilised as at 31 December 2023.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year 2024 are set forth in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on page 102 of this annual report. The Board does not
recommend the payment of a final dividend for the Year 2024 (Year
2023: Nil).

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting will be held on Friday, 13 June 2025.
A notice convening the meeting will be published in the Company’s
website and despatched to the Shareholders in the manner as
required by the Listing Rules in due course.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday,
10 June 2025 to Friday, 13 June 2025, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of Shares will be registered. In order to
establish entitlements of attending and voting at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company, all completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday,
9 June 2025.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five years is set out on page 184 of this annual
report. Such summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements for the Year 2024.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year 2024 are set out in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Details of borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2024 are set
out in note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s share capital are set out in note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements. The Company did not have any
treasury shares (as defined in Rule 1.01 of the Listing Rules) as at 31
December 2024.

DEBENTURES
The Company did not issue any debenture during the Year 2024.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Second
Amended M&A or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to
Shareholders.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF THE
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
Year 2024 and up to the date of this annual report.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2024, the Company has
reserves available for distribution to Shareholders of approximately
HK$28.1 million and of approximate HK$26.5 million, respectively.

Movements of the reserves of the Company and of the Group during
the Year 2024 are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
pages 182 and 105, respectively.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year 2024, the Group’s five largest customers and the
largest customer accounted for approximately 91.4% and 48.6%
(Year 2023: 97.4% and 89.9%) of the total revenue of the Group,
respectively.

The Group’s five largest subcontractors and the largest subcontractor
accounted for approximately 86.1% and 36.7% (Year 2023:
82.4% and 33.2%) of the total subcontracting cost of the Group,
respectively.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers and largest supplier accounted for approximately 87.0%
and 46.0% (Year 2023: 63.5% and 20.1%) of the Group’s total
purchases for the Year 2024, respectively.

Ready Electrical Metal Limited (‘Ready Electrical Metal”) is an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of REM Group (Holdings) Limited, of which
Mr. MK Wan is the chairman, an executive Director and a controlling
shareholder. Mr. MK Wan is also the chairman, an executive Director
and a controlling shareholder of the Company. During the reporting
period, Ready Electrical Metal was one of the Company’s five largest
suppliers and the procurement therefrom accounted for 46.0% of the
Group'’s total purchases.

During the reporting period, save as disclosed above, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors, their close
associates or Shareholders which, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, hold more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital,
had any interest in the Company’s five largest customers or suppliers.
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND OTHERS

Employees

The Group has maintained good relationship with our employees.
The Group offers to our employees salary, bonuses and other
allowances. In general, the Group determines employee salaries
based on each employee’s qualifications, position and seniority. The
Group has assessed the performance of our employees, which forms
the basis of our decisions with respect to salary raises, bonuses and
promotions.

Customers

The Group has established stable business relationships with our
major customers. Our long-term business relationships with our
major customers and suppliers would further enhance our market
recognition and enable us to attract more potential business
opportunities.

Suppliers and subcontractors

The Group carefully evaluates the performance of our suppliers and
selects them based on a number of factors such as pricing, quality
of material or equipment provided, timeliness of delivery and ability
to comply with our requirements and specifications. The Group will
review and assess their performance on an ongoing basis.

The Group also closely assesses the performance of our
subcontractors and select subcontractors based on their experience
relevant to the particular project as well as their availability and
fee quotations. The Group will review their performance on an
ongoing basis. Subject to the Group’s capacity, resource level,
cost effectiveness, complexity of the projects and customers’
requirements. The Group is accountable to our customers for the
works performed in a project, including those carried out by our
subcontractors.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS BHERERS

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group had the HE_Z_WNE+_A=+—HIEFER  &&E
following continuing connected transaction, certain details of which E#177T F3ITERER S HETHEREL
are disclosed in compliance with the requirements of Chapter 14A of TR BIE14AAZ IR EIRE o

the Listing Rules.

List of connected person who had transaction and the relationship EAREEETXZ LERMGNREE A T4 !
with the Group:

Name of Connected Person Relationship between the Connected Person and the Group
FEANLT&TE RAEA T EAE BRI %
Ready Electrical Metal Ready Electrical Metal is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of REM

Group (Holdings) Limited, of which Mr. MK Wan is the chairman, an
executive director and a controlling shareholder. Mr. MK Wan is also
the chairman, an executive Director and a controlling shareholder of
the Company.

LEERTEBALEERER (ER AERQ2INEZELZENE R
B MARBEEALESHEE ER) BRABNER 1T
EERERRF-FRABTETBEADIFE PTESRIZRER
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Details of the annual cap and the actual transaction amount for FAIFEFEXZHEE_Z_WNFE+_-_A=+—H
the year ended 31 December 2024 in respect of this continuing WEEEMNEE LERSERXTZEEFBUT ¢
connected transaction are as follows:

Actual

transaction

Nature of transaction Annual cap amount

RHUE FELR BEXZEHE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FHT

Purchase of products from Ready Electrical Metal BREERTEHEEER Less than 4,166
(Note) (M E) 10,000
1&5%10,000

Annual Report S E# & 2024 51



52

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EETRS

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continueq)

Note:

On 28 June 2024, Ready System Engineer Limited (Macau) (“Ready System
(Macau)”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as purchaser,
and Ready Electrical Metal, as supplier, entered into a framework agreement
(the “Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which Ready System (Macau)
agreed to purchase, and Ready Electrical Metal agreed to sell the products
from 28 June 2024 to 31 December 2026. Since Ready Electrical Metal is
a connected person of the Company as defined under the Listing Rules,
the Framework Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder
constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company, which are
subject to the reporting and announcement requirements, but are exempted
from the independent Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. For more details, please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 28 June 2024. The independent non-executive Directors
of the Company have reviewed the internal control procedures put in place
by the Company and the continuing connected transactions set out above
and have confirmed that the internal control procedures were adequate and
effective, and these continuing connected transactions were entered into
(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (i) on normal
commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the Group than terms
available to or from independent third parties; and (jii) in accordance with the
relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and
in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The auditor of the Company was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with the Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 (Revised), “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Based on the work performed,
the auditor of the Company has confirmed in its letter to the Board that
nothing has come to its attention that causes it to believe that the continuing
connected transactions entered into by the Group under the Framework
Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder during the year
ended 31 December 2024 (i) have not been approved by the Board; (i) were
not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with the terms of the
relevant agreements governing such transactions; and (i) have exceeded the
annual cap in respect of the year ended 31 December 2024 as set by the
Company.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as the connected transactions disclosed above, in respect of
which the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules have been complied with except as disclosed
in the paragraph headed “Connected Transactions — Continuing
Connected Transactions” in this annual report, none of the related
party transactions as disclosed in Note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements constituted connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year 2024 and up to the date of this annual
report are as follow:

Executive Directors

Mr. Woo Chu Fai (Chief Executive Officer)
(resigned on 26 January 2024)

Mr. Wun Chi Wai

Mr. Yu Chi Kwan

Mr. Wan Man Keung (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(re-designated on 26 January 2024)

Non-Executive Director
Mrs. Kan Wan Wai Yee Mavis

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lau Ping Cheung Kaizer
Ir Dr. Wong Wai Man Raymond
Ms. Chen Tak Yee Dickdy

In accordance with the Second Amended M&A, all Directors are
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years and
any new Director appointed by the Board to fill a causal vacancy or as
an addition to the Board shall hold office only until and submit himself/
herself for re-election by Shareholders at the next following general
meeting after appointment.

TRANSACTION, ARRANGEMENT OR
CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANT

Save as those disclosed in “CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS” in “DIRECTORS’ REPORT” and note 25 to the
consolidated financial information, no transaction, arrangement or
contract that is significant in relation to the Group’s business, to which
the Company, its holding company or subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted during the Year 2024.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial term of three years and are subject to
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Second Amended M&A.

The non-executive Director and the independent non-executive
Directors have been appointed for a fixed term of three years and
are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Second
Amended M&A.

Apart from the foregoing, none of the Directors being proposed
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a
service contract or a letter of appointment with the Company or any
member of the Group, which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 21 to 27 of this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to
the Listing Rules. The Company considers the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules as a code of conduct of the
Company regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having made
specific enquiries of the Directors, all the Directors have confirmed
that they have complied with the requirements of the Model Code for
the Year 2024.
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the retirement benefits schemes are set out in note 24 to
the consolidated financial statements.

REMUNERATIONS OF THE DIRECTORS AND
THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
individuals are set out in the note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements. The emoluments of the Directors and senior management
of the Group are determined by the Remuneration Committee with
reference to their relevant qualifications, experience, competence
and the prevailing market conditions. None of the Directors waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments for the Year 2024.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

Remuneration Committee is set up for reviewing the Group’s
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors
and senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance of the Directors and senior
management and comparable market practices.

The Company has adopted share option schemes as incentive
to eligible employees, details of the schemes are disclosed under
“Share Option Scheme” below. Details of the emoluments of the
Directors and five highest paid individuals are set out in note 11
to the consolidated financial statements. Details of the retirement
benefits scheme are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Second Amended M&A, the Directors and other
officers shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets
of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they shall or may incur or sustain
by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the
execution of their duties or supposed duties in their respective offices,
except such (if any) as shall be incurred or sustained through their
own fraud or dishonesty.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance coverage for
the Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against
the Directors and officers of the Group, thereby sustained or incurred,
arising from or incidental to execution of duties of his/her offices.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the Year 2024 and up to the date of this annual report, none
of the Directors or their respective associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) had any interest in any business which were in competition or
were likely to compete, either directly or indirectly with the Group’s
business which needs to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the
Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year 2024 was the Company, its holding
companies, or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors or their associates to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2024, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations, within the meaning of the SFO, which had to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
in which they are taken or deemed to have taken under such
provisions), or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein or which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code contained in the Listing Rules, were as
follows:

Long positions in the ordinary Shares
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Total number Approximate

of Shares and percentage
underlying of issued
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest Shares held (L) share capital
FR¥FRZ (7 R
HERARZ (5 BEITRAN
B4 517 #m4E (L) =Rl
(Note 1)
ozab,
Mr. MK Wan Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 2) 1,500,000,000 75%
FR®BEE REEGEEN#ED (1772)
Notes: HizE -

1. The letter “L” denotes a person’s “long position” (as defined under Part
XV of the SFO) in such Shares.

2. SEM Enterprises Limited (“SEM Enterprises”) is owned as to 77.0%,
20.0% and 3.0% by Mr. MK Wan, Mr. CW Wun and Mr. Yu respectively.
Hence, Mr. MK Wan is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by
SEM Enterprises under the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (continueq)

Long positions in the ordinary shares of associated

corporations of the Company
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Approximate

Total number percentage
Name of associated of shares of issued
Name of Directors Capacity/Nature of Interests corporations held (L) share capital
FriFien BEITREH
EEER 517w AR TS (L) L E =Rl
(Note 1)
oz,
Mr. MK Wan Beneficial owner, interest in a SEM Enterprises 7,700 77.0%
FRMBAgE controlled corporation, interest
held jointly with others
EREE A -NZEFEE Z#
mBEHMERERA 2 #m
Mr. CW Wun Beneficial owner, interest held SEM Enterprises 2,000 20.0%
FEREE jointly with others
BmEA A BHEMBHEFE
HBEz#m
Mr. Yu Beneficial owner, interest held SEM Enterprises 300 3.00%
BT E jointly with others
BmEAS A EEMBHEEA
FBEZ#m
Note: HizE -

1. The letter “L” denotes a person’s “long position” (as defined under Part 1.

NLEZATRZERONIFE (EERBHFK

XV of the SFO) in such shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had or was deemed
to have any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2024, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the
interests or short positions of the persons, other than the Directors or
chief executives of the Company, in the Shares or underlying Shares
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
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Long positions in the Shares RRRZEE
Total number Approximate
of Shares and percentage
underlying of issued
Name of Shareholders Capacity/Nature of interests Shares held (L) share capital
FrisR 9 &K BRITRAN
RR%TE B #ENE MR D 4R B(L) o E = e
(Note 1)
(Hfzt1)
SEM Enterprises Beneficial interest (Note 2) 1,500,000,000 75%
BEnm (Wa2)
Ms. Lam Yin Interest of spouse (Note 2) 1,500,000,000 75%
Mzt BoiBws (Hat2)
Notes: Wt

1. The letter “L” denotes a person’s “long position” (as defined under Part
XV of the SFO) in such Shares.

2. Ms. Lam Yin is the wife of Mr. MK Wan and is deemed to be interested in
the Shares which are interested by Mr. MK Wan under the SFO.

Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 December 2024, the Directors
were not aware of any person (other than the Directors and chief
executive of the Company) who had an interest and short position in
Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE DEED OF NON-
COMPETITION

Each of the controlling Shareholders has made an annual declaration
to the Company that for the Year 2024 and up to the date of this
annual report, he/she/it and his/her/its associates have complied
with the terms of non-competition undertakings (“Non-Competition
Undertakings”) given in favour of the Company which are contained
in the Deed of Non-Competition Undertaking. Details of the Non-
Competition Undertakings are set out in the section headed
“Relationship with the Controlling Shareholders” of the Prospectus.
The independent non-executive Directors have also reviewed the
status of compliance by each of the controling Shareholders with
the undertakings in the Non-Competition Undertakings and as far
as the independent non-executive Directors can ascertain, there
is no breach of any of the undertakings in the Non-Competition
Undertakings.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year 2024.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements that (i) will or may result in the
Company issuing Shares or (i) require the Company to enter into any
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing Shares
were entered into by the Company during the Year 2024 or subsisted
at the end of the Year 2024.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief on taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holdings of the Shares.

SEM Holdings Limited JEZERERAE]

BT AP EE

RIZ_NFEEREERFHRAH SERKE
EAARBRFHEREES  BAHEBEABEST
UAERBB/RZmAFHNAFE I EKE (RRF
A1) IR (BN ARFBAEZOR) - FAHF
AENF BRI BREEEEERR RN —
- BIUFATEZTEERSERRRETA
P ARGE L AENE R BBIUIFNTESS

[P N At

T B R AR FEGE 2R A o

BEESY
RIBomER BRI IREEENEEEL
SEEREAEABILENERRITHEN

ARt i 1R
AABEEN S MEEIURR SN
FEEERDATEEERAIEERAAD RS
BA SN ERAA BT I AR & R T AEB B
AT ETRADBE PR 217555 0

REBERR

ARBAAHERRRAFTE RO MEERRE
R o




SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 22 January 2020, the Company conditionally adopted the share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) as incentive or reward
for contributions that the eligible participants have made or may
make to the Group. Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the
Company may grant options to any employee, advisor, consultant,
service provider, agent, client, partner or joint-venture partner of the
Company or its subsidiary (including any Director or any director of
the Group’s subsidiaries) who is in full-time or part-time employment
with or otherwise engaged by the Company or any subsidiary at
the time when an option is granted to such person under the Share
Option Scheme or any person who, in the absolute discretion of the
Board, has contributed or may contribute to the Group (the “Eligible
Participants”) to subscribe for the Shares thereby linking their interest
with that of the Group.

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the Board may, in
their absolute discretion make offer to the Eligible Participants. The
Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years
from the date of adoption, after which period no further options will
be granted but the provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall
remain in force to the extent necessary to give effect to the exercise
of any options granted or exercised prior thereto or otherwise as may
be required in accordance with the provisions of the Share Option
Scheme.

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which options may
be granted at any time under the Share Option Scheme (together
with options which may be granted under any other share option
schemes) shall not exceed such number of Shares as equals to 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company at the Listing Date.

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted to each grantee (including both exercised or
outstanding options) in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of
the Shares in issue.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The subscription price for Shares under the Share Option Scheme
shall be determined by the Board, but in any event will not be less
than the highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares on the Stock
Exchange as shown in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock
Exchange on the offer date of the particular option, which must be a
business day; (i) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as
shown in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the offer date of the particular
option; and (i) the nominal value of a Share on the offer date of the
particular option.

There were no share options outstanding under the Share Option
Scheme nor were any share options granted, agreed to be granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Share Option Scheme
since its adoption date and up to the date of this annual report. The
total number of Shares available for grant under the scheme was
200,000,000 Shares, representing 10% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at the date of this annual report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”),
pursuant to which the Company may declare and distribute dividends
to the Shareholders to allow Shareholders to share the Company’s
profits and for the Company to retain adequate reserves for future
growth.

The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves
the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify the Dividend Policy at any time, and the Dividend Policy shall
in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by the Company
that dividends will be paid in any particular amount and/or in no way
obligate the Company to declare a dividend at any time or from time
to time.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Principal corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company are set out in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 28 to 46 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

As a responsible corporation, the Group is committed to maintaining
the highest environmental and social standards to ensure sustainable
development of its business. The Group has complied with all relevant
laws and regulations in relation to its business including health and
safety, workplace conduct, employment and the environment. The
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2024”, which forms
part of this annual report, is set out on pages 65 to 92 of this annual
report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2024, as far as the Board and
the management are aware, there was no material breach of or non-
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group
that has material impact on the business and operation of the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
the minimum public float required under the Listing Rules during the
Year 2024.
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REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and has
discussed auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters,
which include the review of the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the Year 2024.

AUDITOR

CL Partners was appointed as the auditor of the Company on 15
November 2024 to fill the casual vacancy following the resignation
of Moore CPA Limited. Save as disclosed above, there has been no
other change of auditor for the preceding three years.

The consolidated financial statements for the Year 2024 have been
audited by CL Partners, who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Wan Man Keung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2025
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT 2024

INTRODUCTION

The Group is principally engaged in provision of E&M engineering
services. Over a decade of development, the Group realises
Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) are indispensable
aspects to be incorporated in long-term development strategy. With
this regard, the Group gradually enhances operational practices and
develops ESG standards in a sustainable manner. Looking forward,
the Group commits to establish a corporate culture that is better
aligned with the expectations from stakeholders.

ESG governance structure

The Board holds the overall responsibility to oversee the Group’s
ESG objectives, strategies, priorities, targets and goals, as well as the
related policies and frameworks. Meetings are arranged regularly to
evaluate the effectiveness of the current policies and procedures and
develop appropriate solutions to improve the overall performance. In
addition, the Group’s business and functional departments worked as
ESG working groups, which assist to monitor the implementation of
relevant strategies and collect data in their respective areas.

Reporting boundary

The Group is pleased to present its Environmental, Social and
Governance Report (the “ESG Report”), which summarises the
Group’s initiatives and key performance indicators (“KPIs”) for the
Year 2024. The ESG Report covers the business impacts of its E&M
engineering services in Macau and Hong Kong.
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INTRODUCTION (continued) HREHEE @
Reporting principles HwREEA

The ESG Report has been prepared based on four reporting R&THIRBR/FE L RAIMRC2Fr&MIEE 1
principles which are in compliance with the Environmental, Social and & K & AR E155|HUIER S R BRER -
Governance Reporting Guide set forth in Appendix C2 to the Listing

The Group undertook materiality assessment to ensure the ESG Report addresses concerns
from stakeholders. The assessment started from identifying ESG issues from four different
aspects, including environmental protection, employment and labour practices, operating
practice and community investment. Based on the 24 issues identified, interviews and
questionnaires were conducted to collect opinions from internal and external stakeholders.
For details of the assessment result, please refer to the section headed “Materiality
assessment” in the ESG Report.

NEBEITER MG LB RESGIR S 7t 0 R BAFFH &R T - ST H@EREN A
ERAFIESCHERR > BIERIERE - BERS LER EEEAIKRMERE -RIEDHT
24 ZRE > AEEETHRRBESADT  URERBRINIFHENRR - BTG
ERMES A2 RAESGIRETEAM A —H&ie

To ensure stakeholders can have a better understanding of this ESG report, all
methodologies, assumptions, and source of conversion factor used to calculate the KPIs are
disclosed in respective sections in the ESG report.

AR DEEAET M T HRAESGR S FTERAN St ERRBREIIEENH A - RER
MERBIINESCIR SHE =R E o

Unless stated otherwise, the Group’s methods used to calculate the KPls are consistent with
last year.

BRARARPN FEBARSt ERBEERE RN EREAF -

This ESG Report is prepared on an objective and unbiased manner to ensure that the
information provided reflects the true picture of the Group’s performance.

RESGHREUFE - FRABHNARNFEE URERFMIRENEN KM AEEXENES
Bt
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INTRODUCTION (continueq) HREHE @
Stakeholder engagement FirE2H

Listening to stakeholders is one vital means in assisting the Group to  EERFHENER BB AEBR TR A E#H
identify and balance risks from difference perspectives, this helps it to B R FHEBHNEZE H Rz — > BN ANE T
develop policies and set corporate goals. The Group keeps abreast of THHRKRETHBIZ AEFEFBSBEERE
stakeholders’ expectations through various communication channels. 3 7 M ENBEE - BEIFNEBBREENE
Below sets forth the channels used for communication with respective B &5 ©

stakeholder groups.

Stakeholder Group Communication Channel
FirEEE BEERE

Customers ° Customer satisfactory surveys
xR s ERWMRERT

° Project meeting
. EBEE®H

Employees e Annual appraisal
== e FEFE

e  Training

o 3EH|

° Meetings

. 8@

o Internal announcement

o AEAM

Suppliers / Sub-contractors e Project meeting
s DEE o HEBEEH

e Supplier assessment
o (MG

e  Site visiting

e EHMER

Investors / Shareholders . General meeting
BEE KR e REKRE
e Annual and interim reports
o FERTHRE
e  Circular/ announcement
L =[N i

Community groups e  Corporate website
HERRE e REMELL

° Industrial dinner

e (TEME

e  Corporate social responsibility activities
e DEMNTEMLEE

The Group values the feedback from stakeholders. If you have any HXEBERFT M ENKRE=ZR - BT
thoughts and suggestions on the ESG Report, please share themto W HESGHREEETMNB IR EZ  HEB
the Group at general@semhld.com. general@semhld.comfi A EE D = o
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INTRODUCTION (continved) HREHE @
Materiality assessment B A MR

A materiality matrix was developed based on the replies from ZHEBEREFHENSEBSIEEA M ERE > W HE
stakeholders, which 16 critical issues were identified. Among the E16EEEZBE -NEERET > H944% A EE
critical issues, approximately 44% are related to employment and EHB TERBR > XN %EESEZREM
labour practices, followed by operational practices at approximately — U &I25%EAIRIZ{RE G R o

31%, and environment protection at approximately 25%.
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INTRODUCTION (Continued)

Materiality assessment (Continuead)

Details of the 24 issues identified for materiality assessment are listed

"B NFIRE - 18K

REEHE @
BAMFEE @

=530
=W=

wE

BAM B B24EZENF BRI T

below:

1 Air emission 0 13 Other benefits and welfare E
BE R H HiFaKRET]

2 Noise pollution ¢ 14 Prevention of child labour and forced labour E
I 5 g Fh1E&E T RogHlss T

3 Wastes management ¢ 15 Safety working environment and occupational E

hazards

BEEYEIR ZEMNITEIREABEGRS

4 Dust pollution 0 16 Development and training E
9 EES 4 ERRIE

5 Water use and efficiency 0 17 Quality assurance Q
KERFERARME EERE

6 Energy use and efficiency 0 18 Protection of intellectual property rights Q
BERFEA R E IREFHERE

7 Packaging materials 0 19 Consumer data protection Q
BLEEARY HEEERHMRE

8 Natural resource management 0 20 Anti-corruption Q
RABRER REE

9 Climate change 0 21 Whistle-blowing policy Q
IR BHWER

10 Employment management E 22 Supply chain management Q
BRESE HrEREIE

11 Discrimination and equal opportunity E 23 Sub-contractor management Q
AR TERE NEHEIE

12 Promotion and compensation system E 24 Community investment
Eawd i ksl =3 HEXSE
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group is dedicated to identify sources that could directly or
indirectly impact the environmental from its operation. Primary areas
of concern include the usage of materials and resources, waste
management, water pollution and air emission. When environmental
risks are detected, the Group takes proactive measures to address
these sources, striving to minimise their impact while exploring
sustainable alternatives. An environment management system has
been established, emphasising wastes reduction and resources
conservation and enhancing operational efficiency. These key
initiatives will be discussed in detail below.

During the Year 2024, the Group was not prosecuted for any breach
of any applicable environment laws and regulations, including but
not limited to Law no. 2/91/M regarding the environment law of
Macau, Law no. 8/2014 regarding the law of prevention and control
of ambient noise, Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Chapter 311 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) and Waste Disposal Ordinance (Chapter 354 of
the Laws of Hong Kong).

Emissions

Sources of emissions

The Group’s E&M works primarily involve the supply, installation and
maintenance of various electrical system such as energy supply
system, escalator and lift, heating system, ventilation system, air
conditioning system, low voltage system, distribution board and
switchboard, communication lines system, building automation
system, lightning protection system, fire detection and protection
system, security and alarm system, and plumbing and drainage
system.

These works are largely manual in nature and do not require intensive
heating process (e.g. welding), or the use of heavy machines and
equipment. As such, air emissions resulting from heating and fuel
combustion activities are minimal.

SEM Holdings Limited JEZERERAE]
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continueq
Emissions (Continued)

Sources of emissions (Continued)

For waste management, the Group does not generate any hazardous
waste. Wastage of construction materials is the only non-hazardous
waste generated from its operations. These wastes primarily include
scraps materials, such as cut-offs from cables and copper, generated
during the installation process due to difference in size of the materials
employed and the dimension of the working structure. The amounts
of wastes generated from these works are limited, and scraps
are disposed to on-site collection facilities which are managed by
employers or main contractors.

General activities associated with the Group’s business operations
will also generate emissions. They include use of gasoline fuels,
electricity and water at staff quarters, fuels consumption by motor
vehicles for travelling between construction sites, and paper usage for
construction drawing and general documentation.

Measures and initiatives

Despite that the emissions from the Group’s operations are minimal, it
remains committed to continuously exploring opportunities for greener
operation. To reinforce the Group’s dedication to sustainability, the
Group signed the “BEC Net-zero Carbon Charter - Action Signatory”
launched by Hong Kong’s Business Environment Council during the
Year 2023 embarking its decarbonisation journey toward net zero.

Waste management is always a crucial subject for the Group as it
creates great cost-saving opportunities. With this regard, the Group
reviews consistency of workings, drawings, and specifications to
avoid wastages of material as a result of possible re-work. For
procurement, the Group purchases materials of the most suitable
size to reduce excessive cut-offs and re-use scraps materials where
possible.

Regarding to air emissions, the Group promotes resource
conservation and operational efficiency to reduce emissions for its
activities from staff quarters and general offices. For details of the
targets, measures and initiatives, please refer to the section headed
“Use of resources” in this ESG Report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued) IRIFRE @
Emissions (Continued) BEY @)
Measures and initiatives (Continued) e E=E @)
Below sets out the KPIs for different types of emissions for the Year =~ TFXEHFIAFRE MM S _NEE KR
2024 and Year 2023. - FENRREIIEE
Unit 2024 2023
B —EmE Sy

Gaseous fuel consumption emissions  RESIAELHEEHEY

NOx emissions ﬁ%m EEERR kg T2 13,487.20 106,523.12
SOx emissions ine=Nokz1356/) kg T2 67.44 532.62
Vehicles emissions HEHRY
NOx emissions [RESTHRY kg T3 0.85 0.93
SOx emissions =R k=6 kg T2 0.02 0.01
PM emissions PMEEHY) kg T2 0.06 0.07
Greenhouse gas emission (“GHG”) BERBEHERY U= 815K
in COze EE:EH)
Scope 1 - Direct emissions #HEN-BEERWY
Stationary combustion sources EE WRIER tonnes M 0.22 175
Mobile combustion sources BENNER tonnes M 3.49 2.69
Scope 2 - “Energy Indirect” emissions BE2- TR H Y
Electricity purchased SNEES Note 1 fifz£1  tonnes M 42,69 83.06
Scope 3 - Other indirect emissions EERE Rl S 16y
Paper waste disposed at landfills HEBERERER tonnes M 9.05 12.35
Electricity used for processing fresh BT ER P BRIk K
water and sewage by government SKERNEN
department Note 2 fif£2  tonnes i 0.07 0.24
Total GHG emissions BERBHMASE tonnes M 55.52 100.09
Total GHG emissions per average BEANIRERBHMEE tonnes/
number of employee employee
/1’8 0.93 1.30
Non-hazardous waste BEEEY
Paper R tonnes [ 1.89 2.57
Total non-hazardous waste per average BENMESEENES tonnes/
number of employee employee
/B8 0.03 0.03
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continueq)

Emissions (Continued)

Measures and initiatives (Continuea)
Notes:

1. The emission factors used for the calculation of GHG emissions in CO2e
for electricity and gas purchased under Scope 2 - “Energy indirect”
emissions are as follows:

a. 0.608 kg/kWh for electricity purchased from Companhia de
Electricidade de Macau (Source: CEM Sustainability Report 2023)

b. 0.660 kg/kWh for electricity purchased from HK Electric
Investments Limited (Source: HK Electric Investments Sustainability
Report 2023)

2. The emission factors used for the calculation of GHG emissions in
CO2¢ for electricity used for processing fresh water and sewage by the
government department under Scope 3 - Other indirect emissions is
0.157 kg/m3 for Macau (Source: Macao Water’'s Annual Report 2023).

Water consumption for the Group’s Hong Kong premises is not
accounted for in the above analysis, as water is supplied by the building
management and shared among multiple tenants.

IRIZREE @
BE Y @

BhE R 18:% @)

ARFEEE? TEREZ BERPAEE N RRA
RZBEERE_SCREEHRABOT

a. CEFBNRMSERABFMBEENA0.608F
%/ TRE KR RFHEHN T _=F0
FEERRS)

b. BIEEHREERARFEEA0.660T
%/ TRE CGRR: BEBARE_T_=
FORBERRE)

AR stEBES TEMEE) PER B PR E
FKEEKABZRERE_ALKEENR
80 BMPIME 20157 F 52 1L K GRIR 1 BPI8
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)
Use of resources

The Group actively promotes green concepts to raise employees’
awareness about the environmental impact stemming from daily
operations. In order to build a green working environment, the Group
continuously develops and implements environmental policies and
practices in achieving resources saving and efficiency.

ENERCY SAVING
BRA9AETR

GREEN PROCUREMENT
KRB

e Evaluate the usage

of materials to avoid conditioning at an

IRONI ENTi\L,_SOGIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT 2024

PAPER SAVING

e Maintain the office air- e Equip photocopier with
one tray for single-sided

IRIZRE @

BHIRER

AEEMBEGRESOES USSETHAEE
ERERNBIE BN E R 5 EGANTIE
FE 1 » s g B R IR 451 T B BRI B EUE R AR L
BIREFEAA MK o

@

WATER SAVING
EIES)ERIS

BN 4R

* Review water bills
to detect abnormal

overstock average temperature of paper and another for consumption
e Purchase supplies with 25 degrees Celsius new paper e Inspect water leakage
recycled content e Switch off lights, air- ® Encourage double-sided regularly
* Select energy efficiency conditioners and all other printing o BEKEBBEUEHES
electrical appliances electronic devices when e Promote the use of JHFE
not in use

o SHEM IR ER BN B

PEFBS s MAELRTFHIRER
R R 25 .

» BBERIEULAYFEM

° _‘\7-Y< /A/—

&Fﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂfﬁ B4

electronic communication ¢ = HR#GE RIS
and documentation
R BB —E AR

%%EH\EEE’JNEE%&% (i
AR EMRBIATE

o SEIELEITED

o RIBEAE

Electricity and water usage at the Group’s offices and staff quarters
represent its primary resource consumption. To ensure the
implementation of a low-carbon workstyle, the Group’s ESG working
group actively reviews electricity and water usage by monitoring
utility bills to identify any irregular consumption patterns and promptly
investigating significant abnormal usage.

In 2024, the Group faced a business downturn, resulting in the
termination of several leasehold offices and staff quarters upon
expiration of lease terms. Accordingly, the resource consumed
had been reduced significantly compared to the previous year.
Nevertheless, the Group remains committed to sustainability and
has set a target to reduce resource consumption intensity by 5% by
2030, with 2024 serving as the baseline year.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continuec)
Use of resources (Continued)

Below sets out the KPIs for the consumption of respective sources for
the Year 2024 and Year 2023.

“ETTNFIRIE - 1 REBRS

IREBEFRE @
BRER @)

TRIBZEZ_MEER T _-FEKESH
RHFER R R IE ISR

Unit 2024 2023
B —E-mE —EBT=
Energy consumption AETRHE
Offices and workshops WAERTH KWh T E.B¥ 58,122.00 72,579.00
Staff quarters BIE:E kWh T EB 8,572.00 56,392.00
Energy consumption per average number  lEE ABREREES KWh/ 1,111.57 1,674.95
of employee employee
TERE/EE
Water consumption Note 1 KHEE M1
Offices and workshops WRAERTEG mé 35K 19.00 4.00
Staff quarters BIEE me 35K 213.00 730.00
Water consumption per average number B2 ASFKE mé/ 3.87 9.53
of employee employee
UsK/EE
Notes: Bt -

1. Water consumption for the Group’s Hong Kong premises is not
accounted for in the above analysis, as water is supplied by the building
management and shared among multiple tenants.

2. The premises where the Group operates did not encounter any issue in
sourcing water.

3. The disclosure regarding the use of packaging materials is not relevant to
the Group’s businesses.

1. RNEBEEBYEZRKEBLRMA LRI
KEHAEEERRA—HETHSERA LR

2. FEREESMIREBNKRERBE

3. BEMEMERMNIRERAEEERER-
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continuea

The environment and natural resources

Despite the Group’s E&M works will not have direct significant impact
to the environment, the quality of its works may lead to serious
environment issues, such as unintentional leakage, if the systems
are not properly installed. The Group committed to execute a robust
quality management system to ensure that the system can be
operated as intended. Details of the quality management system are
discussed under the section headed “Product responsibility” in the
ESG Report.

Climate change

With response to the defining issue of our time, the Group has
identified climate-related risks and evaluate the potential financial and
operational impacts on its business operation during the Year 2024.
With reference to the recommendations of the Task Force on Climate
related Financial Disclosures framework, the climate-related risks and
the corresponding mitigation measures are as follows:

Judging from the labour-intensive operations of the Group, acute risks
arising from storm, fold and heatwave will pose significant delay to the
projects’ progress. During the extreme weather events, workers may
not be able to commute to clients’ work site and affect the delivery
schedules of raw materials. In additions, the structure installed and
materials on site will also be exposed to risk of damage, resulting in
financial losses. On the other hand, as majority of the Group’s works
are performed indoor, gradual changes in mean temperatures will lead
to higher chronic risk of occupational hazards due to stuffy working
environment.

Regarding to the physical risks identified above, project meetings will
be held regularly so that action plan can be developed timely to rectify
any potential delays. Also, precautionary measures to safeguard the
structure installed and materials on site are employed prior to possible
extreme weather events. They include, among others, (i) inspecting
drainage inlets to ensure water discharge will not be blocked and
installing water pump, if necessary, (i) using plastic sheeting to
keep floodwater out for temporary protection, and (i) wrapping and
securing materials on site.

Furthermore, the Group has adopted and implemented the “Guidance
Notes on Prevention of Heat Stroke at Work” issued by Labour
Department to prevent workers from suffering heatstroke. Measures
include () providing cool drinking water to avoid dehydration; (i)
relocating equipment that generate heat and extracting hot air from
the workplace; (i) installing ventilation fans to enhance air flow and
promote heat dissipation and (iv) arranging work shifts and providing
adequate rest period.
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SOCIAL - EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR
PRACTICES

Employment

Human resources are the cornerstone of the Group, and the Group
commits to shoulder the responsibility to provide them with safe
working environment and support their career advancement.

The Group is subject to labour laws and regulations which includes,
but not limited to, Labour Relations Law, Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance, Social Security System, laws and regulations for the
employment of non-resident worker, regulation on prohibition of illegal
work and lists of restricted and prohibited works for minors.

To ensure compliance with the relevant labour laws and regulations,
the Group has established human resource management system to
govern, among others, recruitment process, hiring and termination
procedures, promotion and compensation system, health and safety
management and training and development program of the Group.

The Group respects human rights and strictly prohibited any act of
discrimination in the workplace. To ensure this can be eliminated,
standard performance criteria are used to ensure that every
employee are evaluated equally and consistently. Gender, age, race,
skin color, nationality, religion and political affiliation will never be a
factor for consideration of performance evaluation. In addition, the
Group encourages employees to voice out if any dishonorable act is
observed.

As of 31 December 2024, the Group had a total of 50 (Year 2023: 72)
employees and directors with direct employment relationship, and the
overall Group’s employee turnover rate was 64% (Year 2023: 44%).
During the Year 2024, the Group hired 17 employees for replacement
of staff attrition throughout the year, within which approximately 82%
were employees for project department.
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B-EBAMEEER ﬁﬂ&%ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂf; (e
22 EEURAEENIEINIRE RS -

AEBEEABLEREZIETFISIEME
RITR -BEELEZFTH ZACHARES
MIERRENSHEEETFE—ROTEE
AFi B Be BB REKRBGERE
TEUBBEREZNETRBREER I KEE
BEEEZEREMNARTARKEBRESER

BHE_Z-_WE+"B=+—H > &REEHAES50
H(CEZ=ZEE 72%) BEEEBREGHES
RES AEBNEREERAEXA4% (T
TZEE I 44%) R _E_NEE AEREE
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SOCIAL - EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR HE-RBERFIER @
PRACTICES (Continued)
Employment (Continued) EE @
Below set forth KPIs of the Group’s employment: TS AEEREBHRERERIEE
2024 2023
ZEmE =
Number of Turnover Number of Turnover
employees rate employees rate
EBEAK K= BEAH TMARE
By gender RIS
Male B4 38 69% 58 44%
Female pegis 12 46% 14 45%
By age group HRERAERB 92
30 or below 30 ST 4 100% 16 47%
31 -50 31E505% 26 60% 34 41%
51 or above 518 a3 E 20 48% 22 46%
By job position BIEE MRS
Top and senior management  RE KRS REEE 16 6% 18 32%
Middle management HREEE 15 97% 22 47%
Entry level 4k 19 78% 32 49%
By geographical region i E 2 5
Macau A 18 41% 16 56%
Hong Kong 58 32 73% 56 40%

Note: The employee turnover rates are calculated using the number of  fifz2 . EERKIXEFEREEANEGU_S _NEE
employees leaving employment divided by average number of I EE ANEETE o
employees for the Year 2024.
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SOCIAL - EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR
PRACTICES (Continued)

Health and safety

Risks of accidents and injuries to workers in construction sites are
inherent. The Group has established occupational health and safety
management system to minimise accidents in the workplace and
ensure work sites are operated in compliance with relevant law and
regulation. In Year 2024, the Group did not receive any prosecutions
in relation to occupational health and safety. The Group was reported
2 (2023: 21) incidents of work injuries, which lead to 168 (2023:
1,078) lost days. The Group will continue to evaluate the potential
causes leading to work injuries and implement corresponding
measures to minimise the occurrence of workplace injuries. The
Group is pleased that no work-related fatalities have been occurred in
the past three years.

PERSONAL SAFETY AND EDUCATION
ABRZRHE

o

e Distribute safety manuals to all workers

e Offer training courses to ensure workers are familiar audit

with the safety rules ©
e \Wear personal protective equipment °
o WA L NIKEZR 2 FH

o IRHEIFIIRE  LRERTIAAEZERR .
s ZHEANEEE .

—
l"
-

e Appoint registered safety auditor to conduct a safety

HE-EBRERFIER @

BERAZE

BETMTANSESHREEREBEEMHE K
EEEEURERBRATE2EERAS LB THE
BN SESCRER D THEE T IR EAR A=
BFEREE R _ S _NEE  ZAEFTERE
EHBERBERZENEMETR AKEBFKRST
QR (ZEZ=F 1 21%) ITHEEMH > BT 1688
“ET=F1,07818) BEANIEH AEE
B ETHER THENEBERRE WS 8RR
MR AR EMR LD TESEHMNEEE o REBM
AERBA-FTEEFHATERMBANECSE
a—yo

SITE SUPERVISORS
THEE

Perform site visits and inspections regularly
Stop/suspend any unsafe acts and dangerous
operations

Review safety rules and policies regularly
IEEAMEZ Bt BETRRE

s EHETEMERKRE
o B /EEEAFZENTARERIEE
s EHBERZE2RA KRR

EMERGENCY PROTOCOL
P& =

®

* Report to site supervisor to ensure injured worker °
receives immediate medical treatment

e Report such work injury to the Labour Affairs Bureau/ °
Labour Department and insurer within the stipulated
time °

e MITMTERE  UEFRZELALRER AR R&

s EREFREABSE TEHR,H ITRARBABR
SERLE

(=]

l.\ MACHINE MAINTENANCE

HEBRRE

Check to ensure all machines are in good condition
before they are put into service
Maintain an updated list of machines to ensure regular

maintenance is performed

ERAEARETREUEFRAA SRR RFR

s REMBNENBELURFATERRE
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SOCIAL - EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR
PRACTICES (Continued)

Development and Training

As an E&M engineering company, the development and training
program heavily focus in the safety area. Due to the nature of the
Group’s operating practice, it often hires foreign workers from labour
quota and engages sub-contractors to carry out its works. As such,
the Group must provide adequate safety training to ensure employees
and employees of sub-contractors are familiar with the Group’s safety

policy.

QOur training programs are developed on project basis, this is because
the risk of injuries associated to the works content may vary. The
Group training programs cover various aspects which include, among
others, machine operation, work at height, work in hot weather, on-
site materials management, electricity application, fire prevention and
emergency procedures.

During the Year 2024, the Group offered a total of 2,390 (Year 2023:
3,260) hours of internal safety training courses to 291 (Year 2023:
244) workers, including our employees and employees of sub-
contractor, and the average training hours completed per worker
was approximately 8 (Year 2023: 13) hours. As the employees of
sub-contractor do not have direct employment relationship with the
Group, the calculation for percentage of employees trained for sub-
contractor is not applicable.

SEM Holdings Limited JEZERERAE]

HE-EBRERFIER @

R Rt

ERRETREAR  MEAEIISHE TEMER
B -ARNTERSERHROME HEEK
SIFRRERMEIANTLERYBEEARIIE
Ft > AEBLAERHBENNRZ2IEI > UERF
BERDEHENEEATFIEENZEHR-

FEBEBEIG BB IRFEEMSIE > IETHER
S TERBERNZERBRAIERTR A&
WiEgstE R EREREE AP EEHE1R
F-BEFE -BREREIF -THMHEE -8
HER Bk R ERART

RIZZWEE > KERBE201% (TEZ=
FE 244%) TA (BEEMANVEERSEEN
BE) IBHEH2,300 (CEZ=FE : 3,260) &
N R Z2EERE 88 T AT TFY
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SOCIAL - EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR
PRACTICES (Continued)

Development and Training (Continued)

HE-EBRERFIER @

BB R IE

2024 2023
= 11}- 2 TET=F
Percentage Average Percentage Average
of employees training of employees training
trained hours trained hours
ZillEE Fig ZilleE T
Bt b1 Bt IR 2
Workforce by gender RN DHES
Male Bt 100% 14 98% 10
Female g 33% 14 36% 9
Sub-contractor SEH N/A RER 7 N/A R 14
Workforce by job position RIREUESNES
Top and senior management RERSHREERE 44% 11 78% 11
Middle management RAREIRE 80% 9 100% 10
Entry level 4R 100% 16 63% 10
Sub-contractor SEH N/A REF 7 N/A R 14
Note: The percentage of employees trained is calculated using number of  fi . ZIEREBHEEZIIEEAE U -ZT —NO
employees trained divided by number of employees at the end of the FEEEAHGHE.
Year 2024.
Labour standards & T A

The Group strictly prohibits any child or forced labour, or any unfair
treatment to our employees and does not employ staff who are
below 18 years of age. With this regard, the Group has established
recruitment procedure which requires that identity, age and other
personal information of all job applicants must be verified to ensure
that they are physically and conditionally qualified to be hired. If any
incidents of the above are discovered, the Group will immediately
stop the child from working, report to the local labour bureau in time
for any incidents of child labour and investigate the cause and factor
leading to forced labour. In addition, disciplinary actions will be taken
to punish the wrongdoer.

During the Year 2024, there were no reported non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations relating to preventing child or forced
labour.

AEBBREILEMETIHAGSE T i ES
FHERAAFRFE T AEEABI8KUTE
Tomltt 7EECHIERBRER  EXLEARZ
EFARBENS O FREREMEAER X
ERRENIERMFHENTERAER - MEIRE
AL ES > AEBR IR IEZZETF &
ROEMBFHRESENELSRN FAEEWA
H5% THREAKREE I > RE B TR HREAC
BED BIAERE-

N TECNEE  AERTERSERNERERH
By 1E & T a5 55 TRVABRERIERAYIE R °
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SOCIAL - OPERATING PRACTICES
Supply chain management

Suppliers and sub-contractors are vital business partners of the
Group as they contribute to assist the Group towards quality
excellence. Supplier / sub-contractor management policy was
established which defines the robust requirements and procedures in
monitoring the selection of suppliers and sub-contractors. Standard
acceptance procedures, such as obtaining attainment and business
registration documents, sample testing and site visiting, will be
performed before new supplier and sub-contractor are engaged. All
approved suppliers and sub-contractors are recorded in an internal
approved list and are subject to regular evaluation. Generally, the
Group will invite more than one supplier / sub-contractors from the
approved list for each order / sub-contracting work for quotation
purposes. During the selection and evaluation process, the Group
will consider factors including, among others, product quality, on-site
performance, labour management, safety management system and
environmental responsibility.

The Group also requires its supply chain partners to uphold the
Group’s principles of ethical business conduct thereby minimizing the
environmental and social risk that may be encountered. Any suppliers
or sub-contractors with inferior past records of material environmental
or social accidents, such as excessive pollution discharges to the
environment, and exploitation of workers, will be removed from the
approved suppliers list.

HE-EEER
g IR

HEBRDEEAEEREFEENEBSF
B REARERNBHAEREREMRES
HIFHEM AEEERUHRER SDEEEE
B ZHRAEEZEEREHER RO EEE
BRERREF RERMEESRDEEZA
RAITRENEWNER NEREEREEET
X AR RIRSER - FRARANMHER
o BBk A RIE R WRETER
e —RME  AEBRRUBAIBERF — 4
UEHER " DEENEHEIE DEIEE
THRE-RRAEATEBRET ZEEBRETRE
mEB - RERR - FTER - Z2EEBHER
RIEEFEERAR-

AEBERAHERESEBRHARATERND
FEBRTRA MBI EBRNRERTE
EEEERE - EABERERNRIENLETER
FEHAFREHRNHEERND SR MaREH
BB Z RS RY R FH T > R ™A
B rhfR o

2024 2023
—EMME B =F

Number of suppliers by geographical region ##ith& 2| B FERE S E
Hong Kong 58 52 111
Macau RS 14 34
China = 1 3
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SOCIAL - OPERATING PRACTICES (continueq)
Product responsibility

Quality control is one crucial process to the Group’s business as
this is the foundation leading to the Group’s success. The Group
established comprehensive policy governing the required procedure
to perform at the inception and completion of a project. To ensure the
quality of project implementation, members are assigned to project
teams according to complexity and scale of the project, and each
team member was assigned with specified duties.

Site supervisor is responsible for monitoring the quality of works
of employees and sub-contractors in real time. Project’s progress
meetings are held regularly to ensure our works meet customers’
specification, completed according to schedule and comply with all
relevant regulatory requirement. Furthermore, inspection checks are
performed for all materials, machineries and equipment delivered
before they are employed.

In addition, the Group, together with the customers, will perform site
acceptance test for all electrical system installed to ensure conformity
to specifications. If any defects are detected within the defect liability
period, the project manager will investigate, and workers will be
arranged to address the defects. During the Year 2024, the Group
has not received any complaint or request for product recall from our
customers due to quality, safety and health issues in relation to works
performed.

As the Group’s business process does not involve advertising and
labelling practices nor possess significant consumer data, the impacts
relating to the protection of intellectual property and consumer data
are relatively immaterial to the Group. Nevertheless, to protect our
brand, all of our business logos has been properly registered. In the
event of intellectual property infringement by third parties, the Group
will engage its legal counsel to take necessary action against them.
In addition, all the software and information system employed in daily
operations are with legitimate licenses. On the other hand, contracts
between the Group and its employees contain a confidentiality clause
to prevent the disclosure of sensitive information. Proper internal
control procedures are employed in the Group’s operational and
information technology system to ensure that information will only be
accessed by authorised personnel / department of the Group.

" NFIRIE - TS REBRRS

HE-ZEERw

BEERTATEREBHNERERRE REAES
FEBBRERINVRE -AEBEFIERENE
BRBRTREFLBATHREFHEEER &
BEREBBRNER  ~EERFEEBNERN
RREODEEERSERE  EAEREBMRE
DECIEERS -

ITHErEASNREERERDEBNIFE
R AEERERRTEEEESS  UEFRL
B EERERKMAATN W5 A RS
EER I REERFERAZA HEXNTH
FREME AR EETIRE -

o AEERRT A ERHPMAECSZENER
RAETRGRUCAE > LIRS R HR
RESTEHNEREARE BECERET
AE WL T AREZFRB - RS ZMMF
ErAERTEZETFPEMATIENEE
Ze2hEEFAEMELNEFNRFNERED

HRTEENEBSRABRTE I RESRIZHIE
B EEEHEE R RILRRENHER
RHBEERBEAMNT ENAEREMSHE I
AEE-RM > RRERFPIVDE > RFIAEN
BERADELZAAM-HE=ZASRLNHAE
# FEERBFELZREREE RIS ENTT
Beltih BEEEPERNMERGTREER
MUBGEAFIRE - Z—HH AEEEHES
SR EHEA —BRBRRC U ISR E R
AR sEENEEREGEENKARERAE
ERREEZERIRERF  UEFRERETHEERR
BAB /EFER-
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SOCIAL - OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)
Anti-corruption

The Group commits to maintain a corporate culture with integrity,
probity and accountability through the establishment of relevant anti-
corruption policies. Code of conduct, conflict of interest policy and
privacy and confidentiality information were covered in the Group’s
internal control manuals which clearly defines the moral standards
it desired. In additions, corruption, bribery or fraud in any form is
strictly prohibited. Whistleblowing policy was established to allow
employees to report any misconduct or malpractice events observed
on a confidential platform and will be duly investigated by the Group’s
senior management or audit committee. Any matters of genuine
concern are to be thoroughly investigated by the management and
actions will be taken accordingly.

Trainings and employee handbook, including information relating
to anti-corruption, were arranged and circulated to employees
and directors at the commencement of employment and during
employment (if there are any updates) to ensure employees are aware
of the philosophy, objectives, and policies of the Group.

During the Year 2024, there was no bribery, extortion, fraud or money

laundering found, and no legal case regarding corrupt practices
brought against the Group or its employees.
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HE-ZEERw
REB

AEBRNREBST EHERREBBRRTH
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BER HRBAEMRIERRE I &
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SOCIAL - COMMUNITY

Community investment

The Group commits to support the communities through social
participation and had dedicated its focus in contributing to the
environment, labour needs, and health. The Group actively shares
social affairs to employees so as to increase their awareness to the
community, and eventually repay the society through participating
in social events and helping vulnerable groups. Looking forward,
the Group hopes to join hands with stakeholders to better serve the
community.

The foremost priority for the Group is to provide our employees with
a safe and healthy and comfortable working environment. To reinforce
our commitment, the Group enrolled in the “Mental Health Workplace
Charter” and “Joyful@Healthy Workplace Charter” for the second
consecutive year. All employees were encouraged to participate in
workshops jointly organised by the Department of Health, the Labour
Department and the Occupational Safety and Health Council during
the Year 2024. The main objectives of these programmes were to
promote mental well-being at workplace and create a joyful and
healthy working environment. Additionally, the company regularly
shares information on mental health with employees to instil positive
attitudes and foster a supportive atmosphere.

" NFIRIE - TS REBRRS

HE-HE
HERHE

FEERNNBBHESREIFTE  WEER
RBE B TERRBEFLEM - AEEIRER
HEEBNZNEEH URSHREHHENE
#o WEBBS MR LS R EESSHERERAER
BHE -REXRR AEERZUERFNERTS
B> BIF A HERSS

FEENEEZABEAEERERE R &
B IFRE - HEERMNEE FEEEE
BRMEMATBRRERSOE K FLEeR
RIENE] -RIZ_NFE AEEHE2
RESSEABEE - FIRKBEZZ2RER
BMEEMN T ZEFAENETEZENREE
BENOERERAE —ERERBENIEF
RiGeltih ARBEHMERBREDZOERRESE
o LUEERBEETEESFERE -
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ESG CONTENT INDEX

RIE-HERER

AL

Aspect KPI Description Section reference
[Em RARERUER it 2L
A. Environmental
AIRIE
Emissions Al General Disclosure Environmental
BER —HRIEEEEIE protection
Information on: IRIBRE
BERBERRRAERBIN S KEa TIPS -F
EREERFEN
a) the policies; and
a) BEREK, &
b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer
b) BFHETABEAFZENEMEIZRRINE
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste.
Al The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Emissions
BB EE S AR R R B o B
Al1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) Emissions
greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where BERWD
appropriate, intensity.
B EEN) REREE (@HE2) BERBHREE
MESTE) K (NER) BE -
A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where Emissions
appropriate, intensity. BE
FREEBEEEYRE QRS k (MER) BE-
Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, Emissions
where appropriate, intensity. BEH)
FMEABREEEWEE UUWEE) &k WER) BE-
A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and step taken to Emissions
achieve them. BE
HBALATE] ML R BE &2 B AR R A 55 £ B R P ERER Y
HERo
A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous Emissions
wastes are handled, and a description of reduction BER Y

target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
HRIEE S RBEBEEYN G L RMEMPIETILH
BEE B E K 2 E RS B RN 5 o
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ESG CONTENT INDEX (continued) RIE-HEREBRASTEI @

Aspect KPI Description Section reference
fEm RASAEMISIR it BESHEH
A. Environmental (Continued)
ARE @
Use of resources A2 General Disclosure Use of resources
BIREERA — R EEEE BIREA
Policies on the efficient use of resources, including
energy, water and other raw materials.
BERERAER (BIEER KREMEME) BIBER-
A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. Use of resources
electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in ‘000s) and intensity. BIRER
RELEIDMNERRHEEER B Ro0h) 2
2 UTETRNHSE EBE-
A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. Use of resources
HMFEKEBREE- BIREA
A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and Use of resources
steps taken to achieve them. BIRER
HAPTEI IR EA NG B R R IERE LB M
PREXB 27 B o
A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing Use of resources
water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set BIRER
and steps taken to achieve them.
HIMSREVE A AR LI B AR RE  LURFrsT LB A
K3 B R 7R B IR PTERE A BR o
A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in Use of resources
tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit BIRER
produced.
S mPTAEEMENEE (UEETE) &k QER)
FEBMUGSE-
The Environment and A3 General Disclosure The environment and
natural resources — R EEE natural resources
RIERRAEIR Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on RIERKRAEIR
the environment and natural resources.
BEZETABRERRAERENEATENEE
A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on The environment and

the environment and natural resources and the actions
taken to manage them.
HMEBEHHIRERRABERNE R E K BRI
BEBTENTH-
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ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued)

EAWS

RIE-HERERBNETERES @

Aspect KPI Description Section reference
Em RASEMISIR it BESHEH
A. Environmental (Continuea)
AIRE @)
Climate change A4 General Disclosure Climate change
RIEE1E — R EEEE RIRE1E
Policies on identification and mitigation of significant
climate-related issues which have impacted, and those
which may impact, the issuer.
B REHERRAEEHETAEERENEAR
1EMERI S ERIER -

A4 Description of the significant climate-related issues Climate change
which have impacted, and those which may impact, the mIEEAME
issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.

BB R KA EEHETAEERZENE R IEERE
EE REHTH
B. Social
B4t &
Employment B1 General Disclosure Employment
e 1% — R EEE =
Information on:
ERFMAEE -BERSH TENE BB -FF
WE Lt RERUREMFBRREH R
a) the policies; and
a) EREKR, R
b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer
b) BTFHEFETABEATZENEMEIZRRFINE
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare.

B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group Employment
and geographical region. 2%
R BERE  FRAN R RPN EE R -

B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and Employment
geographical region. 1EE

iR FRAEN Rt e DNESRKLLER
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RIE-HERERABTRS @

Aspect KPI Description Section reference
fEm RS Hut BESH
B. Social (Continued)
B.itE @
Health and safety B2 General Disclosure Health and safety
REHEZE — R EEEE REHEZS
Information on:
BERRHEZ2IHRERFREEEREHELTE
By -
a) the policies; and
a) BEREE; &
b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer
b) BEBTHZFETABEAXZENERMEIRZRRFINE
relating to providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards.
B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in Health and safety
each of the past three years. BEHEZS
BE=F (BREERFEE) SFRAI TR AZ KL
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Health and safety
RITEEERITIEE - REHRZE
B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures Health and safety
adopted, how they are implemented and monitored. BEHEZS
E PR R BB Sk R R B 2 2481 URABRAIT &
BE ko
Development and B3 General Disclosure Development and
training —MRIEEEEIE training
EIEYaE Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills B R KT
for discharging duties at work. Description of training
activities.
BRRAEEEIT LIFBE A H# R SERVBUER o #
MIEANES) o
B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and Development and
employee category. training
B RESENEDNZINIRET DL R RIE
B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by Development and
gender and employee category. training
ZURREESERE D SLEETMR NN TR F R R

2o
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ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued)

RIE-HERERBNETERES @

Aspect KPI Description Section reference
Em RASEMISIR it BESHEH
B. Social (Continued)
B.AE @
Labour standards B4 General Disclosure Labour standards
&5 T 28] — R EEE TR
Information on:
BRBIEET &EHETH .
a) the policies; and
a) BERER; K
b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer
b) ETHZFETABEAZENERMERZRRINE
relating to preventing child and forces labour.
B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices Labour standards
to avoid child and forced labour. TR
ST R IE AR TR e AR R B T Kesaklss T o
B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices Labour standards
when discovered. & T8
1L S IR R IE RO R B BB R P EREN R P 5% o
Supply Chain B5 General Disclosure Supply chain
management — AR R I management
HrEEEIE Policies on managing environmental and social risks of HEREIE
the supply chain.
BIEMEEAIRIE R 8 RREER -
B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region Supply chain
@B D EERmEE o management
HEREIE
B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, Supply chain
number of suppliers where the practices are being management
implemented, how they are implemented and monitored. e SR
Hil A RIS A EENES > mENITEREGIRH
FEEEE » UM TRERG %o
B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental Supply chain
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they management
are implemented and monitored. HrEEEIE
A R MRS EIREMIRIE Rt 2 RIS
B> U AR AT R Ba B2 5 7% o
B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally Supply chain
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers, management
and how they are implemented and monitored. HrER SR

BEETREHEERREESRAREFRERRRENIE
Bl LU SIT R EE R T 7% ©
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RIE-HERERABTRS @

Aspect KPI Description Section reference
fEm RASAEMISIR it BESHEH
B. Social (Continued)
B.itE @
Product responsibility B6 General Disclosure Product
EmET —HR I EEE responsibility
Information on: EmEE
BRfMEEERMBRFENREEZ - BEE - REE
TAEREE AR AR
a) the policies; and
a) BEREE; &
b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer
b) BEBTFHEFETABEAZENEMEIRZRRFINE
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling
and privacy matters relating to products and services
provided and methods of redress.

B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to Product
recalls for safety and health reasons. responsibility
BENBEXERQHMPEZ 2 EERIERMER W EmET
NBEDL .

B6.2 Number of products and service-related complaints Product
received and how they are dealt with. responsibility
BERNERMRBNEFEEUARER S E EmEE

B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and Product
protecting intellectual property rights. responsibility
Ho ot B A S I (R PR AN E RE B RERVIB A 0 ERET

B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall Product
procedures. responsibility
it E 20T B2 K E mEIWE T o EmEE

B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy Product
policies, how they are implemented and monitored. responsibility

B EERMRE RFAREEE U REMNITRE ERET

Bk
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT 2024
“ETUFRE g RERRE

ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued)

RIE-HERERBNETERES @

Aspect KPI Description Section reference
Em RASEMISIR it BESHEH
B. Social (Continued)
B.itE @
Anti-corruption B7 General Disclosure Anti-corruption
REE — R EEEE R&EBE
Information on:
BRIB LR ~ 1R s IFF RO B8R0 ¢
a) the policies; and
a) BEREK; &
b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer
b) ETHZFETABEAXZENERMEIRZERRINE
#} o
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.
B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt Anti-corruption
practices brought against the issuer or its employees REE
during the reporting period and the outcomes of the
cases.
RERSHEAEETANEREERETEEENES
FEARUMB B R AR
B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing Anti-corruption
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored. RERB
SRR RET  URBBARITRERR
%o
B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to Anti-corruption

directors and staff.
WmEERE TIRENRESE

3=

Community investment B8
HERE

B8.1

B8.2

92

General Disclosure

—AR K EEF IR

Policies on community engagement to understand the
needs of the communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests

BREMtE2HR TREBEMTHEEEMBERAE
HEEE T BLEFR mIEGE

Focus areas of contribution.

B EEEE

Resources contributed to the focus area.

EEIHEREBAER-

SEM Holdings Limited JEZERERAE]

Community
investment
HERE

Community
investment
HERE
Community
investment

HerRE



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

@CL Partners

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SEM HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of SEM
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 102 to 183, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2024, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2024, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with HKFRS Accounting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (‘HKSAS”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

B2 BN RS

HREERARARIMERR
(RSB S M BB R4 A)

BER

RIZBENTT (BT THF)) EESIIEN S
102E183RRREZERABRAT U THHEE
ANE) RENBAE U THRBEER) VGRS
MBRT LHHFHRREER-"S_NFE+_"1
S+ -HNGREUBERARTRBRBEEZAILFE
iR RmkEMEERER GEEaEEE
MiFEREMER  UNGEEHMBHRERWE &
RIEGFERENREMBEREER -

HARBR ZFGR AV BRREREE B IS
2g (EBGHMAE)) BHN(EBYHRS
ZRFHERNEEMPEHRIRT SEER
“ETNE+RA=+—HGESHMHERRK
BEZHLEENGEVBRERGERERN
2> WEBREB(RBEERM)VREERZ B
e

ERNER
BRPERBEEE ML BEHHN(EBSEE
A1) (KEBBAER)) ETHE - RAEZF
ZR T EAENETCELRS MZBETME 47
GUMBHRERAENEEIBORIEE— DML
REEBEAMAGEMBHI(EXGEEMERT
A1) AT REEITR) - R\ EEE I
BEETTRIFNEMERBREEE - FHMAEE
HPIFFESHNESHRBRETE B E 15 H M
R RRHEER-

FEEtEE

HRBFFEESRBERFANEXHE ALK
HRREVBEREANEAR/EENFTH - BLES
BEEAHMASHERREMBTREALARR
RrETRIEN - HMFASHELEFTHREHEEN
BER-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BIZHETER S

Key audit matter

R ETEE

Recognition of revenue from electrical and
mechanical engineering services contracts

TEEEH E B Rt i T I2AR 75 & #4989 W it

We identified the recognition of revenue from electrical and
mechanical engineering services contracts as a key audit
matter due to the involvement of significant management
estimates in determining the contract revenue for each
electrical and mechanical engineering services contract in
progress.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the
Group recognised revenue of HK$31,380,000 and
HK$60,327,000 mainly from provision of electrical and
mechanical engineering services to hotels and casinos,
public, commercial and residential properties in Macau
and Hong Kong, respectively by reference to the stage
of completion of the contract activity at the end of the
reporting period as disclosed in Note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements. As set out in Notes 5 and 6 to the
consolidated financial statements, the amounts of revenue
recognised reflect the management’s estimate of each
contract’s outcome and stage of completion, which were
based on the input method by considering the proportion
of contract costs incurred for the work performed to the
end of the reporting date, relative to the total estimated
costs of the contract at completion.

ARREESETPENREM T RERBSHONEIW
mBY REXREEE MG HFIR SRR BB R
TRRBEANRmAR BEEESFE

RBEE_Z_NF+_RB=+—HLEEFE WLKEHH
BERMEMIRE EEEE2ENREPRGNES
5T A PR B e 5T U 75 31,380,0007 7T 52 60,327,000/ 7T > F=
B2REDAERPIREBRVEIE KRG A EE
RETYERHEBIIREM TRERT - NiF S HRE
PYEE5OFTE > EMSSNnTRRMEBEBH R GG
R SeRPEERGE HNERKEERNRKRS BHRE
TIREENGHNAGTRESANESTAEMALER
BPTERANBAGE-
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

R ZHEMITRIZMBE FEN G A

Our procedures in relation to recognition of revenue from
electrical and mechanical engineering services contracts
included:

e Understanding key controls on how management
estimates and revises the total contract costs and
margins and recognises revenue from electrical and
mechanical engineering services contracts;

e  Checking the accuracy of the contract sum to signed
contract and/or other relevant correspondences (and
variation orders, if any);

e Assessing the reasonableness of the total estimated
contract costs of significant projects by checking against
quotations, agreements or other correspondences
provided by subcontractors or suppliers, on a sample
basis;

° Evaluating the reasonableness of the estimated profit
margins of significant projects, on a sample basis, taking
into account of the complexity and duration of the
projects and margins of similar completed projects;

HPBEBREERBEENREM T ERBEONRENRERF
(25

s THEBEERUNMAMGS RMESTBEHM AU KIES
FEBNREMTIZRBEAWR G 2 EEEGIER

s RAEEBEAGNKA/HWHEMBEBER (REEE< WH)
BHIRURRY AR |

s BERENEMAHEHREMHNKRE HRIHEME
R R FHEE AR B SR SO ARNGEK ;

s K REBNEMERSERBRENLATRENR
> EHEERBE M A ERNSEN ;



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BIAZBENR S

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

R ETEE R ZHEMITRIZEMBE FHR A

Recognition of revenue from electrical and
mechanical engineering services contracts (Continued)

EEKE B R TR & 4969 at ()

e Examining the accuracy of costs incurred to date and
stage of completion by checking the certificates or
invoices issued by the subcontractors or suppliers, on a
sample basis;

e  Evaluating the reliability of the management’s estimated
budget costs and budgeted gross profit margin, on a
sample basis, by comparing the total actual contract
costs incurred at completion of completed projects
against the total budgeted contract costs; and

e Discussing with the management to understand and
evaluate the status of projects under construction,
including estimated costs to completion, assessment
of potential liquidated damages for major contracts
and provision for onerous contracts with management,
finance, and technical personnel of the Group.

s BEMERBENEREAMEBRLANIENLERES
FEAk B HA s B R EE AE BB AN B 2R BRI

s BERERIBETHHEENERGAMARER
MABSNRALEE MATEEEBMGFARERE
RBEEMNKMAEL ; &

e H BEEEEEAS -UBAE BMAESHUTH#

RiHEERER B ST IR LE - EAGHE
RN TEREREOER-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BIZHETER S

Key audit matter

R ETEE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables and
contract assets

R E G IR R &4 EEL B EFE

We identified impairment assessment of trade receivables
and contract assets as a key audit matter due to the
significance of trade receivables and contract assets
to the Group’s consolidated financial position and the
involvement of subjective judgment and management
estimates in evaluating the expected credit losses (‘ECL”)
of the Group’s trade receivables and contract assets at the
end of the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s trade receivables
and contract assets amounted to HK$62,400,000 (net
of loss allowance of HK$8,824,000) and HK$92,257,000
(net of loss allowance of HK$17,733,000) respectively.
During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group
reversed impairment allowances of HK$3,928,000 for
trade receivables and provided impairment allowances of
HK$1,847,000 for contract assets.

HRPER B EZ R ENEERETEAMHESE
ZEE REARBREZRIARGNEEN SEELKR
BMBRANEZME RN E SEENREHKRE
WEZERRRENEERREESRE ((BHREEBRE))
PSR EBHE R EEE L5t o

ATE_NE+"_H=+—H> SEENEKRES
BARAENEED R A62,400,00054 7T G A 1B #E
#8,824,00058 75) 92,257,000 75 (0 B 5 18 5 5
17,733,000/ 7T) - BE_E-_MWE+_A=+—HItF
B, SB5EEREWE S RIE R EE#53,928,00078
ToRTLEHE EsHE R E B E1,847,00078 7T ©
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

R ZHEMITRIZMBE FEN G A

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment of trade
receivables and contract assets included:

° Understanding key controls on how the management
estimates the loss allowance for trade receivables and
contract assets;

e  Testing the integrity of information used by management
to determine the ECL provision, including aging analysis
as at year end date, on a sample basis, by comparing
individual items in the analysis with the relevant
supporting documents; and

RPIERBKE SRR GNEENRENHNEF 8E:

s THREREEERNMAMGFEREZRIRGNEEN
ERB AR

o BMBLLEOMPHVE[EIRR LM XM
AEEEEERBEEEERFAENNTEL
BIERFEHRRE DT K



Key audit matter

R ETEE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables and
contract assets (Continuead)

W E G IR R & A EER B EFFE (&)

As disclosed in Notes 16, 18 and 27 to the consolidated
financial statements, trade receivables and contract assets
are assessed individually for impairment assessment and
management of the Group estimates the amount of lifetime
ECL of trade receivables and contract assets based on
the Group’s internal credit ratings, historical credit loss
experience, aging analysis, repayment history and/or past
due status of respective trade receivables and contract
assets. Estimated loss rates are based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors
and are adjusted for forward-looking information.

MR E A FHERRMIEE16 18R 27FTIRE > BN E Z R
MR EGNEE@AMRENGETHGL SEEER
BEEZREBREZRRAEGNEENTEERNEEET
B BREEEBELE REDT  BREL R, SaH
RER  RBAEFBREZRRARENEENE AR
EEBREE AtBERRDEEFARRFHANE
SEEHRRENRFL  LHAREEERFHARE-

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BIAZBENR S

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FZHENTRIEFABESSEHNG A

Challenging management’s basis and judgment
in determining ECL provision on trade receivables
and contract assets as at year end date, including
their identification of credit-impaired balances, the
reasonableness of management’s grouping of debtors
by internal credit rating and the basis of estimated loss
rates applied to each category with reference to historical
default rates and forward-looking information.

EREEETRESEANBREZRIAEGHNEE
NEREEEREENKE R SEEERERS
FrHEA EEEREANEHAIRNEBAETS
ERNSEMEURSERNNGESEARNKE BEEE
BOERRAIREMEER) ;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BIZHETER S

OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2023 were audited by another auditor who expressed
an unmodified opinion on those statements on 26 March 2024.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards issued by
the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

SEM Holdings Limited JEZZERERAE]
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BIAZBENR S
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BIZHETER S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continueq)

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business units within the Group as a basis for forming an
opinion on the group financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and review of the audit work performed
for purpose of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

100 SEM Holdings Limited R3S IRAE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BIAZBENR S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE ZEEM M Bt S IR AIEN
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BEE@w
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with #EEEAEEEAISIEE > T 9 HE & W L =518
governance, we determine those matters that were of most AHIAGREMHFHREN BN RAEE > AMEE
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements B FIE o HMEZ MRS PIHMBELEE
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We I8 BRIEERZ B A AT ARIKBEELEEE oy
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation  EBEHRZEBHIER T MR SEFERAE IR S
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely HEBEEBEEHNNEERRBBEENAR
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be  #z# » IR EREER S R /BEZEIE
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences

of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.

CL Partners CPA Limited G EEMITAERAR
Certified Public Accountants HEEEED

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditors 5 AT am B AE1Z BT
Hong Ting HE

Practising Certificate Number: PO7069 HMEDEMRIT (PO7069

Hong Kong, 27 March 2025 5B "2 AF=B=++tH
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
traEm R EMEE @R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —Z U+ _HA=+—HIEFE

2024 2023
—EomE e =
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FAT TFETT
Revenue W= 5 91,707 258,894
Cost of sales THE 2 (68,186) (239,382)
Gross profit EH 23,521 19,512
Other income E U A 7a 1,776 1,178
Other losses HihEs1g 7b - (2,803)
Reversal of/(impairment losses) under TERE EEE ((FEREEEY)
expected credit loss (“ECL”) model, B TRV
net of reversal CRIEESE) » H1FR#EE] 8 2,081 (3,748)
Administrative expenses TR (23,348) (22,053)
Finance costs B E AR A S (249) 274)
Profit/(loss) before tax BRAGATER, (8518 10 3,781 (8,188)
Income tax credit FTiRiRiE R 12 21 218
Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive AR AN
income/(expense) for the year FWafl, (B8 2|
attributable to owners of the Company Wik, (ZH) 48%8 3,802 (7,970)
Earnings/(loss) per share (HK$ cents) G&A], (B518) Bl
Basic 2K 14 0.19 (0.40)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
kR e BN R

At 31 December 2024 R=ZE_UF+—B=+—H

2024 2023
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B sE F#ET FAET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB R 15 29,598 31,358
Rental deposit ez 16 11 47
29,609 31,405
Current assets RHEE
Trade and other receivables FEW B 5 BR TR
HANE U IE 16 63,608 22,265
Contract assets BREE 18 92,257 132,060
Pledged bank deposits EIRIFIRITER 19 - 18,128
Time deposit T HATERR 19 16,000 20,167
Cash and cash equivalents BERIBEEEY 19 56,126 35,887
227,991 228,507
Current liabilities prE =N
Trade and other payables eI & ZERF M
HAEIFIE 20 28,842 40,558
Contract liabilities HRHEE 18 8,204 532
Lease liabilities HESE 21 430 603
Tax payable FEIIRIE 1,469 2,699
Bank borrowing IRITER 22 781 740
39,726 45,132
Net current assets MENEEFE 188,265 183,375
Total assets less current liabilities MEERGHERE 217,874 214,780
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—Bo=H
Notes HK$’000
B o FAET

Non-current liabilities ERBAEE
Deferred tax liability RERIEEE 17 44 67
Lease liabilities HEaR 21 308 211
Other payables HthpEwa 20 5 5
Bank borrowing RITER 22 4,573 5,355
4,930 5,638
212,944 209,142

Capital and reserves B R #E
Share capital [N 23 20,000 20,000
Reserves (Ei] 192,944 189,142
212,944 209,142

The consolidated financial statements on pages 102 to 183 were HF102E183EMGEHMFREACHN S _AFE=

approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27

March 2025 and are signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Wan Man Keung
FREEE
Executive Director

HITEF
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Mr. Yu Chi Kwan
ASBERE
Executive Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES |N EQUlTY

For the year ended 31 December 2024 EZE —Z _IT_EJEH—_H _+— HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FATRER N
Share Share Legal Retained
capital premium reserve profits Total
iz i iaE L REER B

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TAT FAT TR TR FRT

(Note)
(Hfzt)
At 1 January 2023 A_E_=F—F—H 20,000 81,928 13 115,171 217,112
Loss and total comprehensive FRBEREZEY MR
expense for the year - - - (7,970) (7,970)
At 31 December 2023 RIEZ=F+"A=+—H 20,000 81,928 13 107,201 209,142
Profit and total comprehensive FRENEE ARG AL
income for the year - - - 3,802 3,802
At 31 December 2024 R ZE-ME+"A=1+—H 20,000 81,928 13 111,003 212,944
Note: Hiat -

In accordance with the Article 377 of the Commercial Code of Macau Special ~ 1R#E(EE A R HEMERFIFRITEE (TR ) 7))
Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China (“Macau’), the  53771% > FRFIEMN AT AN I G sHARE DR
company registered in Macau is required to transfer part of its profits of each ~ EFEM25% BB A G EE A EHBESEERHE
accounting period of not less than 25% to legal reserve, until the amount — BEZARAIFE A LE -

reaches half of its share capital.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GERERE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 B E —ZF _IUF+_F=+—HILFE

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT TFETT
Operating activities R EE
Profit/(loss) before tax BRIGREF (B518) 3,781 (8,188)
Adjustments for: MUTEZBEEHFE .
Depreciation of property, M- BB RZEITE
plant and equipment 2,616 2,819
Interest income HABUA (1,342) (1,014)
Impairment losses on property, M- BE R RERRERR
plant and equipment - 2,803
(Reserval of)/impairment losses under ECL FEREEREER T @&E)
model, net of reversal B RESE  F0BRE (] (2,081) 3,748
Finance costs =N 249 274
Operating cash flows before movements in SEETEHAIKERENE
working capital 3,223 442
(Increase)/decrease in trade and FE UK B2 5 BR 7 R EL M FE W 7k 18
other receivables agm R (45,008) 37,956
Decrease/(increase) in contract assets/liabilites, & &E &, & &R 1, (M) B E
net 53,257 (23,639)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables &1t B 5 BR 7t Rz LM FE {1 70 E
CR) /1810 (11,682) 336
Cash (used in) generated from operations &= () FREEIRS (210) 15,095
Income tax paid BNTER (1,232) -
Net cash (used in) generated from SRR (FrA) FRELIREFEE
operating activities (1,442) 15,095
Investing activities KREEH
Withdrawal of time deposit IREVE HAERR 79,167 1,045
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits RINEIRIFIRITER 18,128 1,447
Interest received S eSS 1,342 1,014
Placement of time deposit EFERERER (75,000) (160)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEYE -BENRRE (191) (302)
Net cash from KREEBSIREREE
investing activities 23,446 3,044
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE =

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERERER
P =B

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FAT FETT
Financing activities A EED
Repayments of principal on lease liabilities BEREaGELE (741) (761)
Repayments of bank borrowing BRIRITER (741) (718)
Interest paid [SXNES! (201) (224)
Repayments of interest on lease liabilities EEHESBTE (48) (50)
(Repayment to)/advance from a director BT XA —%EE/
of the Company REERLQNE] —HEFHEN (34) 34
Repayment to a former director of BARAB—HAIEEEER
the Company - (279)
Net cash used in financing activities REEBFARES R (1,765) (1,9998)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents IR&KRIREEEYEINFEEE 20,239 16,141
Cash and cash equivalents at the FNRERREEEY
beginning of the year 35,887 19,746
Cash and cash equivalents at the FERRERRAEEEY
end of the year,
representing bank balances and cash BRERITAS R R IR & 56,126 35,887
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
#n o ISR AR I EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —Z U+ _HA=+—HIEFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

SEM Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated and
registered as an exempted company with limited liability in the
Cayman Islands under the Companies Law Chapter 22 of the
Cayman Islands on 6 November 2015 and its shares were
listed on The Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 14 February 2020 (the
“Listing”). The addresses of the registered office and the principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate
information section to the annual report. The immediate holding
company of the Company is SEM Enterprises Limited, which
is a private company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
(the “BVI”) and controlled by Mr. Wan Man Keung, an executive
director of the Company.

The Company acts as an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in provision of electrical and
mechanical engineering services in Macau and Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong Dollars (‘HK$”), whereas the functional currency of the
Company is Macau Pataca (“MOP”).

For the purpose of re-presentation of the consolidated financial
statements of the Group from MOP to HK$, the assets and
liabilities are translated into HK$ at the closing rates as of the
respective reporting dates. Income and expenses are translated
at the average exchange rates for the respective periods.
Share capital, share premium and reserves are translated at the
exchange rates at the date when the amount were determined
(i.e. historical exchange rate).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR MR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —Z _UF+_A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.

TO HKFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

Amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards that
are mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
for the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the Group’s
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2024 for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements:
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback
Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non
current and related
amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5

Amendments to HKAS 1

(2020)
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants
Amendments to HKAS 7 and Supplier Finance
HKFRS 7 Arrangements

The application of the amendments to HKFRS Accounting
Standards in the current year has had no material impact on
the Group’s financial positions and performance for the current
and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

R R IEIERMBRS
AR g5+ E8
M F R ERNEETTERM TR
HEANGEHER

REFE RRESGYFREE ~EEBE
BERERAN-_Z_MF—B—HBsz%&H
MR AERFERBRFEMNNEBS
fAg (TEBEEEMAE)) BMBILLITE
ES]EBMBIREER Gt 2R

BEMBREEN ERELRDHNEERR
1652 EF]
EEEHENBIR SEIEARDU
ZAEE] FRBRELRE
F5RHIERIES]

CE=%H)

BAGFENBIR HEZNNIERPEE
ZAEE]

ERGHEURTR HESHERH
REBUHBRS
RRIBTIRZ1EE]

REEERACEIEBYHEREENG
SHEANAERNRAFERBETFENY
BRRARRER, WZELEEHHRERHR
PR BT B EMEATE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R a B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 E(Z —Z _IF+_H=+—HIFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HKFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRS Accounting
Standards in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards that have been
issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 7

Amendments to the Classification and
Measurement of Financial Instruments®

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 7

Contracts Referencing Nature — Dependent
Electricity®

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and ~ Sale or Contribution of Assets between

HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture'
Amendments to HKFRS Annual Improvements to HKFRS Accounting

Accounting Standards Standards - Volume 118

Amendments to HKAS 21
HKFRS 18

Lack of Exchangeability?
Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements*

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
the new and amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards will
have no material impact on the consolidated financial statements
in the foreseeable future.

110 SEM Holdings Limited R £EREE IRAE

2.

R REIESTEBMBRS
ZA 2R @

EEMEERERNMETREETER
MBRSEN G ER
A6 B iH R IR R AR R B R M8 i R M

T T RAS ST BB AW 3t
) :

ERMBREENFSE  HERTIADENHE

RERHBREZER ZIER]?
EEiPA )

ERMBREENBOTR KEENREREEES
ERMBREER i0k=y iR
FIRZIES]

BERAMBREENSI0 REEEHBELES
REBERG TR %285 BELREZENE
21E5] EHERIRA

ERMBREENGHER BEYHREER
Z 5] BHERZEE

E-FNE

BB EAFANRZET] RZ AT

ERMBREZENSISE HMHERRNZERK

wE

T RREEBRS RRGBHEERAREN-

2 RIEZHRFE—B—HIZERENEE
RARI AR o

¢ O RIZEBEIARE—B—HIZERENEE
RARI AR o

f R ZEEFE B —HIZERENEE
RARI AR o

RABEETA AN REETEAM
BHREEREFERR A RRRASEHET
BUMBRERAEETAEATE -




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR MR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —Z _UF+_A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards issued by the
HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements, information is considered material if such
information is reasonably expected to influence decisions
made by primary users. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

° has power over the investee;

e s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

3.

MRBERTEGHEBRER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R a B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 E(Z —Z _IF+_H=+—HIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continueqd)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR MR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —Z _UF+_A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

Investment in a subsidiary

Investment in a subsidiary is measured at cost less accumulated
impairment loss.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from electrical and mechanical engineering services
is described in the accounting policy on construction contracts
below.

Revenue from electrical and mechanical engineering services
is recognised over time during the course of construction by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction at the
end of the reporting period. The progress towards complete
satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured based on
input method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis of the
Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of a performance
obligation (i.e. contract costs incurred for work performed to
date) relative to the total expected inputs to the satisfaction of
that performance obligation (i.e. total estimated contract costs),
that best depict the Group’s performance in transferring control
of goods or services.

A performance obligation represents a good or service that
is distinct or a services of distinct goods or services that are
substantially the same.

For construction contracts that contain variable consideration
such as variations in contract work, claims and incentive
payment, the Group estimates the amount of consideration
to which it will be entitled using the most likely amount, which
better predicts the amount of consideration contract only to
the extent that it is highly probable that such an inclusion will
not result in a significant revenue reversal in the future when
the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved. At the end of the reporting period,
the Group updates the estimated transaction price (including
updating its assessment of whether an estimate of variable
consideration is constrained) to represent faithfully the
circumstances present at the end of the reporting period and the
changes in circumstances during the reporting period.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R a B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 E(Z —Z _IF+_H=+—HIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continuea)

The contract assets on construction contracts represent the
Group’s right to consideration for work completed and not billed
as the rights are conditioned on the Group’s future performance
in satisfying the respective performance obligations. The
contract liabilities on construction contracts represent the
Group’s obligation to transfer electrical and mechanical
engineering services to customers for which the Group has
received consideration from the customers. A contract asset and
a contract liability relating to the same contract are accounted for
and presented on a net basis.

Contract asset is assessed for impairment in accordance
with HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to consideration,
i.e. only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes. Property, plant and equipment are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR MR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —Z _UF+_A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continuead)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of
initial application of HKFRS 16 Leases or arising from business
combinations, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at
inception, modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate.
Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee
Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
leases of properties that have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option. Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis or another systematic basis over
the lease term.

3.

mMREERTEGHEREH
@)

ME- -BERRE®

I E TS 8 B BRI (i 51 P 152 FB S AR R
EEMAMBER G5t RIERAFERRFTES
EREBREPRES EAGFEBTET
BARRBRAEEAR

ME-BERRBRENHENZRAFE
ERAZREER TS EERREE N m R
LB -HEVE -BMEARBEBARE
FEEREMEE ZEMRENERTD U
HEFMSMEAERZEEZREEZERE
TE > WH R R FERE

HE

HENESR
MREVBFE—REFHANZEG —BHEH
BB EMERRNERN LIRS E AIZEH
E-HEERET—HHEE

MR EREREBMBREENF165RH
ENRBSi BTN BINEBSHE
ENEIMS  ~EBREBEEBYBRSE
AISB165R B TRV E R NGB A ESTAE X
R WER) TheNEER—HAER
N T —BEE BRIFEHRMAMIFHFER
BELEE ST EHIEBREHOETEN
s o

TEBEAEMEA
CHIE

rEBHBAERAEHEERK BAE12
BRANEENHERTESBEEEREN
HEYXERAEREENENHN R - EHRE
ENEENREEENARBERENS
—RIRCEERDRER-

Annual Report FE#R% 2024 115



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R a B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 E(Z —Z _IF+_H=+—HIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:
° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received;

e any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

e an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions
of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets in “property, plant and
equipment”, the same line item within which the corresponding
underlying assets would be presented if they were owned.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at
initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments
and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR MR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —Z _UF+_A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of lease
payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present
value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable;

e variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

e amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

e payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate
the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R a B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 E(Z —Z _IF+_H=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 3. FUEERFETHHEER

ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION (#)

(Continued)

Leases (Continued) HE @

The Group as a lessee (Continued) TEBREAEBAN @

Lease liabilities (Continued) THEEE (@)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a EUATERT  AEEEHFEHEEE

corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets) (I3t R AR B EFERERE) !

whenever:

e the lease term has changed or there is a change in the e MHZLBHTEEEEEE T
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case e E b EILIER T HEEES
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the B EBERRENTEE P &E
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the ST IRERIT BT ENRME
date of reassessment. WEt=e

e the lease payments change due to changes in market s MEMREMBHEEZEE (&MmiHHE
rental rates following a market rent review, in which cases TRER MBELEBEC THERT
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the AR EaGLERERYTINIRE
revised lease payments using the initial discount rate. RITBRKETHENRMETE=Z

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the FEERHEERNGSMBARNKRPE

consolidated statement of financial position. BEF o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR MR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —Z _UF+_A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease
if:

e the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding
the right to use one or more underlying assets; and

e the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase
in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the particular
contract.

For a lease maodification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the
lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of
the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities by
making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-use
asset. When the modified contract contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the modified contract to
each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone
price of the non-lease components.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R a B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 E(Z —Z _IF+_H=+—HIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets to determine whether there is any indication that
these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss
(if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets individually, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the assets belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit when a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be established,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be established. The recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating units
to which the corporate asset belongs, and is compared with the
carrying amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR MR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —Z _UF+_A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets (Continuead)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or portion of
corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group compares
the carrying amount of a group of cash-generating units,
including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets or portion
of corporate assets allocated to that group of cash-generating
units, with the recoverable amount of the group of cash-
generating units. An impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a group of
cash-generating units) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-
generating units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the consolidated
statement of financial position include:

(@ cash, which comprises of cash on hand and demand
deposits, excluding bank balances that are subject to
regulatory restrictions that result in such balances no longer
meeting the definition of cash; and

(o) cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term (generally
with original maturity of three months or less), highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to a known amount
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value. Cash equivalents are held for the purpose
of meeting short-term cash commitments rather than for
investment or other purposes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R a B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BZE _Z &+ _H=+—HI-FE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents (Continued)

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents
as defined above.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (where the effect of the time value of money is material).

Onerous contracts

Present obligations arising under onerous contract are
recognised and measured as provisions. An onerous contract is
considered to exist where the Group has a contract under which
the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the
contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received
from the contract. The unavoidable costs under a contract
reflect the least net cost of exiting from the contract, which is
the lower of the net cost of fulfilling it and any compensation or
penalties arising from failure to fulffil it.

When assessing whether a contract is onerous or loss-making,
the Group includes costs that relate directly to the contract,
consisting of both the incremental costs (to specify, e.g. direct
labour and materials) and an allocation of other costs (to specify,
e.g. an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of
property, plant and equipment used in fuffiling that contract) that
relate directly to fulfiling contracts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR MR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —Z _UF+_A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R a B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 E(Z —Z _IF+_H=+—HIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

Amortised cost and interest incorme

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method
for financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost.
Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired
(see below). For financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset
from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-
impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial asset
is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer credit-
impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR MR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —Z _UF+_A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continuea)

Financial assets

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (‘ECL") model on financial assets and other items
which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9 (including
trade receivables, contract assets, deposits, other receivables,
pledged bank deposits, time deposit and bank balances). The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”) represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessments are done based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables
and contract assets. For all other financial instruments, the
Group measures the loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless
when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, in which case the Group recognises lifetime
ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the likelihood or
risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R a B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 E(Z —Z _IF+_H=+—HIFE

3. BASIS

OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

()  Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly:

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’'s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the

Grou

p has reasonable and supportable information that

demonstrates otherwise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR MR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —Z _UF+_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

U)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a debt instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk if (i) it has
a low risk of default; (i) the borrower has a strong capacity
to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term; and (jii) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not necessarily,
reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual
cash flow obligations. The Group considers a debt
instrument to have low credit risk when it has an internal or
external credit rating of “investment grade” as per globally
understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to
ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past
due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full.

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R a B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 E(Z —Z _IF+_H=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(i)

(v)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

(@ significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over two years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice when
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR MR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —Z _UF+_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

V)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, the loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit-impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their
carrying amount, with the exception of trade receivables
and contract assets where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.
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3.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments that are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangement and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instruments.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

The Group’s financial liabilities including trade and other payables
and bank borrowing are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition
The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised
in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR MR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —Z _UF+_A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax credit/(expense) represents the sum of current and
deferred income tax credit/(expense).

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit/(loss) before tax as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit and at the time of the transaction does not give
rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences..

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investment in a subsidiary, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investment are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R a B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BZE _Z &+ _H=+—HI-FE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

Taxation (Continueqd)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use
assets and related lease liabilities, the Group first determines
whether the tax deduction is attributable to the right-of-use
assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 requirements to the lease liabilities, and the related assets
separately. The Group recognises a deferred tax asset related
to lease liabilities to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
difference can be utilised and a deferred tax liability for all taxable
temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied
to the same taxable entity by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR MR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —Z _UF+_A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional
currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the
end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items that are measured in term of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, as recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Exchange differences relating to the retranslation of the Group’s
net assets in MOP to the Group’s presentation currency HK$
are recognised directly in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in translation reserve. Such exchange differences
accumulated in the translation reserve are not reclassified to
profit or loss subsequently.

The change in presentation currency of the Company was
applied retrospectively, as if the new presentation currency had
always been applied.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes (the
“MPF Schemes”) in Hong Kong and the Social Security
Fund Contribution in Macau are recognised as an expense
when employees have rendered service entiting them to the
contributions.

For LSP obligation, the Group accounts for the employer MPF
contributions expected to be offset as a deemed employee
contribution towards the LSP obligation in terms of HKAS
19.93(a) and it is measure on a net basis. The estimated amount
of future benefit is determined after deducting the negative
service cost arising from the accrued benefits derived from
the Group’s MPF contributions that have been vested with
employees, which are deemed to be contributions from the
relevant employees.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R a B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 E(Z —Z _IF+_H=+—HIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

Employee benefits (Continuead)

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and
when employees rendered the services. All short-term employee
benefits are recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS
requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an
asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such
as wages, salaries and annual leave) after deducting any amount
already paid.

Borrowing costs
All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, management of the Group is required to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimates is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets within the next
financial year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR MR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —Z _UF+_A=+—HILFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Electrical and mechanical engineering services
contracts

The Group reviews and revises the estimated total contract
costs and margins to complete the satisfaction of these services
and the margin of each project as the contract progresses.
Budgeted costs and margins are prepared by management of
the Group on the basis of quotations from time to time provided
by the subcontractors or suppliers involved and the experience
of management of the Group. In order to keep the budget
accurate and up-to-date, management of the Group conducts
periodic reviews of the budgets of contracts by comparing
the budgeted amounts to the actual amounts incurred. Such
significant estimate may have impact on the margins recognised
in each period.

For construction contracts that contain variable consideration
such as variations in contract work, claims and incentive
payment, the Group estimates the amount of consideration
to which it will be entitled using the most likely amount, which
better predicts the amount of consideration contract only to
the extent that it is highly probable that such an inclusion will
not result in a significant revenue reversal in the future when
the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved. At the end of the reporting period,
the Group updates the estimated transaction price (including
updating its assessment of whether an estimate of variable
consideration is constrained) to represent faithfully the
circumstances present at the end of the reporting period and the
changes in circumstances during the reporting period.

Recognised amounts of revenue of HK$91,707,000 (2023:
HK$258,894,000) from electrical and mechanical engineering
services contracts reflect the management’s best estimate of
each contract’s outcome and stage of completion, which are
determined on the basis of a number of estimates. This includes
the assessment of the margins of on-going electrical and
mechanical engineering services contracts. For more complex
contracts in particular, costs to complete and margins are
subject to significant estimation uncertainty, the actual outcomes
in terms of total cost may be higher or lower than estimated at
the end of each reporting period, which would affect the revenue
and margins recognised in future years and adjustment to the
amounts recorded to date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R a B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 E(Z —Z _IF+_H=+—HIFE

4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Recognition of ECL for trade receivables and
contract assets

Trade receivables and contract assets have been assessed
individually. The Group applies internal credit rating for its
customers. The amounts are assessed individually by reference
to historical credit loss experience, aging analysis, repayment
history and/or current past due status of the debtor. ECL
estimates also consider the reasonable and supportable
forward-looking information that is available without undue cost
or effort. At every reporting date, the potential increase in credit
risk, the historical observed default rates are reassessed and
changes in the forward-looking information are considered. The
information about the ECL of the Group’s trade receivables and
contract assets are disclosed in Note 27.

Deferred tax asset

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, no deferred tax asset
has been recognised on the tax losses arising in Hong Kong
of approximately HK$7,656,000 (2023: arising in Macau of
approximately HK$7,917,000) due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. The realisability of the deferred tax asset
mainly depends on whether sufficient future profits or taxable
temporary differences will be available in the future, which is a
key source of estimation uncertainty. In cases where the actual
future taxable profits generated are less or more than expected,
or change in facts and circumstances which result in revision
of future taxable profits estimation, a material reversal or further
recognition of deferred tax assets may arise, which would be
recognised in profit or loss for the period in which such a reversal
or further recognition takes place.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR MR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —Z _UF+_A=+—HILFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are
stated at costs less accumulated depreciation and impairment,
if any. In determining whether an asset is impaired, the Group
has to exercise judgment and make estimation, particularly in
assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred or any indicators
that may affect the asset value; (2) whether the carrying value
of an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount, in
the case of fair value less costs of disposal calculation, the
available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at
arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices
less incremental costs for disposing of the asset; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in estimating the
recoverable amounts including cash flow projections and an
appropriate discount rate. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit
to which the assets belong, including allocation of corporate
assets when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be established, otherwise recoverable amount is determined
at the smallest group of cash generating units, for which the
relevant corporate assets have been allocated. Changing the
assumptions and estimates, including the discount rates or the
growth rate in the cash flow projections, could materially affect
the recoverable amounts.

As at 31 December 2024, the carrying amounts of property,
plant and equipment (including the owned properties and related
leasehold improvements) subject to impairment assessment
were HK$26,295,000 (2023: HK$27,600,000, after taking into
account the impairment losses of HK$2,803,000), Details of the
impairment of property, plant and equipment (including right-of-
use assets are disclosed in Note 15).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R a B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 E(Z —Z _IF+_H=+—HIFE

5. REVENUE 5. Yz
2024 2023
ZEINE —EC=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHE7T
Provision of electrical and mechanical IR S R T2 ARTS
engineering services recognised over time 48 B 5 e 57 91,707 258,894
The customers of the Group are mainly main contractors and AEBNELTEA RN REANMEKE
subcontractors in Macau and Hong Kong. Contracts with the BROEE -HAERRANENEES
Group’s customers are mainly fixed-price contracts, except for EERNEA ETEEFEERRI o
the variation orders.
Disaggregation of revenue Yzz 48
2024 2023
ZEIME —EC=fF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FAT FEx
By property type RYELERE D
Hotels and casinos EE Sz YR 8415 15,827 14,539
Residential properties FEYE 7,616 1,975
Commercial properties [EEXYES 4,375 4,091
Public properties N7/ ES 63,889 238,289
91,707 258,894
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR MR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —Z _UF+_A=+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. DEER
The Group is engaged in a single operating segment focusing on AEBNREE

the provision of electrical and mechanical engineering services.
This operating segment has been identified on the basis of
internal management reports that are regularly reviewed by the

directors of the Company, being the chief operating decision IFEFAh o A UL
makers, for the purpose of result allocation and performance TR o
assessment. Therefore, no further analysis of segment

information is presented.

Geographical information T
The Group’s operations are located in Macau and Hong Kong. A £ [ A

The Group’s revenue from external customers and information
about its non-current assets by geographical location of the
customers and the assets, respectively, are detailed below:

—EEDE EARRRMEE

R TA2ARTS - AEE D EHIRBARE
BHREEE ZRSHEAQRNES RIEE
EEARARE) THER UMEEDRRE

TBEINHDEERAYE—

URRPIREHR -

AEBRBIIEELHNBAUREER KR
EEMBUESDNIFRBEEEN Z5F
BRRIESIMT

Revenue from external

customers Non-current assets
RESMERE R B A FRBEE

Year ended 31 December At 31 December

BE+_A=+—HLEE R+ZBA=+—H
2024 2023 2024 2023
“EomE “EC=F “E-mE g -
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FET
Macau e 31,380 22,144 28,107 29,796
Hong Kong ) 60,327 236,750 1,502 1,609
91,707 258,894 29,609 31,405
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in e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HIE —ZE _UF+_HF=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEEMN ®@
Information about major customers ERETERRNNEN
Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of the total RERRBERAEEBLKEI0%U EHE
revenue of the Group during the year are as follows: PR
2024 2023
T mE “BC=HF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TAT
Customer A ZHA 55,890 232,509
7a. OTHER INCOME 7a. MU A
2024 2023
—E_mE —B=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT TAT
Interest income A EWA 1,342 1,014
Government grants (Note) BN #EEL (Ha2E) 20 =
Gain on disposal of scrap material HERER 2 Wi 299 =
Others Hih 115 164
1,776 1,178
Note: There are no unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies attaching B EE ¢ 5255 1a B I 48 2R 5 BR B R 14 S Bt B A 1
to these grants. ARIB W ©
7b. OTHER LOSSES 7b. HithE 18
2024 2023
—EomE T =F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TAT
Impairment losses on property, ¥ BERERENRERIE
plant and equipment - 2,803

- 2,803
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8. REVERSAL OF/(IMPAIRMENT LOSSES)
UNDER ECL MODEL, NET OF REVERSAL

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR MR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &ZE —EF_ME+_—F=+—HILFE

8. TAHRS KRR FAYHE[E
CRI{ERSHR) > 1 ER#EE]

2024 2023
—E-mE T oc=f
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THET
Reversal of/(impairment losses) IR IEERNTERRE SRR
under ECL model, net of reversal, B RV CRIERE) »
recognised on: NpR#EEE] :
— trade receivables — B E Z R 3,928 1,932
— contract assets —5HNEE (1,847) (5,680)
2,081 (8,748)
9. FINANCE COSTS 9. LB
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET THT
Interest on bank borrowing IRITERFE 201 224
Interest on lease liabilities HEaEHE 48 50
249 274
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10. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX

For the year ended 31 Decerrber 2024 HETZT U A=+—HIEFE

10. f&#R

Profit/(loss) before tax has been
arrived at after charging:

Directors’ remuneration
Other staff costs
— salaries and other allowance

— retirement benefit scheme contributions

Total staff costs
Less: staff costs included in cost of sales

Auditors’ remuneration

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Provision for long service payment
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BRIRATEA] (B4R ERER
TIBRRENR

EEME

Hh 8 TallA
—Fre R HAMER
—RREF 5B

BT R A48
S AHE AR 8 T A

2B EMEN =
M BB RREITE

REBRH S EE

giaEF (B518)
2023
BT =F
HK$’000
FET
3,071 2,864
21,884 27,628
585 825
25,540 31,317
(8,997) (18,075)
16,543 13,242
760 1,039
2,616 2,819
- 5




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR MR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —Z _UF+_A=+—HILFE

11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ and the chief executive’s emoluments

Details of the emoluments paid or payable to the directors
and chief executive of the Company disclosed pursuant to
the applicable Listing Rules and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, are as follows:

NEF -FTETHRAEREESME

() EFRETETHAEME
REBEERLHRARER QBRI
REAANDESEREIBZTHABEN
MR BRI T ¢

Salaries Retirement
and other benefit scheme
Fees allowance contributions Total
HER ROKER
s Hthi2Rh SHEI R ek
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAR TAR TAT
Year ended HE-_Z-m&E
31 December 2024 +-A=1+—HILEE
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Woo Chu Fai (Note (j) RBEE a2 - 1 1 12
Mr. Wan Man Keung (Note (i) FR3&%&%E (#fazi) - 1,230 17 1,247
Mr. Wun Chi Wai REREE - 538 18 556
Mr. Yu Chi Kwan ASELE - 518 18 536
Non-executive director HHITEE
Mrs. Kan Wan Wai Yee Mavis FIRZE XA 180 - - 180
Independent non-executive B IEBHITEE
directors
Mr. Lau Ping Cheung Kaizer ~ 2IiRE L4 180 - - 180
Ir Dr. Wong Wai Man BENXET T2
Raymond 180 - - 180
Ms. Chen Tak Yee BREst
Dickdy 180 - - 180
Total emoluments <& 4228 720 2,207 54 3,071
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R a B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 E(Z —Z _IF+_H=+—HIFE

11. DIRECTORS’; CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continuea)

(a) Directors’ and the chief executive’s emoluments

MNEF - FETHAEREEMNS
#)
(a) EFERFETHRAEMSE @

(Continued)
Salaries Retirement
and other benefit scheme
Fees allowance contributions Total
ek RIAET
ik Hithi2hs BEEEN faz
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TART TAERT TAET
Year ended HE_Z”-=
31 December 2023 +ZBA=+—HLEE
Executive directors HiTEZE
Mr. Woo Chu Fai (Note () PEBEE () - 858 18 876
Mr. Wun Chi Wai SEEE - 538 18 556
Mr. Yu Chi Kwan SR - 514 18 532
Non-executive directors FHTEE
Mr. Wan Man Keung (Note (i) B R38%&E (W) 180 - - 180
Mrs. Kan Wan Wai Yee Mavis  SFZE XA 180 - - 180
Independent non-executive B IEHITEE
directors
Mr. Lau Ping Cheung Kaizer ~ ZI{R= k4% 180 - - 180
Dr. Sham Chung Ping Alain, St {8+ 58S
BBS (Note (i) (Hizti) 62 = = 62
Mr. May Tai Keung Nicholas 18 K38584E (#22ii)
(Note (i) 62 - - 62
Ir Dr. Wong Wai Man BRENIEL IR
Raymond 118 = = 118
Ms. Chen Tak Yee RERLtT
Dickdy 118 - - 118
Total emoluments Bl 48 %8 900 1,910 54 2,864
Notes: Vo2

U

(i)

(i
(iv)

Mr. Woo Chu Fai acts as the chief executive of the Company
and his emoluments disclosed above include those for
services rendered by him as the chief executive. The director
resigned on 26 January 2024

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management of the
affairs of the Company and the Group. The non-executive
directors’ and independent non-executive directors’
emoluments shown above were for their services as directors
of the Company

Resigned on 5 May 2023

Re-designated from a non-executive director to an executive
director, and appointed as the chief executive of the
Company on 26 January 2024
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR MR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —Z _UF+_A=+—HILFE

11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 11.

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continueq)
(b) Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals include one (2023: one)
director of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2024, details of whose emoluments are included above.
Details of the emoluments of the remaining highest paid
individuals were as follows:

EE - FTETBRAERESME

f=))

(b) EEME
REBE_ZE_MONFE+"BA=+—HIE
FE -AABRSFMALTEE—% (Z
ETF I —%) KABES ) HEN
SEBEHN EX BRI ESHNA LT
il e =g

2024 2023
—E-OE 2T F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FAB7T

Employees (==
— salaries and other allowance — ¥ R EMERL 4,234 3,882
— retirement benefit scheme contributions —RBREH 5T TR 72 74
4,306 3,956

The emoluments of the aforesaid employees were within
the following bands:

LitEERMEEIN AT EE

2024 2023

—ET_ME T =F

Number of Number of

employees employees

BEEAH BEAH

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,0008 75 3 8
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 75 & 1,500,00078 7T 1 1
4 4

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors of
the Company nor the five highest paid individuals (including
directors and employees) as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
None of the directors of the Company waived or agreed to
waive any emoluments during both years.

AEBBEQLAATDEFHNALERRDS
FALT (BREEFKES MHEM
MEEAMATEBHRIMARNE
B FRBERME -MEXARRNESEN
MEFEREARBRETAIE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R a B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BZE _Z &+ _H=+—HI-FE

12. INCOME TAX CREDIT 12. FRIERIER

2024 2023
—E-OE —EC=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET AT

Macau Complementary Tax TR TEIR
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBRERERE (259) (1,392)
Current Tax BIHAFR I8 261 =

Hong Kong Profits Tax BHEFER
Current Tax BRHERIR I - 1,209
Deferred Tax (Note 17) IEIEFRIE (Hz217) (23) (35)
(21) (218)

Macau Complementary Tax is calculated at 12% (2023: 12%) of
the estimated assessable profits exceeding MOP600,000 for the
year.

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime of Hong Kong
Profits Tax, the first HK$2 million of assessable profits of the
qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and assessable
profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The
assessable profits of group entities not qualifying for the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a
flat rate of 16.5%. Accordingly, the Hong Kong Profits Tax of the
qualifying group entity is calculated at 8.25% on the first HK$2
million of the estimated assessable profits and at 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profits above HK$2 million.
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RER RFIMTERIZEIEB600,0008F 7T
Mt ERREFA12% (Z2E_=F !
12%) 5t & o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tr e MBI RMIE

{777 N |

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —Z _UF+_A=+—HILFE

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders of
the Company during the year ended 31 December 2024, nor
has any dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting

period (2023: Nil).

=

&

12. INCOME TAX CREDIT (continued) 12. FR{SIRIE % @
The income tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the profit/ rEireEnkEtE2EmRaxFERBAT
(loss) before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss BRI REBRRATRR (518 W RN
and other comprehensive income as follows: TS s
2024 2023
—E_mE T =F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FAT FAETT
Profit/(loss) before tax BRAGATER (8518 3,781 (8,188)
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate HEBNERINE16.5%1E
of 16.5% (2023: 16.5%) HRIE (CET=4F :16.5%) 624 (1,351)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REMBENEEEEEDN
operating in other jurisdiction MBABMEARZZE (93) -
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for AHNRASZNR
tax purpose 385 2,061
Tax effect of income not taxable for ERRWANRBEE
tax purpose (145) (A477)
Income tax at concessionary rate BEEREENFRE - (165)
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised RERNRIBEENR T2 1,263 1,107
Tax effect of temporary differences not RSB R E MRS &
recognised (394) =
Utilisation of tax losses previously FABERERIRIBEIE
not recognised (1,306)
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBEREE (259) (1,392)
Others HAth (96) )
Income tax credit for the year FENTERIER (21) (218)
13. DIVIDENDS 13. iR 2

REE-S-mE+=A=+—HLEE
A AT B BB SRR RS
SEEFEDEOSF
(===

%K ERRE

P
4iE) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R a B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 E(Z —Z _IF+_H=+—HIFE

14. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 14. §IREF  (5518)

The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per share is based on SREREF (G8) TR T8IEE .
the following data:

2024 2023
—EIME =BT =F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHE7T
Profit/(loss) "H (58
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to KABEE NELER
owners of the Company wmA (E518) 3,802 (7,970)
2024 2023
Number of Number of
shares shares
a4 & HE
’000 ‘000
T TFh%
Number of shares bR 4=
Number of ordinary shares =Rl 4= 2,000,000 2,000,000
No diluted earnings/(loss) per share for both years are presented TEEZMEEENSKREERY (B
as there are no potential ordinary shares in issue during both B) AAMEEERALEBETEESETEE
years. f% o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tr e MBI RMIE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —Z _UF+_A=+—HILFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. M FE - BE KRR E
Owned Leased Leasehold Furniture Motor
properties properties improvements and fixtures  Equipment vehicles Total
BENE HENE HEWERE GAREE B AE fam

HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS000  HK§000  HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T TR TR TET TR T

COST KA

At 1 January 2023 RIB_=£-F—H 32,548 9,265 5,162 116 2,180 310 49,581
Additions HE - 638 - - 302 - 940
At 31 December 2023 RZB2Z=F+"F=1—H 32,548 9,903 5,162 116 2,482 310 50,521
Addttions E - 665 190 - 1 - 856
At 31 December 2024 RZE-ME+-A=1—H 32,548 10,568 5,352 116 2,483 310 51,377

DEPRECIATION AND WERHE

IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2023 RZEZ=F—-F—-H 1,841 8,305 1,858 116 1,111 310 13,541
Provided for the year FREE 651 806 1,025 - 337 - 2,819
Impairment loss recognised  FAERERRRAELSE

in profit or loss 2,610 = 193 — — = 2,803
At 31 December 2023 RIZ2Z=5+"B=+-H 5,102 9,11 3,076 116 1,448 310 19,163
Provided for the year FREE 593 740 913 - 370 - 2,616
At 31 December 2024 RIZ2ZME+-B=+-H 5,695 9,851 3,989 116 1,818 310 21,779

CARRYING VALUES REE

At 31 December 2024 RIZ2ZME+-B=+-H 26,853 7 1,363 - 665 - 29,598
At 31 December 2023 RIB2Z=5+"B=+-H 27,446 792 2,086 - 1,034 - 31,358
The above items of property, plant and equipment are Lt E N BERRENEERBEZ LR

depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per DUF &I E .

annum:

Owned properties 2% BEYE 2%

Leased properties The shorter of its estimated HEMZE EastERASmMNEE
useful life and the lease term HAME PR EE

Leasehold improvements The shorter of its estimated THEYELEE ZastEREmMNAE
useful life and the lease term HAm & PRV B G &

Furniture and fixtures 20% KR EE 20%

Equipment 20% B 20%

Motor vehicles 20% AE 20%

The Group has pledged the owned property with carrying A& EBIKIFREE%415,066,00078 7T (=

amount of HK$15,066,000 (2023: HK$15,211,000) to secure T =4 15,211,000 7T) WEEYEL

the bank borrowing (see Note 22) granted to the Group. HEREAERE HIRTER(RME22) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR MR AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 E(Z —Z _IF+_H=+—HIFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The Group as a lessee

Right-of-use assets (included in the leased properties in the
property, plant and equipment):

15. ¥ -BERRE @

FEBRERS—ZEEA

ERREE GtAME BEARETHHE
EY)

2024 2023
—TmE —E_=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHE7T

Expenses relating to short-term leases with ERFEHA1 218 B AE SR Y
lease terms end within 12 months THATE E A RIRIR X 929 1,067
Total cash outflow for leases HERERH4E%8 1,718 1,878

For both years, the Group leases various offices, staff quarters
and warehouses for its operations. Lease contracts are entered
into for fixed terms of 1 to 3 years. Lease terms are negotiated
on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms
and conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing
the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period for which the
contract is enforceable.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for
properties. As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the portfolio of
short-term lease is similar to the portfolio of short-term lease to
which the short-term lease expense disclosed as above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR MR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —Z _UF+_A=+—HILFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Restrictions or covenants on leases

In addition, carrying amounts of lease liabilities of HK$738,000
are recognised with related right-of-use assets of HK$717,000
as at 31 December 2024 (2023: lease liabilities of HK$814,000
and related right-of-use assets of HK$792,000). The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the
security interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor.
Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing
pUrposes.

Impairment assessment

The Group carried out reviews of the recoverable amounts
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. The reviews
were performed at cash-generating unit (“CGU”) level, which is
determined as the two geographical locations, Macau and Hong
Kong.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the directors of the
Company assessed for whether CGUs have any impairment
indicator by considering whether it recorded operating loss in
recent two reporting periods and whether budget (the projected
operating cashflow after overhead allocation) was met in current
period. The Group incurred operating loss in Macau in recent
two reporting periods. The management has reviewed the
recoverability of the relevant carrying amount of the CGU in
Macau. The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined as the
higher of value-in-use or the fair value less cost of disposal.

15. ¥ -BE R %E @

E1TH B A R R PR HI 2 3240

o R ZE-_@mWE+-_HF=+—H"
738,000 8 Tt E & EREEERE > 1
MR EEEAT17,0008T (T2 =
F  FAEaEA814,0005% T B8R £
BB EAT792,000/87T)  BFRHBAFENME
BEEEPEFRERIN > S 5% I
MEAZY-BEEERRERBREBE
HfRe

A E TS
BEASEHNBERECETREEYEE
ERER AEBEHNAIWESRETE
ZoBRBRAETEFLEM (HEEEEN)
KT R EE B E A M EE
BERFIRER-

BE_Z_NMF+_A=+—HLFE =&
ABEFBBRERNOAMERSABER
BRRCERERTRE (BRERDERRA
SHEERE N BENAHBAE NGRS
EEBUESARAAENR AMERS
HAfE > AEBEERFIEECERR BERE
EERNRFAREELEUEMREER
FIUR O] o 3R < A A BB U B9 B] Ui [o] = BE DU fE
RAEERNATFEREENERSEERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tra MR RMIE

107 O = |

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_—Z

15.

152 SEM Holdings Limited j#3%

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Impairment assessment (Continued)

For the purpose of impairment assessment, the directors of the
Company estimated the recoverable amounts for property, plant
and equipment and (including the owned properties and related
leasehold improvements) allocated to the CGU in Macau with
carrying amounts, net of impairment of HK$26,295,000 as at 31
December 2024 (2023: HK$27,600,000).

The recoverable amounts of the property, plant and
equipment (including owned properties and related leasehold
improvements) allocated to the CGU in Macau have been
determined based on their fair value less costs of disposal. As at
31 December 2023, the property, plant and equipment (including
owned properties and related leasehold improvements) were
impaired to their recoverable amount of HK$27,600,000 and
the impairment of HK$2,803,000 directly attributable to the
own properties and related leasehold improvements has been
recognised in profit or loss within the relevant functions to which
these assets relate during the year ended 31 December 2023.
No impairment was recognised in profit or loss during the year
ended 31 December 2024.

The Group’s owned properties and related leasehold
improvements was valued on 31 December 2024 by
Masterpiece Valuation Advisory Limited (2023: Roma Appraisals
Limited), an independent professional valuer not related to the
Group.

EREBRAR

—UE+H=1+—HIEFE

15. ¥ -BERRE @

RIEF G @)

MAEFEMS  ARABDEZFHAN -
“HE+ZB=+—HomARMYE
i = K & f%(ﬂé@ﬁ%%)ﬁ’z@%ﬁ%ﬂ‘ﬂi
B)IREEEBEMUN RO EEEREE
B4 3608 226,295,000 5 (CBE =4 :
27,600,000% 7T) ©

ﬁﬁﬂ%iﬁl?ﬁiﬁ%é%%ﬁm%ﬁ i = R
RE(BEEEYERERABEESEEE) W
Tuﬁz@ﬁﬁﬁaﬁﬁéﬂﬁﬂ?fﬁ,ﬁkﬁ’%ﬁm&%
E-R_E_=F+"B=+—H %%~
BEKRLE (BIEEEWEKREREER
1&) B EZE E fJuk[o]£%827,600,00078 7t
BEEYEREREEEEEEEGNRE
82,803,000 T ERBE_T_=Z&F+_
A=t HLEEERARZEEENBRR
AEEBPIMIE R R B E_ T _IME+—
B=+—HLEE TERESGEBRIERE

=]
At ©

FEBNEAYERBRAEREDRZ
T NFE+_RA=+—HHRAEFTERTE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE =

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Impairment assessment (Continued)

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, Masterpiece
Valuation Advisory Limited (2023: Roma Appraisals Limited) has
appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the valuation
of properties in the relevant locations. The recoverable amounts
of the owned properties and related leasehold improvements
have been determined based on their fair value less costs of
disposal. The Group uses direct comparison to estimate the
fair value less costs of disposal of the assets which is based on
the recent transaction prices for similar properties adjusted for
nature, location and conditions of the property. The fair value
measurement is categorised into Level 3 fair value hierarchy.

In estimating the fair values of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use, and the major
assumptions are as follows:

Valuation technique(s)

H{ER =% EXTABERBAKE

Significant unobservable input(s)

4 AH

AR E B ERRMEE
P A=t

15. ¥ -BE R %E @

RBAEE @)

ARBDEFRR BANEEDERLAT
(CE2=F ERERFLARAR) 1
HEAMEYELERE S BERKAHRK
B BAYERERMEAEEENTKEIEER
EEREATEREERKETE AEEE
AERLEBEZGEAEENRAFTERELE
RS ThE B LY EVRE IR 5B I
RV ERMEE MBS ETHE A
FESERABZ=ZMRALATFERERC

RIEEEN R TFER  MENRSRRE
RamHE AR BX2RRWT

Sensitivity
BRUE

Direct comparison approach

Recent transaction price, taking into account
the differences in location, and individual
factors, such as frontage and size, between
the comparables and the property, which

A significant increase in the
recent transaction price would
result in a significant increase
in fair value, and vice versa.

ranged from MOP60,000 to MOP141,000
(2023: MOP65,000 to MOP125,000) per

square metre.

BB BRITZ AR AT

NEE SFHAN

141,000/2F T (CTE ==

Z£125,000;2F97T) ©

MB Bt R A ELERYEEZ BRIAMR
MEZAMAERERNREZR @GP E&ER)
F60,000;#2FF o=
£ : 65,0002 P9 75

SEPNUEREI I SECSSUN
FAERBIEN » RZTFA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR MR AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 E(Z —Z _IF+_H=+—HIFE

16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

16. B 5 R HthEURFRIE

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET THT
Trade receivables JFE Uk B 7 BR =X 71,224 26,157
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EERIEEE (8,824) (5,123)
62,400 21,034
Deposits and prepayments e KRFENFIE 1,219 1,278
63,619 22,312

Presented as: E P
Non-current JETREN 11 47
Current TREN 63,608 22,265
63,619 22,312

The Group usually allows a credit period of 30 to 60 days
to its customers. The following is an aging analysis of trade
receivables net of allowance for credit losses based on the

AEBBEERODEEFEE AR08 E60H
RIS E R - MRS IR » FEUN B 5 8RN (J0BR
EEBRER) REDMHREZEHES)

invoice dates at the end of the reporting period are as follows: (IS
2024 2023
—EmE B =F
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#T FH7T
Within 30 days 30HA 48,127 8,183
31 to 60 days 31E60H 2,533 1,957
61 to 90 days 61£E90H 117 1,099
Over 90 days B1E0H 11,623 14,825
62,400 21,034
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR MR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —Z _UF+_A=+—HILFE

16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continueq)

Included in the trade receivables are debtors with a carrying
amount of HK$14,273,000 (2023: HK$17,881,000) at 31
December 2024, which are past due. Out of the past due
balances, HK$11,623,000 (2023: HK$14,010,000) has been
past due 90 days or more and is not considered as in default
at 31 December 2024 by considering the continuous business
relationship and historical repayments from these customers.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances or
charge any interest thereon.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for ECL on
all trade receivables and contract assets. Trade receivables and
contract assets have been assessed for ECL individually.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer. In determining the recoverability of trade receivables,
the Group considers any change in the credit quality of the
customers from the date credit was initially granted up to
the end of the reporting period. The majority of the Group’s
trade receivables that are past due but not impaired are from
customers with good credit quality with reference to respective
settlement history and forward-looking information and the
Group considers any change in the expected life of the trade
receivables at the end of the reporting period.

Details of impairment assessment on trade receivables, other
receivables and deposits are set out in Note 27.

16. B 5 R EH tFEILFRIE )

ATE_NE+_"_B=+—H EKES
IR EEE AR EZR 14,273,000/ 75
(ZZB =4 :17,881,0003 7T) BIFE W
I8 o PREHAAE R R 2 11,623,000 7T (ZF
— =14 ! 14,010,000 75) B #HIO0K 3¢ A
ERERIAZERFNFEXERBGRR
ZERPMNBEEF O NR_E_NE+_4
=+ —HAERAEN AEBWERZE
(S ERTF A M A K IR S 3 B WK ER B9 AR (1] F
Bo

AEBRBBIET AR BUE SRR
REMEES RBHEERIE -BKEZK
MREHNEECHEREEBERERET G

REZEAHERZA AEE ST LEE
ERNEEERTETEERNEERE I
EERWEZRMOITREIER  AEEE
EREPHNEEEZBEEERVIREAH
EESRSHRNETNES cEBAHE
RBRENEKREZERRAMOKRBEEE
EREFNER L2EXENEEEL KA
EEER BEAREENSREAREEEUY
B2 R TREF S -

BERAEWE 7 IR HEWGRIE R R TR
G5 B E M sE27 ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR MR AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE _—Z _IUF+_H=+—HIFE

17. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY

The followings are the major deferred tax assets (liabilities)
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior
years:

UTARREAFERZAFENEINIE
BERMBREE (BR) MHEEE) :

Accelerated
tax Right-of-use ECL Lease
depreciation assets provision liabilities Total
BHER
MERERE  ERAEEE EHEEE HEEE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET THET TET TET
At 1 January 2023 RZE_=%—F—H (106) (149) 4 149 (102)
Credited (charged) to profit or loss A8 st A (15%) 33 (26) @ 30 35
At 31 December 2023 and WIEZ=F+"A=+—-HK

1 January 2024 “2TMFE—F—H (73) (175) 2 179 (67)
Credited (charged) to profit or loss 148z st A (41FR) 23 57 - (57) 23
At 31 December 2024 RZFZME+ZA=+-H (50) (118) 2 122 (44)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses arising in Hong Kong of approximately HK$7,656,000
(2023: Nil) available for offset against future profits. No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of the tax losses due
to unpredictability of future profit streams.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had unused tax losses
arising in Macau of MOP8,166,000 (equivalents to approximately
HK$7,917,000) which were fully utilised during the year ended
31 December 2024.
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R EHR  AEBRESNREBELEN RS
R IEE18497,656,0008 70 (B - =4 !
#) o] HIEE R AOEF] o B R AR R A KR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tr e MBI RMIE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —Z _UF+_A=+—HILFE

18. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 18. EHNEBEERANER

LIABILITIES
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FAETT
Contract assets from provision of RERMHEETRREN
electrical and mechanical engineering BHEE
services
— Unbilled revenue —KHEZEWA 73,576 109,276
— Retention money —1RxEE 36,414 46,299
109,990 lISSESHS
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEERERE (17,733) (23,519)
92,257 132,060
Contract liabilities sHEE
Provision of electrical and mechanical IRMHE I RN T2 RS
engineering services 8,204 532
Movement in contract assets (net of loss allowance): SHEEESD (OREEEE):
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FET
At the beginning of the year REH 132,060 113,707
Revenue recognised during the year FAERUW = 91,175 258,756
Progress billing during the year FREERIE (129,131) (234,723)
Impairment of contract assets SHEERE (1,847) (5,680)
At the end of the year RER 92,257 132,060

At 1 January 2023, contract assets and contract liabilities
amounted to HK$113,707,000 and HK$138,000 respectively.

RIBE_=—F—H—-—H &6NBEENRGNE

&9 Bl A113,707,0007 75 K2 138,00078 7T ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R a B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE _—Z _IUF+_H=+—HIFE

18. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 18. BN BERANERw

LIABILITIES (Continued)

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s right to
consideration for work completed and not billed because the
rights are conditional on quantity surveyors’ or customers’
inspection. The contract assets are transferred to trade
receivables when the rights become unconditional.

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract
assets recognised are as follows:

The Group’s construction contracts include payment schedules
which require stage payments over the construction period with
reference to surveys of work performed to date. The Group
typically transfers the contract assets to trade receivables when
the rights become unconditional.

The Group also typically agrees to a defect liability period of
1 to 2 years from the date of the practical completion of the
construction for 5% to 10% of the contract sum. This amount
of retention money is included in contract assets until the end
of the defect liability period as the Group’s entitlement to this
final payment is conditional on completion of defect liability
period. The defect liability period serves as an assurance that
the construction services performed comply with agreed-
upon specifications and such assurance cannot be purchased
separately. The Group classifies these contract assets as
current because the Group expects to realise them in its normal
operating cycle.

Retention money is unsecured, interest-free and recoverable at
the end of the defect liability period of 1 to 2 years from the date
of the completion of respective projects.
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18.

19.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE =

CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES (Continued)

The amount of receipt in advance from a customer is netted
off against retention money on a particular contract basis and
presented as contract liabilities. The contract liabilities balance
at the beginning of the reporting period of HK$532,000 (2023:
HK$138,000) is recognised as revenue in profit or loss during the
year ended 31 December 2024.

Details of impairment assessment on contract assets are set out
in Note 27.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/TIME
DEPOSIT/CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Pledged bank deposits as at 31 December 2023 were pledged
to secure the performance bonds (see Note 29) granted to the
Group, which carry interest at prevailing market rate ranging
from 0.875% to 0.885% per annum. No pledged bank deposit
as at 31 December 2024.

Time deposit represents a bank deposit with original maturity
date of over three months and the balance as at 31 December
2024 carried a fixed interest rate ranging at 0.25% to 3.9%
(2023: ranging from 0.875% to 3.60%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2024, cash and cash equivalents comprise
of cash held and short term bank deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less which carry interest at prevailing
market rate ranging from 0.01% to 0.25% (20283: 0.001% to
0.05%) per annum.

Details of impairment assessment on pledged bank deposits,
time deposit and bank balances are set out in Note 27.

18.

19.

4 AH

AR E B ERRMEE
P A=t

BNEERSHNER®

BREEMEEFESNEENRREE
TEFNAGHEE MR BREHINEGHNE
BiEGMms BE_ S _NE+_A=+—
HIEFEREBERARDBWFES32,000% 5T
(- =4 : 138,000 7T) °

BREGNEENRE G BN 2T -

EIRIFIRITERERERRE
RREEFEY

AZE=F+-HB=+—HWBEEFIR
TEAREEIRIREUARERERNBLIREK
(RHIE29) (EHER > BB HBAIEXRESE
0.875%%0.885%sT R M _MWF+ =
B=+—H> I EBIKFRITER

EHERERIBEBA=EENIET
7; A&ﬁ\_E_EEJr—)%:wL—EIE
BEEHNFK0.25%E3.9% (ZE_=F .
0.875%E3.60%) 5t BRI4E %o

RIZEZWOFE+ZRB=+—H ' RE&A
TEEBYEEVNRIBEA=BAZUT
MRS REHRTER BIBTHS
FEMENTF0.01%F0.25% (ZE_=
0.001%%0.05%) 51 &2 ©

BB RIFRITER TR IRITAS
BRBVRE ST 1B MY 5E27
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For the year ended 31 Decerrber 2024 HETZT U A=+—HIEFE

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

20. FE(J B 5 AR R EL B ("R IE

160 SEM Holdings Limited B %A RAF]

Trade payables (nhote a)

Retention payables (note b)

Accrued expenses

Amount due to a director of the Company
(note c)

Provision for long service payments

Provision for rectification work (note a)

Provision for onerous contract (note e)

Other payables

Analysed for reporting purposes as:
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

BB 2R (Wata)

EREE (WD)

FE5tRAsZ

BN AT—REENE
(Hizte)

RERZ R A

oy T2t (Watd)

BIRaNEE (Wite)

H AR RRIE

MEEMS DM
IEREERE
nea’

2023
—ET=H

HK$'000

FAT

6,757 8,241
17,736 17,530
4,109 13,732
- 34

5 5

15 29

79 908

146 84
28,847 40,563
5 5
28,842 40,558
28,847 40,563




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR MR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —Z _UF+_A=+—HILFE

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

Notes:

(@

Trade payables

The credit period of trade payables is ranging from 30 to 90 days.
The following is an aging analysis of the trade payables based on
the invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

20. FE{ & 5 AR R H Ath FE 7RI

%)

Mk :

(C)

F&1 B 5 8RR

P B 5 BRI E & F30E0H ° 1t &
SR BB ZRTERE DT h &R
BERZSIA0E -

(b)

(c)

2024 2023

—EME “EBT=5

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FHET FET

Within 30 days 30H ™A 267 1,453
31 to 60 days 31ZE60H 247 1,744
61 to 90 days 61ZE90H 179 540
Over 90 days #B3E90H 6,064 4,504
6,757 8,241

At 31 December 2024, the Group’s trade payables comprised
of an amount due to a related company, Ready Electrical Metal
Work Limited (“Ready Electrical Metal”) amounted to approximately
HK$1,860,000 (2023: HK$790,000). Mr. Wan Man Keung, an
executive director of the Company, is the executive director and
controlling shareholder of the related company.

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, retention payables classified
as current liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial
position as the amounts are expected to be payable within one
year.

Amount due to a director of the Company

(b)

(c)

RIZ2ME+"A=+—8>xEBNE
NEBESRNEERN —ERBEAR2ES
REBURBRAR (2EBRTE) IR
18#91,860,00078 7t (ZZ =4 : 790,000
7o) c ARBHMITEEZFRBICTESZ A
NERTESFRIERRR -

RIE_NER_BE_=F+_F=+—

B stAGREMBRARBE TN RSB ENE
HREB TR AR —FR e

BNEAT—HEEMRE

2024 2023

—EmE TECOF

HK$’000 HK$'000

THT FH7T

Mr. Wan Man Keung FRBEE - 34

The amount was non-trade in nature, unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

ZRERIFEZME BIRR R RAR

EXRMEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tra MR RMIE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 E(Z —Z _IF+_H=+—HIFE

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 20. FE{1 & 2 IR R A& 47k
(#)

Notes: (Continued) sk (48)

(d) The provision for rectification work relates to the estimated (d EXTREEEERREARTLETENRT
cost of work agreed to be carried out for the rectification work ENHET TR - BHEZS-NE+ A
to customers. Anticipated expenditure is HK$15,000 (2023: =+—BHIEFEEEEZA15,000%8 T (=
HK$29,000) for the year ended 31 December 2024. These T~ =4 : 29,0008 70) c HN L EIESE A
amounts have not been discounted for the purposes of measuring ZECHEMAEENTEEEMS MR
the provision for rectification work, because the effect is not o
material.

(e) The provision for onerous contract relates to contract with () BEAVEHBRETERNGL FIL AR
customer under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the BTEERANTERIEMN BITEBHNARA
obligation exceed the economic benefits to be received due to 7% 2 ik A B A8 A AT B Y A8 T ) i o

anticipated increase in certain production costs.

21. LEASE LIABILITIES 21.fHE&E
2024 2023
—E-NE TET=4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET Tt
Lease liabilities payable: FENEESRE:
Within one year R—FR 430 603
Within a period of more than one year R—FE M BB MmN
but not more than two years NS oS 308 211
738 814
Less: Amount due for settlement with B AERBEEZR —l—_@
12 months shown under current BREHREE 2
liabilities (430) (603)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months SJWEIERBBaE 2R+ 2ER
under non-current liabilities B HEE 2 FIE 308 211
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to HE_E_NFE+_B=+—HILEFEHA
lease liabilities is 5.21% (2023: 5.21%) per annum for the year AREEEaENNMEETHREEENXS
ended 31 December 2024. FE521% (ZTEBEZ=F:521%) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tr e MBI RMIE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —Z _UF+_A=+—HILFE

22. BANK BORROWING 22, IR1TEM
2024 2023
ZEINE EC=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T FHTT
Secured bank borrowing BIRRIRITENR 5,354 6,095
The carrying amount of the above borrowing is _E #iLf& =R AYER EE
repayable (based on scheduled repayment (IR ERHETEETE
dates set out in the loan agreement): EXHER)
Within one year —FRN 781 732
Within a period of more than one year but not BB —EB R BBME
exceeding two years 806 759
Within a period of more than two years but 838 M B N A A
not exceeding five years 2,585 2,448
Within a period of more than five years 848 L F 1,182 2,156
5,354 6,095
Less: Amount due within one year B AR AaRIET
shown under current liabilities R—FANEIRRZ I8 (781) (740)
Amount shown under non-current liabilities FIRIERBBEE T ZRIE 4,573 5,355
The loan carried interest at variable market rate of Prime Rate L ERIGREEFXEE2.55%M 0] &h
less 2.55% per annum and was repayable in instalments over BRHXFE ) BARB S - —E£MIEmNHE
10 years from the date of drawdown in 2021. The proceed was HAFESH1OE R D EIES - FAEXIEAN A
used to finance the acquisition of owned property with carrying BEISAME BERIENR S NE

amount of HK$15,066,000 (2023: HK$15,211,000) at 31
December 2024 included in the property, plant and equipment,
which was pledged to the bank to secure the bank loan.

+ A =1+—HBREE%15,066,000/8 7T
(ZEBEZ-=4 15,211,000 7T) WE B Y
(RHisE15) IRIEES  HIKF FTRITLUIE
RIBITERR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR MR AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 E(Z —Z _IF+_H=+—HIFE

23. SHARE CAPITAL 23. i 7
Number of Share
shares capital
Ak 4] f& s
HK$’000
FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each EIEE0.0O1B TR B
Authorised: ERE -
At 1 January 2023, 31 December 2023 and (‘:gi_fﬁ A—H-
31 December 2024 “E=HF+ZRA=1+—Hk
—ETWRE+"H=+—H 5,000,000,000 50,000
Issued and fully paid: BRITRERE :
At 1 January 2023, 31 December 2023 and C:’;:_fﬁ A—HB-
31 December 2024 2+ "H=+—HK
“ETEF+ZA=+—H 2,000,000,000 20,000

24. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Eligible employees of the Group are covered by a government-
mandated defined contribution plan managed by the Macau
Government, namely Social Security Fund Contribution,
pursuant to which a fixed amount of retirement benefit would be
determined and paid to the Macau Government. Contributions
are generally made by both employees and employers by paying
a fixed amount on a monthly basis to the Social Security Fund

24. BRIAEFIEHE

Contribution. The Group funds the entire contribution and has no
further commitments beyond its monthly contributions.
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24.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR MR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —Z _UF+_A=+—HILFE

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME (continueq)

The Group participates in the MPF Schemes under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF
Schemes are held separately from those of the Group in
funds under the control of an independent trustee. The Group
contributes 5% of the relevant payroll costs for each employee
to the MPF Schemes, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HK$30,000 for the MPF Schemes, which contribution
is matched by employees.

Obligation to pay LSP under Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57)

For the Group’s subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong, pursuant
to the Employment Ordinance, Chapter 57, the Group has the
obligation to pay LSP to qualifying employees in Hong Kong
under certain circumstances (e.g. dismissal by employers or
upon retirement), subject to a minimum of 5 years employment
period, based on the following formula:

Last monthly wages (before termination of employment) X 2/3
X Years of service

Last monthly wages are capped at HK$22,500 while the amount
of long service payment shall not exceed HK$390,000. This
obligation is accounted for as a post-employment defined
benefit plan.

Furthermore, the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
passed in 1995 permits the Group to utilise the Group’s
mandatory MPF contributions, plus/minus any positive/negative
returns thereof, for the purpose of offsetting LSP payable to an
employee (the “Offsetting Arrangement”).

24. BRAEFETE @

AEBREEF BRI M LRSS ENRE S
HEEEBEANESESERTEE - BRE
SENEEEBABUIREAZEFNNESR
THEEBREESRFA FEBERRE
E5tBFH B R EEEAM &M A5%HH
o ERREstEINEAERAWA LIRS
30,000 7T xR R B ECE

REBERERIES B575) » IR
(e A e

BEBEEBEBRG (B57F) ' HRAERT
EBEENMBELAR EREBRT (HIU
EEXREIERN AEFZANTERENES
ETIXNEMRSE FEREEDSFEN
FERAR > WRU T ARE !

EE—EANIE (FREELLZH)
X 2/3X ARFE R

RB—EAMNTE LRA22,5005% 7T M
HAR B N £ 8815 4#8390,000/8 7T ° 15
BEEBHEAA—BEEREERNTIET
1ZE o

o RIE-—NANBFBBRGIELRE
sHEIE G > 2<% @ 5] LUF) A A4 5 B o ) 1
ABENHESEMLE BEEEE/ 8
O AIHERE TN RARS =
(R 22 HE) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tra MR RMIE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BZE _Z &+ _H=+—HI-FE

107 O = |

24.

166 SEM Holdings Limited j#3%

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME (continueq)

Obligation to pay LSP under Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57) (Continued)

The Amendment Ordinance was gazetted on 17 June 2022,
which abolishes the use of the accrued benefits derived from
employers’ mandatory MPF contributions to offset the LSP. The
Abolition will officially take effect on the Transition Date (i.e., 1
May 2025). Separately, the Government of the HKSAR is also
expected to introduce a subsidy scheme to assist employers for
a period of 25 years after the Transition Date on the LSP payable
by employers up to a certain amount per employee per year.

Under the Amendment Ordinance, the Group’s mandatory
MPF contributions, plus/minus any positive/negative returns,
after the Transition Date can continue to be applied to offset
the pre-Transition Date LSP obligation but are not eligible to
offset the post-Transition Date LSP obligation. On the other
hand, the accrued benefits derived from the Group’s voluntary
contributions made pre-, on or post-transition can continue to
be used to offset pre- and post-transition LSP. Furthermore, the
LSP obligation before the Transition Date will be grandfathered
and calculated based on the Last monthly wages immediately
preceding the Transition Date and the years of service up
to that date. The Amendment Ordinance has impact on the
Group’s LSP liability with respect to employees that participate
in MPF Scheme and the Group has accounted for the offsetting
mechanism and its abolition.

At the end of the reporting period, there were no forfeited
contributions which arose upon employees leaving the schemes
prior to their interests in the Group’s contributions becoming
fully vested and which are available to reduce the contributions
payable by the Group in future years.

EREBRAR

24. BRAEFETE @
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BRFEENRFE @)

BERAIR T _—_FARATEtHAS"
BEFR T E R E R E S BB ESHER 2K
HOHRBRB ML - BERREBRER
HEIZTE-AFRERA—H) EXEX-IE
S BERFRITHEBFRGEEE AR
AU26F AHEH — IR ST 8 BB BREX
T—EEBENEUEISFNRMARBE-

RBESTRD > EBEH IR AEER®
BEHMEE ML/ BEEFE/ 8K
m e A LA A P 8 E B BIRT R R AR
BEEG BEABERAREERERRERN
RUBRBEEB -5 —HH 2EEREBE
A @R R B E R B R RE LB

i P 4 8 R P R S B R A AR R R REAAR
%%EMFLFE%%WE%%?%%?
RS WIRREE BRI B #HANEE
BB ERE ﬁ#éf@ﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁl
M2 RRE T s 8RS AENRAR
BEREEETE MAEEDEHES
R ELBEFRFH R 2 o

RERSHR  BHERARENRAERHRY
RoXHEBAREFEMEERETAU
HRRRAERERENERBE R UM

=
o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE =

25. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere
in the consolidated financial statements, the Group entered into
the following related party transactions:

Transactions with related parties

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group has made
purchases of materials from Ready Electrical Metal amounting to
HK$4,166,000 (2023: HK$790,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group has made
consultancy fee amounting to HK$600,000 to Jianda Holdings
Limited (2023: Nil), an entity controlled by Mr. Wan Man Keung.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group has made
rental payment amounting to HK$478,000 to Mr. Wan Man
Keung (2023: Nil).

Compensation of key management personnel

Compensation of key management personnel represents the
remuneration of the directors of the Company during both years,
which is disclosed in Note 11.

AR E B ERRMEE
P A=t

5.FERRXS
ﬁ#Aw%ﬁ%ﬁ@mﬁ%ﬁ%m 5 R
GEEN AEBT T THBES RS |

BIRER IR 5

HE_ZT_ME+_HA=+—HIEE &
ERBEEESSEEEME4,166,000/8 7T
(ZE =4 : 790,000/ TT) °

BHE_ T NWE+_A=+—HIEFE &
%lhﬁ&%ﬁ?ﬁi?ﬂﬁﬂm,ﬁg EETREA
[RA T {TEERI&600,0008 T (2 - =
= I

BE_Z_WFE+_BA=+—HIEEE K
SEERFRRILE LB ETR478,0008
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26.

27.

168 SEM Holdings Limited j#3%

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will be
able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return
to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from
prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes the lease liabilities and bank borrowing disclosed in
Notes 21 and 22 respectively, net of cash and cash equivalents
and equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors of the
Company consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
directors of the Company, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends and issue of
new shares and debts.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Categories of financial instruments

26.

27.

BEAREEER

FEBERHEE R DIRAFEAEERREESE
REge ARZEBBICEH AR 2B
FER/RRERRALOR  BEFIE K&
BRI RS RN -

FEBNEFRBEEFEE (BED A
MR sE21 R22FF I BERIFEE B E R R1TE
;) ERHGRRERREFEYFRREK
AR ANEEED (BREEETRARE
) °

AAREEZRFB/EERABELRE ED
ZEBNN—B D ZADEFERELRAK
FREZEEFBANRR - RBEELTE
ENHESR T~EERBBNRERE
TR REH FEEREEARRE-

TR
EMITADE

2024 2023
—E-mE —E =
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET AT
Financial assets TRIEE
Amortised cost BEH Al AS 134,814 95,541
Financial liabilities THEE
Amortised cost EIH R A 29,993 31,984
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
receivables, deposits, pledged bank deposits, amount due to a
director included in other payable, time deposit, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other payables, lease liabilities, amount
due to a related company included in trade payable and bank
borrowing. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. Management of the Group manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk
Currency risk

The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets
(representing pledged bank deposits, time deposit and cash
and cash equivalents) denominated in currencies other than the
respective group entities’” functional currency at the end of the
reporting period are HK$28,016,000 (2023: HK$27,551,000).

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy in respect of foreign currency exposure. However,
management of the Group monitors the related foreign currency
exposure closely and will consider hedging significant currency
exposure should the need arise.

As the exchange rate of HK$/MOP s relatively stable, the Group
does not expect any significant foreign currency exposure arising
from the fluctuation of the HK$/MOP exchange rates. As a
result, management of the Group considers that the sensitivity of
the Group’s exposure towards the change in foreign exchange
rates between HK$/MOP is minimal.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable-rate pledged bank deposits, bank balances and
variable-rate bank borrowing. The Group is also exposed to
fair value interest rate risk in relation to fixed-rate time deposit
and lease liabilities. The Group currently does not enter into any
hedging instrument for cash flow interest rate risk.

Management of the Group considers that the overall interest rate
risk is not significant and no sensitivity analysis is presented.
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27.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its
contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group. At
the end of the reporting period, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties arises
from the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Trade receivables and contract assets arising frorm contracts with
customers

In order to minimise credit risk, the Group has delegated its
finance team to develop and maintain the Group’s credit risk
grading to categorised exposures according to their degree
of risk of default. The finance team uses publicly available
financial information, whenever available, and/or the Group’s
own historical repayment records to rate its major customers
and debtors. The Group’s exposure and the credit ratings
of its counterparties are continuously monitored and the
aggregate value of transactions concluded spreads amongst
counterparties.

The Group is exposed to concentration of credit risk at 31
December 2024 on trade receivables and contract assets from
the Group’s the largest customers and top five customers
amounting to HK$93,262,000 and HK$164,720,000 (2023:
HK$64,033,000 and HK$149,633,000), respectively, and
accounted for approximately 51% and 91% (2023: 42% and
98%) of the Group’s total trade receivables and contract assets.

EERARAT

27. ®FtTH w
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continuead)
Trade receivables and contract assets arising from contracts with
customers (Continued)

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has
applied the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the
loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Trade receivables and contract
assets are assessed individually for impairment assessment
based on the Group’s internal credit rating, historical credit
loss experience, aging analysis, repayment history and/or past
due status of respective trade receivables and contract assets,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current as
well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date,
including time value of money where appropriate. In this regard,
the directors of the Company considered that the credit risk for
trade receivables and contract assets is significantly reduced at
the end of the reporting period.

Deposits, pledged bank deposits, time deposit and bank
balances

At 31 December 2024, the gross carrying amount of rental
deposits amounted to HK$235,000 (2023: HK$325,000),
and management of the Group makes periodic individual
assessments on the recoverability of deposits based on
landlords’ credit quality. Management of the Group believes
there is no material credit risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding
balances of deposits. The directors of the Company considered
that ECL for rental deposits is insignificant at the end of the
reporting period.
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27. ®FtTH w
ERAMEEEEREE @

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

EE R R EETEE @

¥z BIRHFIRIT A0 ERI A R iR TAE
B ()
AEBEEREERNREAREGEERE
REETT -  AEBEBHB100% (CZE - =4F:
99%) BISRITIERTE R B PR 1= AR ST AR ik 48
IEEABERTANES X AEEFES
2EBREABENENEENE EHE
T IRRIRITER R T AR ET12E B 18
HEEHETN LRATEBREEBEAT
B AN BN R R A IR A o

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continuead)
Deposits, pleaged bank deposits, time deposit and bank
balances (Continued)

The Group placed deposits only with those sizeable and
reputable banks. Over 100% (2023: 99%) of the Group’s bank
deposits are deposited to state-owned corporations with
high credit ratings assigned by international credit agencies.
The Group assessed 12m ECL for time deposits, pledged
bank deposits and bank balances by reference to published
information relating to the probability of default and considered
the ECL to be insignificant and no loss allowance was
recognised.

AEBAIE SRR SR (G B U T A
I

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment comprises
the following categories:

Trade receivables/

Category Description contract assets Other financial assets
#5 fat RUERERRG0EE HttemEE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default or does not have any  Lifetime ECL 12m ECL
past-due amounts - not credit-impaired
AR HFEAMEQRRRE JLEEAARRE LHRBEESE 12EREHEERE
—TEHRESHE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates but usually settle in full  Lifetime ECL 12m ECL
- not credit-impaired
FINBRALE BHEARERIBERER BBEQRENE SHRBEESE 12EREHEERE
—IENREERE
Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit risk since initial Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
recognition through information developed internally or external - not credit-impaired - not credit-impaired
resources
& ARSI ERREFSER BT EERREMERELIRE 2BRNESHE 2HRMEEEE
=il —IERREERE —IENREERE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
— credit-impaired — credit-impaired
B BEBTNEEDLREEHE FHRBEESE FHRRESEE
—PREERE —HREERE
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuec) 27. EM T H w
Financial risk management objectives and policies EHEAMREEREREER @
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EE R KR EFTE @
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group’s TRV BETHEAGEEB RGN EASE
financial assets and contract assets which are subject to ECL ETHEERGNEENGEERE !
assessment:
Gross carrying amount
External credit ~ Internal credit 12m ECL or as at 31 December
Notes rating rating lifetime ECL Rt-AZ+-RRKEE
SMbES REEE 128 BB EEHRR 2024 2023
izE TR B 2HBEHEEHE ZZCME CZI=E
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THR
Financial assets at amortised cost
RBHERAIRNERNEE
Trade receivables 16 N/A Low risk Lifetime ECL
- not credit-impaired 15,325 13,389
S EESA TEH BEkR 2ERBEERR
—IREREERE
Watch List Lifetime ECL
- not credit-impaired 229 15
JINERLE LHBREERE
—TRLREEHE
Doubtful Lifetime ECL
- not credit-impaired 54,232 11,315
RER LHRBEERR
—IEHREEAE
Loss Lifetime ECL
- credit-impaired 1,438 1,438
B 2ERBEERR
- BEREERAE
71,224 26,157
Deposits 16 N/A Low risk 12m ECL
e TEA REkR 12EREBEERE 235 325
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea) 27. M TR ®w
Financial risk management objectives and policies ERAMEEEERBE @
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EE R KR EFTE @
Gross carrying amount
External credit ~ Internal credit 12m ECL or as at 31 December
Notes rating rating lifetime ECL Rt-AZ+-RRKEE
SMbES REEE 12 B EEFRS 2024 2023
izE TR B 2HBEHEEHE ZZCmE  CZCZR
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR
Financial assets at amortised cost (Continued)
REHNATIRNEREE (D)
Pledged bank deposits 19 Al N/A 12m ECL - 18,128
BRRRITER TBR 12EARHEEHE
Time deposit 19 Al N/A 12m ECL 16,000 20,167
EBED TBR 12EARHEEHE
Bank balances 19 Al N/A 12m ECL 56,126 35,887
RITAEER TBR 12EARHEEHE
72,126 74,182
Other item
HftER
Contract assets 18 N/A Low risk Lifetime ECL
- not credit-impaired 93,282 110,407
BHEE TER RER LHBREERE
—IREREEAE
Watch list Lifetime ECL
- not credit-impaired 57 179
JINERLE LHBREERE
—IEHREEAE
Doubtful Lifetime ECL
- not credit-impaired 82 28,199
Rk LHRBEEHE
—IREREERE
Loss Lifetime ECL
- credit-impaired 16,569 16,790
B LHBREERE
- BHREEHE
109,990 165,575
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continuead)

The following table shows movements in lifetime ECL that has
been recognised for trade receivables and contract assets under

the simplified approach.

27. ®FtT B @
ERAMEEEEREE @

EERERREN G @
TRITREBED ZEDNVERE Z IR
MREHNEEEMEREEREZS-

BHEE e E 2R
Contract assets Trade receivables
L 2R ZHATRHR
FEBE 2BRBEE FEBE FEB#E
(EEHR B EHR (it 13 (3R
EERE) EEHM{E) EERE) EEHRHE) it
Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL
(not credit- (credit- (not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) impaired) impaired) Total
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THT FAT THAT THET TAT
At 1 January 2023 RZE-_=%5—HF—H 16,412 1,423 7,031 24 24,890
Impairment losses reversed BREERESE (493) = (3,713 = (4,206)
Transfer to credit-impaired BREGEHE (9,303) 9,303 (962) 962 -
Changes due to financial K2 =%—H—H
instruments recognised BRzEERTAM
as at 1 January 2023 Ef &8
- Impairment losses —BHERRERE
recognised 20 6,064 643 452 7,179
Impairment losses recognised for ~ MEXSHEEZ
new financial assets originated BHERHESE 89 - 686 - 775
At 31 December 2023 RIEZ=%
+-B=+—H 6,725 16,790 3,685 1,438 28,638
Impairment losses reversed ERLIRESSR - - (8,852) (413) (9,265)
Transfer to trade receivables ~ HEZEEINE Z RN (7,216) (413) 7,216 413 -
Changes due to financial RZZEZMNE—FA—H
instruments recognised BRZzREMTEM
as at 1 January 2024 Efz8
- Impairment losses —ERRRESE
recognised 890 192 127 - 1,209
Impairment losses recognised for ~ HELSREEL
new financial assets originated ERAREEE 765 - 5,210 - 5,975
At 31 December 2024 RIBZmE
+ZA=+-H 1,164 16,569 7,386 1,438 26,557
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea) 27. T H @

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The loss rates are determined based on historical observed
default rates over the expected life of the debtor, and are
adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers
to settle the receivables, which include the forecast of GDP in
Macau and Hong Kong. The contract assets relate to unbilled
work in progress and retention money and have substantially the
same risk characteristics as the trade receivables for the same
types of contracts. Management of the Group has therefore
concluded that the expected loss rates for trade receivables are
a reasonable approximation of the loss rates for the contract
assets.
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed

adequate by management of the Group to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities based on the agreed repayment
terms. The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on
which the Group can be required to pay. The maturity dates
for non-derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates. The table includes both interest and principal
cash flows.

27. ®FtT B @

ERAMEEEEREE @

MENE £ EE

AEERDETERE  AEEBERKRER
AEREEBRRAR/RTENHERREEFE
KT UERTEBNESREES I
BERERE RS E-

TREVNAEBREBEENFRBBE
TREENGRTSARIAE - &ZRIHIREAR
EEVEAXNNRFEANNEHEEN
REFEFEERBRR -FITESREERNE
HBAEROENERBH ZXRBENER
AEREMNE -

Weighted  On demand Total
average  or less than undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 1-2 years 2-5years  Over 5 years cash flows amount
e RERS RUERRE
TigF= DIE 12265 2F5F SEMNE MERGE fRE{E
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% FER THET TET FET FET FER
At 31 December 2024 RZE_ME+ZA=+—-AH
Trade and other payables P B 5 IR R EL A FE (T 7B - 24,639 - - - 24,639 24,639
Lease liabilties HEAE 5.21 457 320 - - 777 738
Bank borrowing RITER 3.08 946 946 2,838 1,208 5,938 5,354
26,042 1,266 2,838 1,208 31,354 30,731
At 31 December 2023 RWZEZ=F+"A=+—H
Trade and other payables P B 3 IR R LA B (T 0B - 25,889 = = = 25,889 25,889
Lease liabilities HEaR 5.21 628 214 - - 842 814
Bank borrowing RITIER 3.58 976 976 2,927 2,278 7,157 6,095
27,493 1,190 2,927 2,278 33,888 32,798

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities is
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and liabilities recorded at amortised
cost in the consolidated financial statements approximate their
fair values at the end of the reporting period.

ETRMIANATEFE
THREERTMERNATEDREER
BB RED TN AR EBRUERE -

RABEFRR RiFEMBHREPREH
AR HNEMEERERNREERR
RREARNAFERE
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28. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 28. EX BB TN AEHEE

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Amount
due to Amount
a former due to
director a director
of the of the
Company Company
(included (included
Lease in other in other Bank
liabilities payables) payables) borrowing Total
INT
Sl Y
gEzy —LEENE
GtAEM Gt AEA
HEaR FEfFFR1E) FEfTFRIE) RITE ot
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET
At 1 January 2023 RZE_=%
—A—H 937 279 - 6,813 8,029
Financing cash flow MEREME B811) 279 34 (942) (1,998)
Interest expenses G\ 50 - - 224 274
New leases entered S RETRRAY 638 - - - 638
At 31 December 2023 WZB_=%+_R8
== 814 - 34 6,095 6,943
Financing cash flow MERERE (789) - (34) (942) (1,765)
Interest expenses FIERX 48 - - 201 249
New leases entered 5] BYHTARAY 665 - - - 665
At 31 December 2024 RZBZmE
SrE = e 738 - - 5,354 6,092

29. PERFORMANCE BONDS

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had outstanding
performance bonds in respect of construction contracts through
a bank amounting to HK$18,128,000 (2024: Nil). The bonds
were secured by pledged bank deposits as disclosed in Note

19.
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30. NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

31.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR MR R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —Z _UF+_A=+—HILFE

Right-of-use assets for buildings with a total capital value of
HK$665,000 (2023: HK$638,000) and the same amount of
lease liabilities were recognised during the year ended 31
December 2024. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants other than the security interests in the leased assets
that are held by the lessor.

Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing
puUrposes.

PARTICULAR OF SUBSIDIARIES 31.

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December
2024 and 2023 are as follows:

30. EIRER5H

REE-_E-_NE+"A=1+—HILEE"
MR AR E AN {E 4665,00058 T (CE =4 !
638, ooo%n) NigFEREEENAERE
BEHHEEE -BRHBAAMFTHEHEE ENIL
Wé%ﬁ%’%ﬂ = 17755 I R B = (R A 3256 ©

HMEBEENSAFEERNE M-

Ly =G S
R_E_WEN_E_=F+_HB=+—
HAABMMBARMEBUT :

Issued and
Place of Place of fully paid Attributable equity interest
Name of subsidiary incorporation operation share capital of the Company Principal activities
BET F R
MBATRE R, EEME RBRRA FEft B 1 TEEH
2024 2023
—E_ME ZEZ=

Directly held:

EERAE:

SEM Investments Limited BVI Hong Kong US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding

SEM Investments Limited RBEIHE B E 100% 100%  HEER

Indirectly held:

MRS

SEM Development Limited BVI Hong Kong USs$1 100% 100%  Investment holding

SEM Development Limited RBRUHE &5 1%E7T 100% 100% REER

SEM Resources Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Provision of administrative
support for the Group and
provision of electrical and
mechanical engineering
services

SEM Resources Limited 58 &8 17T 100% 100%  AREBERETHZFIRE
HE N R TR

Ready System Engineering Limited ~ Macau Macau MOP25,000 100% 100%  Provision of electrical and
mechanical engineering
services

2EARIRERAH R it 25,0007 7 100% 100% REENREHIERS

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the
end of the reporting period.

P8R 85 R Y 2 B0 0L R BT (E R
CEE
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32.

180 SEM Holdings Limited j#3%

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 22 January 2020, the Company conditionally adopted a
share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) as incentive
or reward for contributions that the eligible participants have
made or may make to the Group. Pursuant to the Share Option
Scheme, the Company may grant options to any employee,
advisor, consultant, service provider, agent, client, partner or
joint-venture partner of the Company or its subsidiary (including
any director or any director of the Group’s subsidiaries) who is
in full-time or part-time employment with or otherwise engaged
by the Company or any subsidiary at the time when an option
is granted to such person under the Share Option Scheme
or any person who, in the absolute discretion of the board,
has contributed or may contribute to the Group (the “Eligible
Participants”) to subscribe for the shares thereby linking their
interest with that of the Group.

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the board
may, in their absolute discretion make offer to the Eligible
Participants. The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a
period of 10 years from the date of adoption, after which period
no further options will be granted but the provisions of the Share
Option Scheme shall remain in force to the extent necessary to
give effect to the exercise of any options granted or exercised
prior thereto or otherwise as may be required in accordance with
the provisions of the Share Option Scheme.

EREBRAR

—UE+H=1+—HIEFE

32. FERRHESTE
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continueq)

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted at any time under the Share Option Scheme
(together with options which may be granted under any other
share option schemes) shall not exceed such number of shares
as equals to 10% of the issued share capital of the Company at
the date of Listing.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each grantee (including both
exercised or outstanding options) in any 12-month period must
not exceed 1% of the shares in issue.

The subscription price for shares under the Share Option
Scheme shall be determined by the board, but in any event will
not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares
on the Stock Exchange as shown in the daily quotations sheet
of the Stock Exchange on the offer date of the particular option,
which must be a business day; (i) the average of the closing
prices of the shares as shown in the daily quotation sheets of
the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the offer date of the particular option; and (i) the
nominal value of a share on the offer date of the particular
option.

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, there
were no share options outstanding under the Share Option
Scheme nor were any share options granted, agreed to be
granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Share Option
Scheme.

32. lBRGHESTE

RIRB RS B PE M RHR I BE R HAV AR
Rt GERRIR T H thiE IR 5t &I FT AEIR
ERERE S RORNMEABERTRF
BEEERNLETABRKEARBEHITRA
10%BIRR (D 88 ©

RAEM12E B R A SERATHERE
RERETRETETHRMDER (BEE
TR ERITENBRE A RBREET
AP B91% ©

BRESSETRMANIEEFTHRESS
BE ERUOEAIEERUTRSE ()
RHAHFBREZER WABEXH BX
Fhis BREXRFIIRMDWRHE ()R IZERE
BRERHAPALEEXHBRAEH
WBRFTHIRMD FEHWRHE ; Ki)i% LA
BREZERZROEE:.
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33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 33. ‘A B IR R R R EE

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

2024 2023
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
g3 FHET FET

Non-current assets JERENE E
Property, plant and equipment M- BE G 1 2
Investment in a subsidiary R—EHBABNEE 1 1
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUR T B A B 7 1A 27,707 26,069
27,709 26,072

Current assets REEE
Prepayments TR 324 1,119
Time deposit T HATFER 16,000 20,000
Cash and cash equivalents BERIBEEEEY 2,966 2,000
19,290 23,119
Current liabilities mEafA

Other payables H e w18 460 1,069
Net current assets RENBEEREE 18,830 22,050
Total assets less current liabilities 42 E R AEIEE 46,539 48,122

Capital and reserves B K #HE
Share capital (&N 23 20,000 20,000
Reserves EiNi=t @) 26,539 28,122
46,539 48,122

182 SEM Holdings Limited RE £ IRAE
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33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 33. xAT MBI IR EEE @
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note (a):  Movements in reserves of the Company Bizta): NRBEEESD)

At 1 January 2023 R_E_=%—H—H 81,928 (50,622) 31,306
Loss and total comprehensive FANBEREHERASZEE

expense for the year - (8,184) (8,184)
At 31 December 2023 RIE_=F+"_B=+—H 81,928 (53,806) 28,122
Loss and total comprehensive FHRBEREAERSZAEEE

expense for the year - (1,583) (1,583)

At 31 December 2024 RIE-ME+_A=+—H 81,928 (55,389) 26,539




FINANCIAL SUMMARY
P

T

A summary of the published results and of the assets, liabilites and FEEBEXAETBEENE T SEEURE
equity of the Group for the last five financial years set out below. EE -BEAMERNBMESH N Tk

RESULTS e

Year ended 31 December
HE+_BA=1+—HILEE
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
ZEImE ZZZ= ZEIZE T ITIZIZE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAT TET TAT TAT TAT

Revenue s 91,707 258,894 281,333 176,613 68,094
Profit/(loss) before tax BRIENER /(518 3,781 (8,189) (5,576) (4,806) (18,816)
Income tax credit/(expense) FrisRige,/ (%) 21 218 (1,157) (13) (782)
Profit/(loss) for the year EREA,/ (518 3,802 (7,970) (6,733) (4,819) (19,598)
Attributable to: BUF AL HELG
Owners of the Company UNCIEZZ=DN 3,802 (7,970) (6,733) (4,819) (19,598)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE
As at 31 December
B+ZB=+—H
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020

“EC@NE C—EB-=fF C—BI-Hf "B C—E-EBF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FAT FET TET FET

Total assets BEER 257,600 259,912 268,456 265,061 263,800
Total liabilities BEEE (44,656) (50,770) (51,344) (41,216) (35,136)
Total equity TR 212,944 209,142 217,112 223,845 228,664
Attributable to: BUF A LFELS

Owners of the Company VUNIEZZ=DN 212,944 209,142 217,112 223,845 228,664

184 SEM Holdings Limited SRR B IRA T
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